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RWANI)A SOCIAL SECI RITY BOARI) 
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

I. INTRODUCTION 

I.I. 	Background of RSSB 

RSSB operated under Law n° 04/2015 of 11/03/2015 modi'ing and complementing Lawn° 45/2010 of 
14/12/2010 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) and Law nC  003/2016 of 30/03/2016 
establishing and governing maternity leave benefits scheme until 16 February 2021 when a new law was 
gazetted to repeal Lawn° 45/2010 of 14/12/2010 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB). 

The new RSSB law (Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board) 
became effective from 161h February 2021 and has a transition period of 12 months. Employees and 
movable and immovable property as well as liabilities and contracts formerly owned by the RSSB 
established by Law No n° 45/20 10 of 14/12/20 10 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) 
and determining its mission, organisation and functioning as amended to date are transferred to the 
RSSB established by the new RSSB law. 

Under Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board, RSSB is 
categorised as a specialised organ and has a legal personality, administrative and financial autonomy. 
The mission of RSSB is to manage and promote social security in Rwanda. The supervising authority of 
RSSB is the Ministry in charge of finance. 

Responsibilities of RSSB 
Responsibilities of RSSB are the following: 

To manage and promote social security in Rwanda (old age pension, survivorship benefits, 
nonoccupational invalidity benefits, occupational hazards insurance, maternity leave benefits 
scheme, health insurance and the long-term saving scheme); 
To register employers, employees, beneficiaries and voluntary contributors in social security 
schemes under its management; 
To monitor, collect and manage social security contributions: 
To conduct audit and inspection to ensure compliance with social security laws; 
To pay social security benefits to beneficiaries: 
To invest in Rwanda or abroad in accordance with relevant laws; 
To contribute to the elaboration of social security policy; 
To contribute in designing strategies for shelter, adequate nutrition, education, support due to loss of 
jobs, provision for family and poverty reduction with intention to achieve social welfare; 
To advise the Government on matters relating to social security; 
To establish relations and collaborate with other regional or international institutions with similar 
mission; 
To perform such other duties as may be assigned by Law. 

1.2. 	Supervising authority of RSSB 

RSSB is supervised by the Ministry of Finance and Economic Planning. 

1.3. 	Management organs of RSSB 

Management organs of RSSB are the following: 

I) Board of Directors; 

2) General management. 
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1.3.1 	Board of Directors 

The Board of directors is responsible for providing governance and oversight over the management of 
RSSB. The composition of the Board of Directors as at 30th  June 2021 was as follows: 

NAMES Role on the board 
Dr Christopher John WALES  Chairperson  
Mr. Marcel MUKESHIMANA  Vice Chairperson  
Prof. Senait FISSEHA  Member  
Mr. Patrick MARARA SHYAKA  Member  

Mr. Kephers USENGE  Member  

Ms. Liliane BWAKIRA  Member 
Dr. Violette AYINGENEYE Member  

Mr. Yves GATSIMBANYI Member 
Mr. Alain NDAYISI-IIMIYE Member 

1.3.2 General management 

The day to day running of RSSB is entrusted to the management team headed by the Director General. 
The Director General is assisted by two (2) Deputies: Deputy Director General in charge of Benefits and 
Deputy Director General in charge of Fund Management. Officers who served on the General 
Directorate for the year ended 30th  June 2021 were as follows: 

NAMES POSITION Comments 

Mr. RUGEMANSHURO Regis Director General. Rwanda Social Security Board 
Mr. GACANDAGA Jean Marie Deputy Director General in charge of Fund Management Left April 2021 
Mr. Philippe WATRIN Deputy Director General in charge of Fund Management Joined April 2021 

Dr. HITIMANA Regis Deputy Director General in charge of Benefits 

Mr. MURINDABIGWI Innocent Ilead of Finance and Contributions I)epartment 

Mr. GASANA KWIZERA Eric Head of Investment Department  
Mr. RUL ISA Alexis Head of CBHI Department  
Ms. MUJAWABEGA Yvonne lIead of Pension and Occupational Hazards department  
Dr. UMUTESI Lyseue Ilead of Medical Department 
Mr. GATERA Augustin head of Long Term Saving Scheme (Ejo 1 -leza) 

Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board replaces the title of 
Director General with the Chief Executive Officer of RSSB and creates a position of a Deputy Chief 
Executive Officer of RSSB. Staff members of RSSB are governed by special statutes instituted by an 
order of the Prime Minister. 

1.4. 	Registered office 

Rwanda Social Security Board Headquarters 
RSSB Building 
Plot 1003 Ubumwe Cell, 
African Union Boulevard 
Kiyovu, Nyarugenge 
POBOX 250/6655 Kigahi 
Email : lnfo@rssb.rw  
Toll Free line 4044 
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1.5. 	Auditors 

The Auditor General 
Office of the Auditor General for State Finances 
Kimihurura avenue du Lac Muhazi NEC, OAG, RRA Complex 
BY 1020, 
Kigali- Rwanda 

1.6. 	Bankers 

Bank of Kigali Limited GT Bank (Rwanda) Limited 
POBox 175 POBox33l 
Kigali, Rwanda Kigali, Rwanda 

I & M Bank Rwanda Limited Access Bank (Rwanda) Limited 
POBox354 POBox2O59 
Kigali, Rwanda Kigali, Rwanda 

National Bank of Rwanda Zigama Credit and Saving Society 
POBox53I POBox4772 
Kigali, Rwanda Kigali, Rwanda 

Bank Populaire du Rwanda Limited Development Bank of Rwanda Limited 
P0 Box 1348 P.O Box 1341 
Kigali, Rwanda Kigali, Rwanda 

Ecobank Rwanda Limited Cogebanque Limited 
P 0 Box 3268 P.O. Box 5230 
Kigali, Rwanda Kigali, Rwanda 

KCB Rwanda Limited Equity Bank Rwanda Limited 
POBox562O POBox494 
Kigali, Rwanda Kigali, Rwanda 

Unguka Bank Plc Rwanda AB Bank Rwanda Limited 
P.O BOX: 6417 Kigali. P.O Box 671, 
Kigali, Rwanda Kigali, Rwanda 

Letshego Rwanda Limited Bank of Africa 
P.O. Box 4062 P.O. Box 265, 
Kigali, Rwanda Kigali-Rwanda 

NCBA Bank Rwanda PLC 
Kigali Heights, 8th Floor. Boulevard de I'Umuganda 
P 0 Box 6774, Kigali, Rwanda 

Investment advisors for Ejo Heza 
Rwanda National Investment Trust Ltd (RNIT) 
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1.7. 	Our Vision, Mission and Core Values 

Our Vision 
"To envision a comprehensive social security system that addresses the social security needs of all 
Rwandans" 

Our Mission 
"To provide high quality social security services, ensure efficient collection, benefits provision, 
management and investment of members funds.' 

Our Core (Corporate) Values 
In trying to achieve our vision and mission, we serve with empathy, creativity, integrity, and 
determination by following the ICARE principles: 

• Integrity 
• Collaboration 
• Accountability 
• Respect 
• Excellence 

The Directors submit their report together with the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 
which discloses the state ofaffairs of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB). 

	

1.8. 	Establishment 

RSSB was established and is governed by Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 which replaced Law No 
04/2015 of 11/03/2015, law modifying and complementing Law n° 45/2010 of 14/12/2010 establishing 
Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) and determining its mission, organization, and functioning. 

	

1.9. 	Principal activities 

In accordance with Law N° 04/2015 of 11/03/2015, RSSB was established with four schemes. 

• Under the pension and Occupational hazard scheme, RSSB collects contributions from employers 
and employees in Rwanda and provides benefits to pensioners. invalids, and other beneficiaries. 

• Under the medical scheme, RSSB provides medical insurance services. 

• Under CBHI scheme, RSSB provides community-based health insurance scheme and by the same 
law the CBHI has been operating from July 2015. 

• Under Maternity Leave Benefits Scheme, RSSB provides maternity leave insurance services and has 
been operating since 1M  November 2016. 

• A new regulation Prime Minister Order No.58 of 4/04/2018 - Determining the administrator of the 
Long-term savings scheme appointed RSSB as the administrator of the Long-term saving scheme. 
Accordingly, this regulation introduces a new scheme to RSSB. 

Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board requires RSSB to manage 
and promote social security in Rwanda and provide health insurance, as defined under two broad 
categories below: 

1) Social security: Government strategies aimed at providing to people living in Rwanda health 
insurance and social protection from effects based on lack or reduction of income due to the 
following reasons: 

Old age. 
Death. 
Disability. 
Occupational hazards. 
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Sick leave. 
Maternity leave. 

The strategies may also provide for shelter, adequate nutrition, education, support due to loss ofjob. 
provision for family and poverty reduction with intention to achieve social welfare. 

2) Health insurance: This will cover: 

Community-based health insurance scheme. 

Medical insurance scheme for public servants governed by general statutes governing public 
servants, by special statutes or by law regulating labour in Rwanda; Employees in private 
institutions affiliated to the compulsory health insurance scheme; and Pensioners who 
contributed to the health insurance scheme. 

RSSB has responsibility to manage and promote: 

Social security in Rwanda 

• Old age pension, survivorship benefits, nonoccupational invalidity benefits (Pension scheme) 

• Occupational hazards insurance (Occupational Hazards scheme) 

• Maternity leave benefits scheme 

• Long-term saving scheme 

Health insurance 

• Community-based health insurance scheme 

• Medical insurance scheme 

1.10. Membership 

1) Membership of the defined benefit fund 

Total members at 30 June 2021 2020 

Contributing members 683.653 587.576 

Pensioners 43.623 41.483 

Deferred members 1.186.850 926.861 

1,914,126 1,555,920 

Contributing members 

At start of year 587.576 553.876 

Joiners 216.675 145.775 

804,251 699,651 

Less: 

Retired (with pension or lumpsum) 4.904 3.578 

Secessions (withdraw/deferred) 115.694 108.497 

At end of year 683,653 587,576 

Pensioners 

At start ofthe year 41.483 41.474 

Contributing members who retired with pension 3.294 2.353 

\Vidows or widowers pension and orphans becoming payable 1.783 1.187 

Members who got lump sum 1.610 1.225 
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48,170 	 46,275 

Less: Deaths and other secessionists 	 4547 	 4356 

At end of year 	 43,623 	 41,483 

Membership of the Workers' Medical Insurance 

Active members 2021 2020 

Affiliates 163,973 141,378 
Dependents 335,875 320,691 

Total 499,848 462,069 

Membership of the Community Based Health Insurance 

Population coverage 2021 2020 

Target population 12,091,107 11,841,787 
Active contributors 10,385,926 9,443,124 

Coverage rate 85.9% 79.7% 

Membership of the Maternity Leave Benefits Scheme 

2021 2020 

Contributors 681,231 575,829 

Number of beneficiaries 3,184 2,924 

Membership of Ejo Heza Scheme 

	

2021 	 2020 
Contributors 	 1,135,148 	347,470 

Number of beneficiaries 	 104 	 - 
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2. STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES 

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) comprising the statement of financial position as 
at 30 June 2021, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in Member funds and 
reserves and cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, which 
include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes as set out on pages 
10 to 165, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (except as shown in note 4 
(2) - basis of accounting) and in the manner required by the provisions of Law no. 009/2021 of 
16/02/2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB). 

The Directors' responsibility includes the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon in 
the preparation of financial statements, overseeing and endorsing the designing, implementing 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting 
and applying appropriate accounting policies; making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 
circumstances. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Board. 

The Directors have made an assessment of the ability of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) to 
continue as going concern and have no reason to believe that the business will not be a going concern in 
the year ahead from the date of this statement. 

In our opinion, the financial statements of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) for the year ended 
30 June 2021 give a true and fair view of the state of financial affairs of Rwanda Social Security 
Board (RSSB). We further accept responsibility for maintenance of accounting records that may 
be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements and ensuring adequate system of internal 
controls to safeguard assets of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB). 
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3. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

3.1. Statement of comprehensive income 

2021 2020 
Notes Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Dealings with members 
Contributions 9 247.444 212.959 

Benefits paid 10 (128.100) (112,059) 

Net additions from dealings with members 119,344 100,900 

Returns on investments 
Investment income II 74.974 58.7 14 
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit 12 (49.299) 2.118 
or loss 
Change in fair value of investment properties 13 - 78.595 

Write back of prior year - - 

Realized (loss)/gain on disposal of assets 14 395 378 

Impairment losses on financial assets held at amortised cost IS (4.794) - 

Less: investment management expenses 16 (1.819) (2.015) 

Net returns on investments 19,457 137,789 

Grants 17 1.424 27.795 

Other income 18 7.326 1.165 

Expenditures 
Staffcosts 19 (11.294) (12.211) 
Administrative expenses 20 (6.597) (6.543) 
Depreciation and amortization charge 21 (1,436) (1.450) 
Other expenses 22 (6.411) (4.931) 
Total expenses (25,738) (25,135) 

Net income for the year 121,813 242,514 

Other comprehensive income 
Revaluation gain on property and equipment (administrative assets) 23 - 2.587 

Increase in net assets for the year 

The notes on pages 15 to 165 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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3.2. Statement of financial position 

	

2021 	 2020 

Notes 	Frw'millions 	Frw'milhions 

Assets 
Property and equipment 	 24 	 13.676 	 13.153 

Intangible assets 	 25 	 2.865 	 1.973 

Investment properties 	 26 	 221.582 	218.562 
Investment properties in the process of construction 	 27 	 7.684 	 7.684 

Assets held for sale 	 28 	 - 	 - 
Equity investments 	 29 	 457.370 	478.443 
Government bonds 	 - 	 - 
Corporate bonds 	 30 	 23.441 	 24.754 

Treasury bonds 	 31 	 203.440 	153.936 

Treasury bills 	 32 	 96.272 	 54.323 

Commercial papers 	 33 	 29.296 	 14.715 
Loan and advances to third parties 	 34 	 35.948 	 41.322 

Mortgage loans 	 35 	 16 	 63 

Inventory 	 36 	 290 	 361 

Advances to contractors 	 37 	 6.944 	 8.808 

Dividend and other income receivable 	 38 	 5.058 	 1.258 

Other assets 	 39 	 9.956 	 6.207 

Due to/(Due from) other schemes 	 40 	 - 	 - 

Deposits with financial institutions 	 41 	 287.626 	291.273 

Cash and bank balances 	 42 	 134.461 	 89.327 

Total assets 	 1,535,925 	1,406,162 

Less: Liabilities 
Amounts retained on construction contracts 	 958 	 946 

Benefits payable 	 28.221 	 26.177 

Other payables 	 43 	 16.716 	 12.937 

Deferred income 	 42 (b) 	 682 	 691 

Total liabilities 	 46,577 	 40,752 

Net assets available for benefits 	 1.4g9.347 	1,365,410 

Represented by: 

Capital 	 1.232 	 1.232 

Retained earnings and Accumulated member funds 	 45 	 710.676 	652.763 

Revaluation reserve 	 46 	 7.093 	 7.093 

Fair value reserve 	 47 	 48.845 	 97.613 

Unallocated pension contributions reserve 	 49 	 1,910 	 - 

Statutory reserves 	 48 	 704.753 	602.768 

Ejo Heza member funds 	 50 	 14.837 	 3.941 

Total reserves and member funds 1,4S9,347 	1,365,410 

The financial statements were 	 f Directors on ................................and 
signed on its behalf by: 	 G 

Mr. Regis R 	MANSH 	 7 	Dr. Christopher John 	WALES 

Director Ge/Iteral 	 Chairperson - Board of Directors 

The notes on pages 15 to 165 fo 	 f these financial statements. 
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3.3. Statement of changes in members' funds and reserves 

Capital Occupational Pension Accumulated Ejo Heza Fair Revaluation Unallocated Total 
hazard reserves member member value reserve Pension 

reserves funds and funds reserve contributions 
retained reserve 
earnings 

Frw' Frw' millions Frw' Frw' Frw' Frw' Frw 1  Frw'millions Frw' 
millions millions millions millions millions millions millions 

At I July 2019 1,232 55,899 460,687 580,963 - 16,900 4,506 - 1,120,188 

Prior year adjustment (103) 105 

Net income for the year - 14371 71.411 75,619 80.712 2.587 - 245.101 

Net increase in Ejo I lea member funds - - - (3,715) 3,715 - - - 

Net increase in Ejo 1-leza unallocated member funds - - - - 121 - - - 121 

At 30 June 2020 1,232 70,670 532,098 652,764 3,941 97,613 7,093 - 1,365,410 

Prior year adjustment - - - (561) - 531 - - (30) 

Net income for the year - 18.110 83.875 69,127 (49.299) - - 121,813 

Net increase in Ejo lieza member funds - - - (10.653) 10,653 - - - - 

Net increase in Ejo I leza unallocated member hinds - - - - 243 - - - 243 

Revaluation of property - - - - - - - - - 

Reclassification of unallocated pension 
contributions from other payables to reserves - - - - - - - 1.811 1.811 

Additional unallocated pension contributions - - - - - - 
- 105 105 

Al location of previously unallocated contributions 
during the year (6) (6) 

As at 30 June 2021 1,232 88,780 615,973 710,677 14,837 48,845 7,093 1,910 1,489,347 

The notes on pages 15 to 165 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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3.4. Statement of cash flows 
2021 2020 

Frw' millions Frw' millions 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Increase in net assets for the year 121,813 242,514 

Adjusted for: 
Depreciation and amortization 1.436 1.450 

Investment income (74.974) (58.714) 

Realized loss on disposal of assets (equity investments. PPE. (395) (378) 
Assets held for sale and Investment properties) 

Change in fair value of equity investments 49.299 (2.118) 

Change in fair value of investment properties 0 (78.595) 
Write back of prior fair value loss 0 0 

tJnrealised foreing exchange loss (22) 158 
Government grants (241) (27.064) 

Impairment provision (IFRS 9 ECLs) 4.794 0 
Adjustment of opening balances 491 (63) 
In-kind expenditure 0 648 

In-kind income 0 uifl 
Operating income for changes in working capital 102,199 77,107 

(lncrease)/Decrease in advance to contractors 1.674 397 

(Increase)/Decrease in other assets (3.919) 512 

(Incrcasc)/Decrcase in amounts due froml(due to) other 0 (0) 

schemes 
(Increase)/Decrease in inventory 71 (65) 

Increase/(Decrease) in medical/maternity claims pavables 
2.044 1.965 

Increase/(Decrease) in other payables 3.778 (3.819) 
Increase/( Decrease) in contract retentions 12 315 
lncreasc/( Decrease in deferred income 
Increase in unallocated pension contributions reserve 1 .2I0  
Net cash flows from operating activities 107,761 76,412 

Cash flows used in investing activities: 
l)ividend income received 4.058 5.967 

Rent received 2.286 4.446 

Other interest income received (current accounts, call deposit 3.546 3,070 
and mortgage loans) 
Purchases for investment property under construction 0 (3.217) 
Purchase of property and equipment (1.767) (408) 
Purchase of intangible asset (1.177) (1.396) 

Purchase of investment properties (4.700) (17.121) 

Purchase of equity investments (28.225) (59.926) 

Proceeds from disposal of Equity investments 0 0 

Purchase of Corporate bonds 0 (24.000) 
Receipts from settlement of Corporate bonds (Interest and 4,176 0 
principal) 

Receipts from Treasury bond - coupon interest income 28.913 20,466 
received 

Receipts from Treasury bill maturities (Interest and principal) 76.129 137.201 
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2021 2020 
Frw' millions Frw' millions 

Receipts from Commercial papers maturities (principal and 3378 17.486 
interest) 
Investment in Treasury bonds (60.486) (71.469) 
Investment in Treasury bills (110.375) (64.747) 
Investment in Commercial papers (16,915) (14.520) 

Receipts from settlement of loans and advances to third 9,937 
parties 5,348 

Additional loans and advances to third parties during the year (10.000) 
0 

Increase/(Decrease) in mortgages 45 90 
Placement of term deposits during the year (206,713) (293.898) 
Settlement of term deposits during the year 234.572 258.748 

(lncrease)/Decrease in call deposit 0 0 

Refund of prior year purchase of Investment properties - 0 
2.135 

Rusororo plots 
Proceeds from disposal 4.638 1.873 

Net cash used in investing activities (62,868) (99,280) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Government grants 241 27.340 

Government grants refunded 0 (332) 

Increase in unidentified member contributions 0 .12.1 
Net cash from financing activities 241 27,129 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 45,134 4,260 
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 89.327 85.066 

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 134,461 89,327 

The notes on pages 15 to 165 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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4. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. 	Reporting entity 

Rwanda Social Security Board was established by Law n° 45/2010 of 14/12/2010 establishing Rwanda 
Social Security Board (RSSB) as modified and complemented by Law no 04/20 15 of 11/03/2015 which 
was replaced by Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021. 

The Board runs the following schemes under one management with each scheme governed by a specific 
law: 

• 	Pension and Occupational hazards scheme 

• 	Medical scheme 

• Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI) scheme 

• 	Maternity Leave scheme 

• 	Long term savings scheme (Ejo Heza): Prime Minister Order No.58 of 4/04/20 18 - Determining the 
administrator of the Long-term savings scheme appointed RSSB as the administrator of the Long-term 
saving scheme. 

RSSB is required to manage and promote social security in Rwanda and provide health insurance, as 
defined under two broad categories below: 

Social security in Rwanda 

• Old age pension, survivorship benefits, nonoccupational invalidity benefits (Pension scheme) 

• Occupational hazards insurance (Occupational Hazards scheme) 

• Maternity leave benefits scheme 

• Long-term saving scheme 

Health insurance 

• Community-based health insurance scheme 

• Medical insurance scheme 

2. Basis of accounting 

a) Statement of compliance 
The financial statements of the Board have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). These are 
separate financial statements and are not consolidated, as would be required by IFRS 10: Consolidated 
Financial Statements, in respect of the investees over which the Board exercises control. The directors, in 
their judgment believe that despite this deviation, the financial statements provide reliable and useful 
information to its stakeholders. 

Under paragraph 4B of IFRS 10, a parent entity that is an Investment entity is exempt from consolidation if 
that entity measures interests in subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Paragraph 27 of 
IFRS 10 requires a parent entity to determine if it is an investment entity. An investment entity is an entity 
that: 

I) Obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those investor(s) with 
investment management services: 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (Continued) 
Basis of accounting (Continued) 
Statement of compliance (C'ontinued) 

Commits to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital 
appreciation, investment income, or both: and 

Measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis. 

Accordingly. the directors have determined RSSB to be an investment entity as its mandate includes the 
management of funds on behalf of contributing members to ensure the following. 

Collects and invests funds contributed by fund members providing investment management services 
over investments made on behalf of contributing members with aim of ensuring that long term fund 
obligations to contributing members are met as and when they fall due. 

Commits to contributing members to invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, 
investment income or both 

And measures the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis. 

The directors have thus chosen to apply the exemption from consolidation under paragraph 4B of IFRS 10 
and to account for RSSB interests in entities that quaIif' to be subsidiaries at fair value through profit or 
loss. 

In addition, under paragraph 18 of lAS 28, when an investment in an associate or ajoint venture is held by. 
or is held indirectly through. an  entity that is a venture capital organisation, or a mutual fund, unit trust and 
similar entities including investment-linked insurance funds, the entity may elect to measure investments in 
those associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9. RSSB as 
an investment entity has elected to measure its associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or 
loss. The companies in which the Board has interests/shareholding and a summary of their key financial 
data are disclosed in note 28 to these financial statements. 

b) Basis for measurement 
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis except where otherwise mentioned in 
the policy notes. Financial assets including equity investments designated at fair value through profit or 
loss, investment properties, land and buildings and assets held for sale have been measured at fair value. 

Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements are presented in Rwanda francs (Frw). which is the Board's functional currency 
and all values are presented in millions (000.000), except where otherwise indicated. 

Use ofjudgements and estimates 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of the Board's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities. 
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimate are revised and in any future periods affected. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (Continued) 
Basis of accounting (Continued) 

5. Significant accounting policies 

Significant accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the 
financial statements. 

a) Members' funds 

The Board is funded through contributions from members and investment income. Contributions are 
accounted for as follows: 

Contributions from members 

Contributions from employees remitted by the employers are recognized on a cash basis. Contributions due 
but not yet received at the end of the financial year are not accrued. They are accounted for and recognized 
in subsequent years when received. The contributions remitted by employers for Pension, medical and 
maternity are based on the respective laws for pension, medical and maternity schemes. Contributions for 
CBHI are remitted directly by the beneficiaries and from other sources of income as defined by the law. 

Benefit payments to members 

Benefits to members are accounted for on an accrual basis. Benefit payments made but not collected by 
members are written back in the cash book and no liability thereof recognized in the financial statements. 

(1ji) Actuarial valuation 

The available actuarial valuation covers the period up 30 June 2020 for the pension, occupational hazards 
and medical benefit insurance schemes. See details in note 52. 

- 	I b) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Board and 
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured 
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms 
of payment. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized. 

Interest income 

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income or expense is recorded using the 
Effective Interest Rate (EIR). which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or 
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the 
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. 

Dividends 

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividends is established. 

Rental income 

Rental income from investment properties is recognized in the statement of comprehensive on the straight-
line basis over the term of the property lease. 

Other income 

Other income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities and includes gains from 
disposal of Board's assets and all realised and unrealised foreign exchange differences. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (Continued) 
Signflcant accounting policies (Continued) 

C) Foreign currencies 

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated into Rwanda francs at the exchange rate 
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the 
reporting date are translated into Rwandan francs at the exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated to 
Rwandan francs at the date when the fair value was determined. Foreign currency gains and losses arising 
from translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the year. 

d) Financial instruments 

Financial Assets 

i) 	Classification 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, Fair Value through 
Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) which is financial assets classified and measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income if they are held in a business model whose objective is achieved 
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets or Fair Value Through Profit/Loss 
(FVTPL) which means that at each balance sheet date the asset or liability is re-measured to fair value 
and any movement in that fair value is taken directly to the income statement. 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL: 
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual 

cash flows; and 
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI. 

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL: 
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 

cash flows and selling financial assets; and 
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI. 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the RSSB may irrevocably 
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. 

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL. 

In addition, on initial recognition, the RSSB may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise 
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so 
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Financial Instruments (Continued) 

Business model assessment 

The RSSB makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a 
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided 
to management. The information considered includes: 

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In 
particular, whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, 

maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the 
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the 
assets; 

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the RSSB's management; 
- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that 

business model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed; 
- how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair 

value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected); and 
- the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its 

expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered 
in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the RSSB's stated objective for managing 
the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised. 

The RSSB's business comprises primarily investment in commercial entities for earning dividends. 
corporate bonds and government paper (treasury bills and bonds) loans to customers that are held for 
collecting contractual cash flows. 

Certain debt securities are held by the RSSB in a separate portfolio for long-term yield. These 
securities may be sold, but such sales are not expected to be more than infrequent. The RSSB considers 
that these securities are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect the 
contractual cash flows. 

Certain other debt securities are held by the RSSB in separate portfolios to meet everyday liquidity 
needs. The RSSB seeks to minimise the costs of managing these liquidity needs and therefore actively 
manages the return on the portfolio. That return consists of collecting contractual cash flows as well as 
gains and losses from the sale of financial assets. The investment strategy often results in sales activity 
that is significant in value. The RSSB considers that these financial assets are held within a business 
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets. 

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair 
value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor 
held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets. 

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest 

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on 
initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit 
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other 
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
Sign jficant Accounting Policies (C'ontinued) 

Financial Instruments ('Continued 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI. the RSSB considers the contractual terms of 
the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that 
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. 
In making the assessment, the RSSB considers: 

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows; 
- leverage features; 

- prepayment and extension terms; 
- terms that limit the RSSBs claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and 
- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest 

rates). 

Equity instruments have contractual cash flows that do not meet the SPPI criterion. Accordingly, all such 
financial assets are measured at FVTPL unless the FVOCI option is selected 

Reclassifications 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the 
RSSB changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

ii) Derecognition 

The RSSB derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the 
RSSB neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not 
retain control of the financial asset. 

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the 
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration 
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or 
loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or loss. 

Any cumulative gain or loss recognised in OCI in respect of equity investment securities designated as at 
FVOCI is not recognised in profit or loss on derecognition of such securities. Any interest in transferred 
financial assets that qualifi for derecognition that is created or retained by the RSSB is recognised as a 
separate asset or liability. 

The RSSB enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its statement of financial 
position but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a 
portion of them. In such cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised. 

When assets are sold to a third party with a concurrent total return swap on the transferred assets, the 
transaction is accounted for as a secured financing transaction similar to sale-and-repurchase transactions. 
because the RSSB retains all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of such assets. 

In transactions in which the RSSB neither retains nor transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the RSSB continues to recognise the 
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to 
changes in the value of the transferred asset. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Financial Instruments (Continued) 

In certain transactions, the RSSB retains the obligation to service the transferred financial asset for a fee. 
The transferred asset is derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or liability is 
recognised for the servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than adequate (asset) or is less than 
adequate (liability) for performing the servicing. 

Financial Liabilities 

The RSSB derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or 
expire 

iii) Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Financial assets 
If the terms of a financial asset are modified, then the RSSB evaluates whether the cash flows of the 
modified asset are substantially different. 

If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original 
financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised (see 
(iii)) and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs. Any fees 
received as part of the modification are accounted for as follows: 

- fees that are considered in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that represent 
reimbursement of eligible transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the asset; and 

- other fees are included in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on derecognition. 

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of the 
modification is usually to maximise recovery of the original contractual terms rather than to originate a 
new asset with substantially different terms. If the RSSB plans to modify a financial asset in a way that 
would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of the asset should be 
written off before the modification takes place. This approach impacts the result of the quantitative 
evaluation and means that the derecognition criteria are not usually met in such cases. 

If the modification of a financial asset measured at amortised cost or FVOCI does not result in 
derecognition of the financial asset, then the RSSB first recalculates the gross carrying amount of the 
financial asset using the original effective interest rate of the asset and recognises the resulting adj ustment 
as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial assets, the original effective 
interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect current market terms at the 
time of the modification. Any costs or fees incurred and modification fees received adjust the gross 
carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified 
financial asset. 

If such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is 
presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income calculated 
using the effective interest rate method or management may elect to present it as a separate item on the 
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Financial Instruments (Continued) 

Financial liabilities 

The RSSB derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the 
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified 
terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
derecognized and the consideration paid is recognized in profit or loss. Consideration paid includes non- 

financial assets transferred, if any, and the assumption of liabilities, including the new modified financial 
liability. 

If the modification of a financial liability is not accounted for as derecognition, then the amortised cost of 
the liability is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate and 
the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial liabilities, the original 
effective interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect current market 
terms at the time of the modification. Any costs and fees incurred are recognised as an adjustment to the 
carrying amount of the liability and amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial liability by 
re-computing the effective interest rate on the instrument 

Interest rate benchmark reform (policy applied from 1 January 2020) 

If the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability measured at 
amortised cost changes as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, then the RSSB updates the effective 
interest rate of the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the change that is required by the reform. A 
change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark 
reform if the following conditions are met: 

- change is necessary as a direct consequence of the reform; and 
- the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous 

basis - i.e. the basis immediately before the change. 

If changes are made to a financial asset or financial liability in addition to changes to the basis for 
determining the contractual cash flows required by interest rate benchmark reform, then the RSSB first 
updates the effective interest rate of the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the change that is 
required by interest rate benchmark reform. After that, the RSSB applies the policies on accounting for 
modifications set out above to the additional changes. 

iv) Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of 
financial position when, and only when, the RSSB currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS Standards. or for gains 
and losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the RSSB's trading activity. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
Sign jficant Accounting Policies (c'ontinued) 
Financial Instruments (Continued) 

v) Fair value measurement 

Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most 
advantageous market to which the RSSB has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its 
non-performance risk. 

When one is available, the RSSB measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an 
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active' if transactions for the asset or liability 
take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. 

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the RSSB uses valuation techniques that maximise the 
use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation 
technique incorporates all the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a 
transaction. 

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the 
transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the RSSB determines that the 
fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by 
a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique for 
which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to the difference, then the financial 
instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on 
initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on 
an appropriate basis over the life of/ the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly 
supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out. 

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the RSSB measures 
assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price. 

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that are 
managed by the RSSB on the basis of the net exposure to either market or credit risk are measured on the 
basis of a price that would be received to sell a net long position (or paid to transfer a net short position) for 
the particular risk exposure. Portfolio-level adjustments - e.g. bid-ask adjustment or credit risk adjustments 
that reflect the measurement on the basis of the net exposure - are allocated to the individual assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the relative risk adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the portfolio. 

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the 
amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date on which the amount could be required to be 
paid. 

The RSSB recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
Sigizificant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Financial Instruments (continued 

vi) Impairment 

The RSSB recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on the following financial 
instruments that are not measured at FVTPL: 

- financial assets that are debt instruments: 

- lease receivables; 
- financial guarantee contracts issued; and 
- mortgage loan commitments issued. 

RSSB has recognized impairment loss on equity investments 

The RSSB measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for 
which they are measured as 12-month ECL: 

- debt investment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and 
- other financial instruments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial 

recognition. 

The RSSB considers a debt investment security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is 
equivalent to the globally understood definition of investment grade'. 

12-month ECL are the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that 
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which 12-month ECL 
are recognized are referred to as 'Stage 1 financial instruments'. Financial instruments allocated to Stage I 
have not undergone a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and are not credit-impaired. 

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial 
instrument or the maximum contractual period of exposure. Financial instruments for which lifetime ECL 
are recognized but that are not credit-impaired are referred to as 'Stage 2 financial instruments'. Financial 
instruments allocated to Stage 2 are those that have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition but are not credit-impaired. Financial instruments for which lifetime ECL are recognized 
and that are credit-impaired are referred to as 'Stage 3 financial instruments'. 

Measurement of ECL 
ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows: 

- financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash 
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract 
and the cash flows that the RSSB expects to receive); 

- financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows: 

- undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows 
that are due to the RSSB if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the RSSB expects to 
receive; and 

- financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts that the 
RSSB expects to recover. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position 

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows: 

- financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the 
assets; 

- loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a provision; and 
- where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the RSSB cannot 

identifS' the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn component: 
the RSSB presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented 
as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss 
allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a provision. 

Write off 
Mortgage loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable 
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case 
when the RSSB determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate 
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. This assessment is carried out at the 
individual asset level. 

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognized when cash is received and are included in 
impairment losses on financial instruments' in the statement of profit or loss and OCI. 

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with 
the RSSB's procedures for recovery of amounts due. 

vii) Designation at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets 
On initial recognition, the RSSB has designated certain financial assets as at FVTPL because this 
designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch, that would otherwise arise. 

Equity instruments at FVOCI 

Upon initial recognition, the RSSB occasionally elects to classify irrevocably some of its equity 
investments as equity instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition of definition of Equity under 
LAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined 
on an instrument-by instrument basis. 

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit. Dividends are recognised in 
profit or loss as other operating income when the right of the payment has been established, except when 
the RSSB benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, 
such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment. 

Financial liabilities 

The RSSB has not designated any financial liabilities as at FVTPL. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
Significant Accounting Policies ('C'ontinued 

e) Equity Investments 

Under lAS 27: Separate Financial Statements, when separate financial statements are prepared, an entity 
accounts for investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures either at: 
- Cost 
- In accordance with lAS 39/IFRS 9, or 
- Using the equity method described in lAS 32 

As an investment entity under IFRS 10, RSSB is expected to measure and evaluate the performance of 
substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis. RSSB also elected to measure investments in 
associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss. Accordingly, all equity investments are 
accounted for on fair value basis. The classification for the respective investments has been done in 
accordance with lAS 39. The measurement of fair value was determined in accordance with IFRS 13: Fair 
value measurement. 

For the purpose of these financial statements, the Board has measured all equity investments (except those 
that are publicly listed and equity investments in preference shares) using the net asset valuation method 
restricted to the shareholding of RSSB in the respective investments. The directors believe that this basis of 
valuation provides the most relevant estimate of the worth of these investments. 

I) Property and equipment 

initial recognition and measurement 

Property and equipment is initially recognised at cost. Cost includes expenditures that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials 
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its 
intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are 
located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as 
part of that equipment. 

The cost of replacing part of an item of property and equipment is recognized in the carrying value of the 
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Board and 
its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying value of the replaced part is de-recognised. The cost of day 
to day servicing of the property and equipment is recognized in the profit or loss as incurred. 

Subsequent measurement 

lAS 16 permits an accounting entity to choose the cost or revaluation model as its accounting policy for 
subsequent measurement of property and equipment. The accounting standard requires the accounting 
entity to apply the chosen model consistently across a class of property and equipment. 

The Board has chosen the revaluation model for the class of land and buildings and the cost model for the 
rest of the classes of property and equipment i.e. office equipment, motor vehicles, furniture and fittings, 
computers, laboratory, and kitchen equipment. 

- Revaluation model 

Land and buildings are subsequently measured at revalued amounts. It is the policy of the Board to revalue 
assets under the class of land and buildings on annual basis to determine their fair values (revalued 
amounts). Revalued amounts of assets determined at revaluation are compared to carrying values and are 
written up or down to match revalued amounts. Accordingly, the resultant, revaluation surplus or deficit is 
recognised as part of other comprehensive income during the year of revaluation and accumulated under 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
Sig,zflcant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Property and equipment (Continued) 

the revaluation reserve. Assets are then subsequently measured at revalued amounts less accumulated 
depreciation until the next revaluation or until de-recognition of the asset. 

- Cost model 

Other classes of assets excluding land and building are measured subsequently at cost less accumulated 
depreciation. 

Depreciation expense 

Depreciation is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income and calculated to write off the 
cost/revalued amounts of the property and equipment on a straight line basis over the expected useful lives 
of the assets concerned. Land is not depreciated. The estimated depreciation rates for the current and 
comparative periods are as follows: 

Class Depreciation rate 

Buildings 5% 

Office equipment 20 % 

Motor vehicles 25 % 

Furniture and fittings 10% 

Computers 33.33% 

Kitchen equipment 25% 

Laboratory equipment 25% 

Management and directors review the depreciation methods, residual value and useful life of an asset at the 
year end and any change considered to be appropriate is recorded in surplus or deficit as a change in 
estimates. 

De-recognition 

Assets are dc-recognised through disposal at sale or Board approved write off. Gains and losses on disposal 
of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the 
carrying value of property and equipment and recognized net within other income in profit or loss. At 
disposal of revalued assets, the revaluation surplus of revalued assets is transferred from the revaluation 
reserve to retained earnings. 

g) Intangible assets 

Recognition and measurement 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment 
losses. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. 
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Sign jficanl Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Intangible (Continued) 

A inortisation 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are 
reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the 
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The 
arnortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset. There are no intangible 
assets with indefinite useful lives. Intangible assets are amortised at a rate of 50%. 

De-recognition 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised. 

Investment properties 

Initial recognition 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount 
includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the 
recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an investment property. 

Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market 
conditions at the reporting date. 

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in surplus or 
deficit in the period in which they arise. Fair values are evaluated every after five years by an accredited 
external, independent valuation expert. 

De-recognilion 

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment 
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. 
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in 
surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition. 

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from 
investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair 
value at the date of change in use. When the use of property changes from owner occupied to investment 
property, the property is re-measured at fair value and reclassified as investment property. Any gain arising 
on revaluation is recognized through other comprehensive income. Any loss arising on revaluation is 
recognized through the surplus or deficit. 

Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is based on 
first-in-first out (FIFO) principle and includes the expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventory, and 
other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. Net  realizable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and selling 
expenses or the replacement cost as appropriate. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (Continued) 
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Board's non-financial assets other than investment properties and inventories 
and are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such 
condition exists. the asset's recoverable amount is estimated, and an impainnent loss recognised in surplus 
or deficit whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value 
in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. An impairment loss is reversed if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount and impairment loss is 
reversed only to the extent that the assets' carrying amount that would have been determined net of 
depreciation or amortization if no impairment loss was recognized. 

Provisions 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Board has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows 
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where the Board expects a provision to be reimbursed, for 
example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when 
the reimbursement is virtually certain. 

I) Tax 

The Board is exempt from corporate income tax under Article 46 of law No.14/2018 of 13/04/2018. 
Revenue, expenses, and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax except: 
- where the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or rendering of services is not recoverable 

from the taxation authority, in which case the value added tax is recognised as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable: and 

- receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of value added tax included 

The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as 
part of accounts receivables or account payables in the statement of financial position. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at ainortised cost subsequent to initial recognition. For the 
purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash and bank that are 
available on demand as at the reporting date. 

Capital work-in-progress 

The ongoing constructionlinstallation of capital projects are recorded at the cost to date or valuation and 
are only transferred into the relevant assets categories once completed and commissioned. No depreciation 
is computed on capital work-in-progress as these assets are not yet available for use. However, an expected 
impairment loss on capital work-in-progress is recognized immediately in surplus or deficit. Currently, 
capital work in progress consists of Investment properties under construction. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (Continued) 
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

o) Leases 

RSSB has applied IFRS 16 - Leases on 1 July 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. The 
adoption of IFRS 16 did not have a significant impact on the RSSB's financial statements. 

Policy applicable from 1 July 2019 
At inception of a contract. RSSB assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset, the Board uses the definition of a lease in IFRS 16. This policy is applied to contracts 
entered into (or changed) on or after 1 July 2019. 

RSSB acting as a lessee 
At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Board allocates 
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone price. The 
Board has elected to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and associated non-lease 
components separately. The Board recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease 
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, 
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove any improvements 
made to branch office premises. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement 
date to the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment 
losses, if any. and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Board's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Board uses its incremental borrowing 
rate as the discount rate. The Board determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates 
from various external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and 
type of the asset leased. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 
- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; 
- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as 

at the commencement date; 
- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and 
- the exercise price under a purchase option that the Board is reasonably certain to exercise, lease 

payments in an optional renewal period if the Board is reasonably certain to exercise an extension 
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Board is reasonably certain not to 
terminate early. 

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in 
an index or rate. if there is a change in the Board's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a 
residual value guarantee, if the Board changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase. 
extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment. When the lease 
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced 
to zero. The Board presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
Signflcant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 
RSSB has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets and 
short-term leases. The Board recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. All leases for RSSB during the year ended 30 June 2021 were low 
value in nature. 

Policy applicable before 1 July 2019 
For contracts entered before 1 July 2019, RSSB determined whether the arrangement was or contained a 
lease based on the assessment of whether: 
- fulfilment of the arrangement was dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets; and 
- the arrangement had conveyed a right to use the asset. 

p) Statutory reserves 

The statutory reserves are set up under article 11 of law number 06/2003 of 22 March 2003 modif'ing and 
completing law of 22/08/1974. The article stipulates that the National Social Security Institutions provide 
the following reserves for both the occupational hazards and pensions branches. 

Pension 's branch statutory reserve 

This comprises the working capital and technical reserves as explained below: 

Working capital reserve is equivalent to a quarter of the total expenses of the pension's branch previous 
year. Technical reserve should not be lower than the total expenses of the branch for the last three years. 

Occupational Hazards branch st at utoly reserve 

This comprises the occupational hazards technical, security and working capital reserves as explained 
below: 

Technical reserve must be equal to twelve times the total amount of occupational hazards paid during the 
year. Security reserve is equal to a quarter of the expenses incurred during the last three years Working 
capital reserve should be equal to a quarter of the expenses of the previous year. 

6. New standards or amendments and forthcoming requirements 

i) New and currently effective requirements 

The following standards or amendments issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) 
are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after I July 2020: 

New amendments or interpretation Effective date 

—Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards 1 July 2020 

—Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3) 1 July 2020 
—Definition of Material (Amendments to lAS I and lAS 8) 1 July 2020 
- Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments 

to IFRS 4) 
- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform-Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, lAS 39, 

IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16) 

1 July 2020 

1 July 2020 
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NO TES To THE FINANCiAL STA TEMENTS (Continued) 
New standards or amendments and forthcoming requirements (Continued) 

Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards 

The IASB decided to revise the Conceptual Framework because certain important issues were not covered, 
and certain guidance was unclear or out of date. The revised Conceptual Framework, issued by the IASB in 
March 2018, includes: 
- a new chapter on measurement; 
- guidance on reporting financial performance; 
- improved definitions of an asset and a liability, and guidance supporting these definitions; 
- updated recognition criteria for assets and liabilities; and 
- clarifications in important areas, such as the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement 

uncertainty in financial reporting. 

The IASB also updated references to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards by issuing a separate 
accompanying document, Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, 
which outlines the consequential amendments made to affected IFRS standards. This was done to support 
transition to the revised Conceptual Framework for companies that develop and apply accounting policies 
using the Conceptual Framework when no IFRS standard or interpretation applies to a particular 
transaction. 

The revised Conceptual Framework will form the basis of new IFRS standards set by the IASB as well as 
future amendments to existing IFRS standards. The adoption of these amendments did not have a 
significant impact on the financial statements of the Board. 

Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3) 

Defining a business is important because the financial reporting requirements for the acquisition of a 
business are different from the requirements for the purchase of a group of assets that does not constitute a 
business. The proposed amendments are intended to provide entities with clearer application guidance to 
help distinguish between a business and a group of assets when applying IFRS 3. 

In October 2018 the IASB issued this amendment to make it easier for companies to decide whether 
activities and assets they acquire are a business or merely a group of assets. The amendments: 
- Confirm that a business must include inputs and a process, and clarified that: (i) the process must be 

substantive and (ii) the inputs and process must together significantly contribute to creating outputs. 
- Narrow the definitions of a business by focusing the definition of outputs on goods and services 

provided to customers and other income from ordinary activities, rather than on providing dividends or 
other economic benefits directly to investors or lowering costs: and 

- Add a test that makes it easier to conclude that a company has acquired a group of assets, rather than a 
business, if the value of the assets acquired is substantially all concentrated in a single asset or group 
of similar assets. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (Continued) 
New standards or amendments and forthcoming requirements (Continued) 

Definition of Material (Amendments to lAS 1 and lAS 8) 

The IASB refined its definition of material to make it easier to understand. It is now aligned across IFRS 
Standards and the Conceptual Framework. 

The changes in Definition of Material (Amendments to lAS I and lAS 8) all relate to a revised definition 
of 'material' which is quoted below from the final amendments 'Information is material if omitting, 
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of 
general-purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide 
financial information about a specific reporting entity." 

The Board has also removed the definition of material omissions or misstatements from lAS 8 Accounting 
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. 

The amendments are effective from 1 January 2020 but may be applied earlier. However, the Board does 
not expect significant change - the refinements are not intended to alter the concept of materiality. 

Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to IFRS 4) 

Differing effective dates of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the new insurance contracts standard could 
have had a significant impact on insurers. In response to concerns regarding temporary accounting 
mismatches and volatility, and increased costs and complexity, the International Accounting Standards 
Board (the Board) issued amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts in 2017 with an effective date of I 
January 2020. 

The amendments introduced two options that could reduce the impacts but include various 
complexities as summarised as follows; 

Temporary exemption from IFRS 9 

- Rather than having to implement IFRS 9 in 2018, some companies are permitted to continue to apply 
LAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. 

- To qualify, a reporting companys activities need to be predominantly connected with insurance 

Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to IFRS 4) (Continued) 

Overlay approach 
- This optional solution provides an overlay approach to presentation to alleviate temporary accounting 

mismatches and volatility. 
- For designated financial assets, a company is permitted to reclassify between profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income (OCI), the difference between the amounts recognised in profit or loss under 
IFRS 9 and those that would have been reported under lAS 39. 

On the issue of IFRS 17 (Revised) Insurance Contracts in June 2020, the end date for applying the two 
options under the IFRS 4 amendments was extended to I January 2023. aligned with the effective date of 
LFRS 17. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (Continued) 
New standards or amendments and forthcoming requirements (Continued) 

ii) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet adopted 

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements of Rwanda Social Security Board for the year ended 
30 June 2021, the following Standards and Interpretations were in issue but not yet effective. 

New amendments or interpretation Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 

- Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to 1 July 2022 
LAS 37) 

- Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 1 July 2022 

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use 1 July 2022 
(Amendments to lAS 16)  

- Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) 1 July 2022 
- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments 1 July 2023 

tolAS I)  
- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance 1 July 2023 

Contracts  
- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform-phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9. 1 July 2021 

lAS 39, IFRS 7. IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)  
- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate Available for optional 

or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and lAS 28 adoption/effective 
date deferred indefinitely 

RSSB has not early adopted these standards. All standards and Interpretations will be adopted at their 
effective date (except for those standards and Interpretations that are not applicable to the entity).The 
adoption of these amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements of the 
Board. 

7. Determination of fair value 

Fair value neasurenent 

Fair values of cash and deposits with commercial banks, trade receivables, loans and advances and other 
payables reasonably approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these 
instruments and/or because they carry interest rates that reasonably approximate to market rates. 

The carrying amounts of equity securities held for trading and at fair value through profit of loss are the 
same as their fair values since the instruments are presented at fair value. 

Valuation hierarchy 

IFRS 13 requires a three-tiered disclosure for all financial assets and financial liabilities that are carried in 
the books of entities at fair value. This fair value disclosure is divided into three levels as follows: 

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities e.g. quoted equity 
securities. 
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Determination offair value (Continued) 
Valuation Framework (Continued) 

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability 
either directly (e.g. prices) or indirectly (e.g. derived from prices). 

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data. These items are not 
Level I products and contain at least one significant input parameter which could not be price tested from 
any of the methods described for Level 2 products. Examples are products where correlation is a significant 
input parameter and products where there is severe illiquidity in the markets for a prolonged period of time. 

Valuation models 

The Board measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy which reflects the significance of 
inputs used in making the measurements. 

Level 1 - inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments. 

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted market prices included within level I that are observable either directly 
(like prices) or indirectly (derived prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market 
prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in 
markets that are considered less active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are 
directly or indirectly observable from market data. 

Valuation Framework 

The Board has established clear guidelines on how fair value is to be determined for all assets and 
liabilities measured at fair value. These guidelines are included in the board's operational manuals. The 
fair value of both financial/non-financial assets and fair values have been determined for measurement 
and/or disclosure purposes based on the methods below: 

('i) Investment properties and Administrative land and buildings 
The Board uses an external independent valuation company with recognized professional qualification 
experience and values the Board's investment properties after every five years (previously on an annual 
basis). The fair values are based on the market conditions being the price that would be received to sell an 
asset in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. In the absence of an 
active price in an active market, the values are prepared by using three methods of valuation - the direct 
comparison method, the replacement cost method and income capitalisation method. 

The direct comparison method: Under this method, the estimated market value of the asset is related 
to value of a known comparable property whereby the latter's value is taken to be the best price that 
can be obtained by the property being valued with due allowance being made for value affecting 
differences such as: location, level and amount of services provided, accessibility, size, cyclical 
patterns in the local and regional property markets, development conditions discerned from land titles, 
date of transaction, condition (in case of buildings), sales data, tenure and unexpired term. 

The replacement cost method: This method is a method of last resort in the event of the absence of an 
active market or related market (under the direct comparison method). Under this method, the 
estimated value of the property is made in relation to what it will cost to acquire the asset at current 
price. The basic premise/assumption being that no prudent investor would pay for an asset on offer 
more than it would cost to acquire the asset new by undertaking property development. The valuation 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (Continued) 
Determination offair value (Continued) 
Valuation Framework (Continued) 

is thus based on the current cost of constructing a similar building capable of performing the same 
function as the asset being valued. Since the subject asset's life will have been relatively consumed 
with its age, then the cost estimate is then adjusted to reflect the consumed life. This method was 
applied in determining value for some investment properties and administrative buildings classified 
under the property and equipment class - land and buildings. This class of property and equipment is 
accounted for using the revaluation model in accordance with the requirements of lAS 16: Property, 
Plant and Equipment. 

c) Investment method! Income Capitalization method: This method estimates market value of the 
property-based income earned from the property. The value of the property under this method is 
determined by how much rental income the property generates. The market value of each property is 
determined by considering the annual market rent income of the property and an estimated 
multiplier/capitalisation factor (referred to as years purchase, YP). The capitalisation rate and 
multiplier are determined by the valuation experts based on the market for similar property. This 
method was applied in determining value for some investment properties. 

Valuation of Land 

The valuation for land was based on estimated land prices for specific locations across the country and 
value was determined by multiplying the land size with the estimated price per square metre. The 
estimated value of land forms part of the estimated fair value for investment properties and property, 
plant and equipment. 

Investment in debt and equity securities 

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments and 
available for sale is determined by reference to their quoted bid price at the reporting date if available. 
The fair value for non-quoted equity instruments has been determined using the net asset value 
methodology and the fair value of held to maturity investments is determined using the discounted cash 
flow methodology. 

(i) 	Trade and other receivables 

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, 
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. The fair value of trade and other receivables 
is determined at initial recognition. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (Continued) 
Determination offair value (Continued) 

c) Assets measured at fair value 

The table below shows the assets measured at fair value and their relevant fair hierarchy. 

As at 30 June 2021 

Level I 	 Level 3 Amount not Total as per 
measured at statement of 

fair value financial position 

Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Property and equipment 	 - 	 12.023 1.653 13.676 

Investment properties 	 - 	 221.582 - 221.582 

Asset held for sale 	 - 	 - - - 

Equity investments 	 156.225 	 259.584 41.561 457,370 

Total 

As at 30 June 2020 

Property and equipment 
Investment properties 
Equity investments 

Total 

133,501 	 510,265 	 93,044 	 736,810 

Level I Level 3 Amount not Total as per 
measured at statement of 

fair value financial 
position 

Frw Frw Frw Frw 

- 12,625 541 13,166 

- 218.562 - 218,562 

106,575 255,712 116,156 478,443 

106,575 486,899 116,697 710,171 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (Continued) 
Determination offair value (Continued) 

d) 	Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value 

The table below sets out the carrying values of financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value: 

30 June 2021 

Schemes 	 Pension Medical 	Cm-Il Maternity leave Ejo Ileza Total 

Frw millions Frw millions 	Frw millions Frw millions l'rw millions 
Frw'millio 

ns 

Financial assets 

Equity investments 	 41.561 - - 41.561 

Treasury bonds 	 145,170 35.856 	 - 6,831 15,583 203,440 

Treasury bills 	 49,986 - 	 - 3,935 - 53,920 

Commercial papers 	 29,296 - - - 29.296 

loan and advances to third 	 5,319 30,629 35.948 
parties - - - 

Mortgage loans 	 16 	- - 
- 16 

Advances to contractors 	 6,943 - 	 107 - - 7.051 

Dividend receivable 	 4,677 381 	- - - 5.058 

Otherassets 	 (2,411) 8,284 	 4077 7 - 9,956 

Due from/(Due to) other 	 (1.000) - I- ) 

schemes 1.000 (0) - 

Deposits with financial 	 142.602 131.479 13.545 287,626 
institutions - - 

Cash and bank balances 	 89,588 36,571 	 2.993 4.379 929 134.461 

Total 	 511,747 243,200 	 8,177 28,697 16,512 808,333 

Financial liabilities 

Amounts retained on 958 
construction contracts 	 903 55 	 I - - 

Benefits payable 	
- 8,383 	19,479 359 

- 28,221 

Other payables 	 5.005 445 	11.078 63 124 16.716 

Total 	 5,908 8,884 	30,558 422 124 45.895 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (Continued) 

30 June 2020 

Schemes 	 Pension 	 Medical 	 CBHI 	Maternity leave 
	

Ejo Heza 	Total 

	

Frwmillions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	FrwmiUions 
	

Frw'millions 	Frw'rnillions 

Financial assets 

Equity investments 

Treasury bonds 

Treasury bills 

Commercial papers 

Loan and advances to third parties 

Mortgage loans 

Advances to contractors 

Dividend receivable 

Other assets 

Due frornl(Due to) other schemes 

Deposits with financial institutions 

Cash and bank balances 

Total 

Financial liabilities 

Amounts retained on construction 
contracts 

Benefits payable 

Other payables 

Total 

107,687 8.469 - - 	 116.156 

126.597 23.799 - - 3,541 	153.937 

37.811 16.513 - - - 	 54.323 

14.715 - - - 	 14.715 

5.510 35,812 - 	 41.322 

63 - - - - 	 63 

8.700 13 4 - - 	 gRog 

731 527 - - 	 1.258 

2.932 1.596 1.638 33 
- 	 6.200 

2.146 1.571 (3.544) (173) - 	 - 

139.118 139.513 12.643 - 	 291,273 

49.013 25.791 5.347 8.234 926 	89.311 

495,113 	 253,603 	 3,446 	 20,737 	 4,467 	777,366 

886 	 60 	 1 	 - - 	 946 

5.450 	 20.495 	 324 - 	 26.269 

4.208 	 30 	 8.425 	 46 - 	 12.708 

5,094 	 5,540 	 28,920 	 369 - 	 39,923 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS ('contim,ed) 
8.3. Information about reportable segments 

8.3.1. Statement of comprehensive income per scheme 

Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI Scheme Maternity Leave Scheme Ejo hem Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Notes 	Frw'n.itlions I'n.'niillions Fns'millions I'rw'naiIlion Erw'mitlions Iarw'mlllions Erw'millions Erw'mltlions Fnv'milliorss 	Vne'millions Erw'millions Frw'mitlions 

Dalins s,ith members 

Contributions 9 	 100,821 102,178 57.277 5(3(4 64.754 48,315 7,909 7,416 100) 3,715 247,444 212,959 

l3ene8tspaid 10 	 (35,240) (30,460) (32,103) (27,597) (59,066) (52710) (1.677) (1.284) (5) 0 (120,100) (112.059) 

Net additions from dc'alins with 
'71

• 
 710 23• 78 100.900 members 71,573 25174 5,688 (4,394) 6,262 6,132 10,647 3.715 119,344 

Returns on investments 

Investirrent income 

('hange in fall value of financial 
assets at fair value through (110111 

or loss 
Change in (air value of n,Vcstntent 
properties 
Waite bacb/(nff) of prior year PV 
loss anti oilier adjustris,rirs 
Realized (losslgain on disposal of 
assets 
lnrpairnrent loss on linancual assets 
held at arrnartusesl cost 
Less: Investment nuanagentent 
expenses 

Net retains on insestments 

Crants 

Other incume 

Espendiluret 

Staff en xis 

Adnuuurusttatrve expenses 

Depreciation and urnortizatson 
charge 

Other expenses 

Total expenses 

Net income/(Ion) for the year 

Other comprehensive income 

Revaluatuour gaiW(Ioss) on property 
and equiprrteurt 

Increase in net assets for the year 

7 	 49,688 38,220 21,521 18.655 428 285 2,191 1.406 1.146 147 74974 58.714 

12 	 (47,431) (1.715) (1.868) 3.032 0 0 0 0 0 ii 

(49,299) 2.118 

13 	 0 79.126 0 (531) 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 78,595 

0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 

14 	
394 416 0 (31) I (7) 0 (0) 0 0 1119 378 

19 	
(3,270) 0 (1,252) 0 (38) Ii ((95) 0 (79) 0 (4,794) 0 

,4(4) ((.70)) (354) (314) (0) 0 3 0 0 Ii 
16 

(1,819) (2.0)5) 

(2,094) 114,346 18,047 21,612 391 278 2.036 1,406 1,067 147 19,457 137,789 

Il 	 241 tv,089 0 0 0 10,000 n 0 1.183 907 1.42.3 27.795 

8 	 762 746 544 362 5980 17 I I 31 38 7.326 1.165 

9 	 (1,916) (2,082) (2,203) (2.417) (5,878) (7163) (226) (251) (1,072) (297) (11.294) (12,211) 

20 	 (1958) (1,635) (1,455) (1,415) (2.877) (2.737) (167) (171) (139) (532) (6.597) (6.543) 

21 	
(423) (308) (008) (866) (145) (179) (12) (14) (48) (83) 

(1.436) (1.150) 

22 	 V')ijo) (6241 (3,978) (4.231) (532) (97) (0) 21 0 0 (6.411) (4.931) 

(6,197) (4.701) (8.444) (8.928) (9.432) (10.177) (406) (416) (1.258) 913) (25.738) (28.135) 

64,295 198.990 35,321 36.783 2.635 (4.277) 7.893 7.123 11.669 3,894 121,813 242.514 

23 	
1) 

320 	 2,260 	 0 	 2.507 

	

0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 

	

64,295 	199318 	35321 	39.043 	 2,635 	(4.277) 	 7,893 	 7.123 	 11.669 	 3,894 	121,813 	245.101 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS 'cofflinued, 

8.3.2. Statement of financial position per scheme 

Pntion Scirente Medical Scheme CBHI Scheme Maternity Lease Scheme Ejo llez2 Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Notes Frw'millions Frwmillions Frss'miltiorrs I"rw'millions Frw'millions Frwmillions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'niillions Frw'millionn 

Assets 

Property and 
24 

2540 1,311 1,049 11,623 76 lOS 6 IS S lb 
13,676 13153 

equipment 

Intangible assets 25 2.533 1,516 (0) 19 0 9 0 I 292 325 2.865 073 

Investment properties 20 208.896 205,875 12,686 12.686 0 0 0 0 0 0 221.582 218.562 

tnvcstincnl properties 7,684 7684 0 0 (I 0 0 0 0 0 

in the process of 27 7.684 7,684 

construction 

Ascls hcld for sale 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Equity investments 29 408.683 428.417 48.686 50027 0 0 0 0 0 0 457370 478,443 

Corporate bonds 30 23.441 24.754 0 0 0 0 0 ii 0 0 23,441 24,754 

treasury bonds 31 145,170 126.597 35.856 23,799 0 0 6,831 I) 15.583 3.541 203,440 153.936 

treasury bills 32 49.986 37.811 42,352 16.513 0 (I 3.935 0 0 0 96,272 54323 

('nirimescial papeis 33 29.296 14,715 0 0 13 0 0 0 0 0 29.296 14.715 

l.cian and advances to 
34 

5,319 5,510 3(1,1,29 35,812 0 0 0 0 0 0 
35,948 41,322 

Ilnid parties 

Mortgage loans 35 tO 63 0 0 C) 0 0 0 I) 0 lb 63 

Inventory 36 90 112 84 lOS 107 133 9 II 0 0 290 361 

Advances to 
37 

6.943 8,790 0 13 I 4 
6,944 8,808 

contractors 0 0 0 0 

Dividend receivable 38 4.07 731 381 527 0 0 0 0 0 0 5.058 1,258 

Other assets 39 (2.411) 2936 8.284 1.599 4,077 1,639 7 34 0 0 9,956 6,207 

Due froml)Due to) 
40 

(1,000) 2,145 (1 1,572 
(0) 0 

oIlier schemes 1,000 (3,544) (0) (173) C) 0 

Deposits with financial 
41 

142,602 139.118 131.479 139.513 0 0 13,545 12,r,43 0 0 
287.626 291,273 

nistitnliofls 

('ash and bank 89,586 40,014 36.571 25.792 2,93 5,360 4.379 8.235 929 926 

balances 
42 

134.461 89,327 

Total assets 1.124,092 1.057,097 358,058 319.699 8,254 3,790 28,712 20,766 16,808 4.810 1.535,925 1,406,162 

I.ess 	I.ialaililies 

Current liabilities 

Arriounts retained on I 0 0 0 
958 946 

construction Contr3CtS 903 886 55 60 I I) 

ISeneflIs payable 11 0 8.383 5,359 19,47') 20,495 359 324 0 0 28,221 26,177 

Oilier payables 43 5,005 4,231 445 428 11.078 8.233 63 46 124 0 16,716 12.937 

Deferred income 44 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 682 091 682 691 

Total liabilities 5,998 5,117 8,884 5,846 30,558 28,728 422 369 806 691 46,577 40,752 

Net auets available 1.1 18,185 1,051,980 349,174 313,853 (22,303) (24,938) 28,290 20,396 16,002 4.119 1,489,347 1.365,410 

for benefits 

Represenled by 

Capital 53 53 1,179 1,179 0 (I 0 0 0 0 1.232 1.232 

Accuniulaled nieniber 45 370.382 306,641 327,141 290,485 (22,303) (24,930) 28,281) 20,396 1.105 179 7111676 652,703 
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Pension Scheme 	 Medical Scheme 	 COHI Scheme 	 Maternity Leave Scheme 	 Ejo Ursa 	 Total 

2023 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Noes Envmillions Frw'milhlonn Frw'mIIllons Frw'milliona Frw'milIlon, Frw'nsillions Frw'millions Frw'milliona Frw'mllIlons Frw'niillionn Frw'millioun Frw'millions 

funds and retaincd 

eaznIn6s 
Revaluation rend -ye 46 581 581 6512 6,512 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,093 7,093 

Fairvalucreserve 47 34,505 81,936 14.340 15,677 0 0 0 0 0 0 48,845 97.613 

Iinallocatedpcnsion 
49 

0 0 1,910 0 
contribuftonsresvrvc 1,910 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Statutory reserves 48 704,753 602.768 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 704753 602768 

Ijoliczamcmber 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14,837 3941 
14,837 3,941 

funds 
50 

Tolalrenerven 1,118,185 1 1051,980 349,174 313,853 (22,303) (24,938) 28,289 20,396 16,002 4,119 1,489347 1.365,410 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCiAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

8.3.3. Statements of changes in members' funds and reserves 

As at 30 June 2021 
Statement reference Capital Occupational Pension Accumulated Ejo Ileza Fair value Revaluation Unallocated 

hazard reserves reserves member funds member reserve reserve pension 

and retained funds contributions 

earnings reserve 

Fns'rnillions Frw'million, Frw'rnillions Frwinillions Frw'millions Frw'millions Fns'millions Frw'millions 

Pension scheme 8 3.1 53 88,780 615,973 376,382 0 34,505 581 1,910 

Medical scheme 83.2 1.179 0 0 327,143 0 14.340 6,512 0 

Cifill scheme 83.3 0 0 0 (22,303) 0 0 0 0 

Maternity leave scheme 8 3 4 0 0 0 28.289 0 0 0 0 

Ejo Ileza 835 9 0 0 1.165 14,837 0 0 0 

Total 1,232 88,780 615,973 710,676 14,837 48,845 7,093 1,910 

As at 30 June 2020 

Statement reference ('apital Occupational Pension Accumulated Ejo Ileza Fair value Revaluation 'total 

hazard reserves reserves member funds member reserve reserve 

and retained funds 
earnings 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'n,illions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Pension scheme 83.1 53 70,670 532.098 366,641 0 81.936 581 1.051.980 

Mcdical scheme 832 1.179 0 0 290,485 0 15,677 6,512 313,853 

C13111 scheme 83.3 0 0 0 (24,938) 0 0 0 124,938) 

Maternity leave scheme 8 3 4 0 0 0 20.396 0 0 0 20.396 

Ejo llcza 8 3 5 1) 0 0 179 3.941 0 0 4.119 

Total 1,232 70,670 - 	 532,098 652.763 3,941 97.613 7,093 1,365,410 

Note: Since the establishment of Pension and Occupational hazards in 1962, the two schemes have been managed as one. Pension and 
Occupational hazards contributions rates being 6% and 2% respectively. Their reserves are apportioned as per the Presidential Order of 22 August 
1974. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

8.3.3.1. Statement of member's fund and reserves - Pension and occupational hazards scheme 

At I July 2019 

Adjrnrtsunr for 
prior year 

Increase in net 

assets ior tile 

yea' 

Revaluation 

guin/Oousl for 
the year 

At 30 June 

2020 

Al I July 2820 

Adjustment for 

print year 

Inncrease in net 

assets for the 

Rcvaluat tori 

gain'(Ioss) for 

the year 

Reclasstlicatnon 

of wtallocated 

contributions 

from other 

nayables to 

reserves 

i\dditionral 

unallocated 

contributions 

during tIre year 

Alkicaiiott of 

previously 

unallocated 

contributions 

during the )e3t 

Al 30 June 

2021 

Occupational llnards Resents Pensions resents 

Occupalional 	Occupational 	 Total Pension 
Aeeiirnulated 

Llnallocaled 

Capital 
7a'd1 	 haz,il 	

Vurldng 	
Occupational 

Pen 	 Total 
Working 

Total 
Revaluation pension 

Technical 	Steamy 	 Hazard 
Tiehitical 	 Pension 

capital 
slaiutors Fsndand 

reserve resent coninburions 
Totals 

capital 
resent 	 resent 	 reserves 

resent 

see 	 resents 
reserve 

Resents retained 
. 

earnings 
resene 

le,vsnIllnuna Pn,'nsjlljons 	Pnr'nnillloni 	l'rn,'nrtlhnns 	Fns'millsnns lrss'nsllljnni 	Fr,smjlliuns 	Ers,'injllians Frs,'nsittions Erss'millinos Frs,'nrittinns Fni'sntlljun, F'nt'millinas Fn.'nnillioas 

A B 	 (' 	 0 	EBrC+D p 	 g 	Ill'+ I-F.+lI 

63 47.201 	 6377 	 2.242 	 55.899 436.623 	 24.064 	460.607 516.586 131244 4.525 254 0 852662 

o 

13.087 	 610 	 255 	 14.771 64.768 	 6644 	 71.411 86.102 35397 77.411  

328 320 

113 61,168 	 7,006 	 2.497 	 70.670 501.390 	 30.708 	532.098 602.768 366.641 81.936 581 0 1.051.980 

53 61,168 	 7,006 	 2.497 	 70,670 501.390 	 30,70* 	$32.09* 602.76* 366.641 81,936 SOt 0 1.001.980 

0 (1 

17.057 	 763 	 289 	 10.110 76548 	 7.328 	 83.876 101.91)6 9.741 (47.431) 04.296 

0 Ii 

1.011 1.011 

105 11)6 

I(') (6) 

53 78.225 	 7.769 	 2,7*6 	 88.780 577.938 	 30,035 	615.973 704.753 376.382 34.505 581 1,910 1.119.185 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
8.3.3.2. Statement of member's fund and reserves - Medical scheme 

Capital 
Retained earnings Fair Value Reserve Revaluation Rcerve Total 

Frw'mijlions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'jnillions Frw'millions 

At I July2019 	 1.179 257.003 12.376 4.252 274,810 
Adjustment fo, prior year 	 0 0 0 0 (0) 
Profit for the year 	 0 33.482 3,301 0 36,783 

Revaluation loss for the year 	 0 0 0 2,260 2.260 

At30June2020 	 1,179 290,485 15,677 6,512 313,853 

AtlJuiy2020 	 1,179 290,485 15,677 6,512 313,853 

Adjustment for prior year 	 0 (531) 531 0 (0) 

Profit for the year 	 0 37.189 -1.868 0 35,321 

Revaluation loss for the year 	 0 0 0 0 0 

At30June2021 	 1,179 327,143 14,340 6,512 349,174 

8.3.3.3. Statement of member's fund and reserves - CBHI scheme 

Retained earnings 

Frw'millions 

At I July 2019 (20.662) 

Proftt./( Loss)for the year (4.277) 

At 30 June 2020 (24,938) 

At I July 2020 (24.938) 

Adjustiiicnt to opening balances 0 

Profttl(l.oss)fot the year 2,635 

At 30 June 2021 (22,303) 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

8.3.3.4. Statement of member's fund and reserves - Maternity leave scheme 

At 1 July 2019 

Adjustment for prior year 

Profit for the year 

At 30 June 2020 

At I July 2020 

Adjustment for prior year 

Profit for the year 

At 30 June 2021 

Retained earnings 

Frw'miltion, 

13,274 

0 

7,123 

20,396 

20,396 

0 

7,893 

28.289 

8.3.3.5. Statement of member's fund and reserves - Ejo Heza 

At 1 July 2019 

Adjustment for pnor year 

Member contributions 

(ioverninent contributions 

Unallocated member contributions 

Net mncorne!(loss) for the year 

At 30 June 2020 

At I July 2020 

Adustmciit for prior year 

Member contributions 

(jovernittent contributions 

Unallocated nsenmiber funds 

Net mncome/(loss) for the year 

Interest allocated to members 

At 30 June 2021 

Member funds Llnaliocateil member Retained earnings 
contributions 1 otal 

Frw'millions I"i-w'millions Frw'millions Frw'mitlions 

90 15 104 209 

I) 0 (105) (lOS) 

3,692 0 (3.692) 0 

23 0 (23) 0 

O 121 121 

0 0 3,894 3.894 

3,805 135 179 4.119 

3,805 135 179 4.119 

(30) (30) 

9,212 (9.212) 0 

1,440 (1.440) 0 

243 243 

11,669 11,669 

0 

14,458 379 1,165 16.002 

'I IN 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
8.3.4. Statement of cash flows per scheme 

Prniion Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI Scheme MaternIty leave Scheme Ejo Heza Total 
2021 	 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Frw'millionr 	Frw'millioim Frw'miltionr Frw'mallionr Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millionr Frw'miIlions 	Frw'milllons Frw'milliono Frw'millionu 

Increase in net assets For the 

year 64295 	 198.990 35.321 36.783 2.635 (4.277) 7.893 7.123 11,669 3,894 121.813 242.514 
Adjusted For: 

Depreciation and unionization 423 	 308 808 866 145 179 12 14 48 83 1,436 1,450 
Investment income (49.688) 	(38,220) (21524) (18.655) (428) (285) (2,191) (1.406) (1,14(,) (147) (74.978) (58,714) 
Realized gain on disposal of 

assets (equity inscstments, I'I'}. 

Assets held for safe and 

Investment properties) (394) 	 (416) 0 31 (I) 7 (0) (0) 0 0 (394) (378) 
Fair value loss!(gaun) on equity 

Investments 47,431 	 1,715 1,868 (3.832) 0 0 0 0 0 0 49,299 (2.118) 
Fair value lossl(garn) on 

investment properties 0 	(79126) 0 531 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (78.595) 
Writeback 0 	 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
tjniea)rsed foreign exchange loss (22) 	 158 0 0 0 0 0 tI 0 (3 (22) 158 
Government grants (241) 	(16.889) 0 0 0 (10.000) 0 0 (175) (241) (27.064) 
Impairment provision (IFRS 9 

I1CL) 3,270 	 0 1.252 0 38 0 155 0 79 4,794 0 
Other adjustments Olottening 

balances (365) 	 (339) (77) 176 (6) 06 (35) (6) 973 491 1631 
In-kind expenditure 1) 	 1) 0 0 0 0 ti 0 648 0 648 

In-kind income 0 	 0 0 0 0 0 ti 0 (731) 0 (731) 
Operating income for changes 

in working capital 64.708 	 66,181 17,648 15.900 2.383 (14,270) 5,834 5.724 11.623 3.572 102,196 77,107 
0 	 0 

(Incrcase)/Dccrease in adsaiice 
to contractors 1.657 	 349 12 46 4 2 0 (tol 0 0 1,674 397 
(lncrease)fDccrcase in other 
assets 5,338 	 475 (6,820) (1,222) (2,463) 1.287 27 (27) 0 0 43,919) 512 
(Incrcase)llkcreasc in amounts 

due frotnI(dan to) other schemes 3.145 	 (650) 1,572 1,359 (4,544) (767) (173) 58 0 0 0 (0) 
)Increase)!Docmea,uc In Inventory 22 	 (3) 21 (87) 26 30 2 (5) 0 0 71 (65) 
Incrcase'(Decrease) in 

niedical/itiaternity chums 

payablcs 0 	 0 3.025 (313) (1.016) 2,366 35 (88) 0 0 2.044 1,965 
lncrease/(Decrease) in oilier 

payables 774 	 (3,(,98) 17 (149) 2,845 49 (8 (20) 124 (0) 3,778 (3,819) 
Increase/(I)ecrcase) in contract 

retentions 17 	 314 (4) 0 Ii I (0) 0 0 0 12 315 
lncerease/)decreasc in deferred 
iticonme (I 	 0) 0 0 Ii 0 0 0 (9) it (9) Ii 
Increase in unattocated pension 

contributions reserve 1,910 	 (I It (I It 0 Ii It 0 1,91(1 0 

Net cash llowt from operating 

activities 77,572 	 62,907 15,470 15,533 (2,765) (11,303) 5,743 5,642 11,738 3,572 107.758 76,412 

(':isli floiss iisent in investing 

art is it it's: 
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Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI Scheme Maternity leave Scheme Ejo Ilry.st Total 
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Frw'millions Frw'mil)ions Erw'million, Frw'milllons Frw'millions Frw'mlllions Frw'milhions Frw'miIi(onn Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'mlllionu Frw'mlllions 

Dividend income received 2.875 5.850 1.184 117 0 0 0 0 0 0 4058 5,967 
Rent received 2.286 2,099 0 2347 0 0 0 0 0 0 2.286 4.446 
Other interest income received 2.711 2.332 0 0 428 285 354 439 53 13 
(current accounts, call deposit 

and mortgage loans) 3,546 3,070 
Purchases for Investment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
property under construction 0 13217) 0 (3,217) 
Purchase of property and (121) (118) (32) (151) (3) 2) 0 0 
equipment (1,611) (126) (1.767) (408) 
Purchaseofintangiblcasset (1,177) (1.396) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1.177) (1.396) 
Purchase of investnsent 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
properties (4,700) (17.121) (4,700) (17,121) 
Purchase of equity investments (27,698) (56.1 54) (528) (3.772) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (28,225) (59,926) 
Proceeds from disposal of Equity 0 0 0 (I 0 0 0 0 
Investments 0 0 0 0 

Purchase of Corporate bonds 0 (24.000) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (24,000) 
Receipts from settlement of 4,176 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Corporate bonds (inlerst and 
principal) 4,176 0 
Receipts from Treasury bond - 23.774 19,313 4,761 1,020 0 0 378 0 0 133 
coupon interest income received 28,91 3 20.466 
Recciptsfronslreasurvbill 40.240 91,3917 39.538 41.802 0 0 (3,648) 4,003 0 0 
maturities (Interest and principal) 76,129 137.201 
Receipts from ('oninrerical 3.778 17,486 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
papers maturities (principal and 

interest) 3,778 17.486 
Investment in Treasury bonds (27.576) (5) 2591) (14.242) (16.767) 0 0 (6.882) 0 (11787) (3,443) (60,486) (71,469) 

Investment in Treasury bills (47,718) (48,477) (62.657) ()6,270) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (110.375) (64,747) 
Investment in Coninrercial 0 0 0 0 0 0 
papers (16,915) 1)4.520) 0 0 (16,915) (14,520) 
Receipts from scitlenient of 5.183 9,511 1) 0 0 0 
loans and advances to third 

parties 165 426 0 0 5,348 9.937 
Additional loans and advances to 0 0 0 (10,000) 0 0 0 0 
third palsies during the year 0 0 (i (10.000) 

Settlement of mortgage (oasis 45 Ii 0 0 Ii (i 0 0 0 45 90 
Placement of term deposits (99,000) (131)00(1) (i 0 (13,000) (15,000) 
duringthe year (94,713) (148,898) 0 0 (206,713) (293,898) 
Settlement ofterni deposits 118,698 104,272 0 0 13.201 3,150 
during(hcys'ar 102,673 151,326 0 0 234,572 258,748 
(lncrcase)/Dccrease in call 0 0 0 0 
deposit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Refund of prior year purchase of 111 2135 0 0 (I 0 0 0 
Investment properties - Ruororo 

plots 0 0 0 3,135 
Proceeds from disposal ofPl'E 2,140 1.849 2.495 0 I 23 0 0 0 0 
and lnvestnriit properties 4,642 1,873 
Net cash used in investing 
actIvities (37,238) (70,864) (4.691) (17,859) 398 158 (9,5991) (7,420) (11,734) (3,296) (62,865) (99,280) 

Cashflow from financing 

activities 

Gosernment subsidies 241 16.889 0 0 0 (1)000 0 452 241 27,340 

(Sciseroment giants ietiirided (332) 0 
Increase in unidenri (3rd uieuiher 121 
conliitiiilions 0 1 1 1 	 -- 



Pinzton Scheme Medical Scheme CBI2I Scheme Maternity Ieae Scheme Ejo Heza Total 
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Frw'mliuions 1rw'miItions Frw'mIiiIonn Frw'miIlionm Frw'milhions Prw'miIiiona FWmillions, Frw'miiIioua Frw'mIlIIon* 	Frw'miition, Frw'miiIlonm Frw'mlliiona 
Net cauh from financing 
actIvities 241 16,889 0 0 0 10,000 0 0 0 241 241 27,129 

Net utcrca3c in cash and cash 
equivalents 40,575 8,991 10.779 (2.325) (2.367) (1.145) (3.856) (1.778) 4 517 45,135 4.260 
Cash and cash equivalents at I 
July 49.014 40,022 25.702 28,117 5,360 6.505 8,235 10,013 926 409 89,327 85.066 
Cash and cash equivalents at 
30 June 891588 49,014 36,571 25,792 2,993 5,360 4,379 8.235 929 926 134,461 89,327 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
9. Contributions 

Sub-Note 	 2021 
- 	 Frw'millions 

Pension scheme 	 10.1 	 106,821 
Medical scheme 	 10.2 	 57,277 

- 	Community Based Health Insurance (CBI-ll) scheme 	 10.3 	 64.754 
Maternity leave scheme 	 10.4 	 7,939 
EjoHeza 	 10.5 	 10,653 

247,444 

2020 
Frw'm llions 

1( 2.178 
1.334 

.8.315 
7.416 

3.7 IS 
21J2,959 

9.1. Contributions - Pension scheme 

- 	In accordance with Law. No 45/2010 concerning the responsibilities, organization and functioning of the 
Rwanda Social Security Board, pension contributions are determined at 8% of an employee's gross .alarv 
(exclusive of transport allowance), of which 5% is paid by the employer and 3% is paid by the employee. (ithe 
amounts paid by the employer, 2% relates to employee occupational hazards while 3% goes towar4 the 
employee's pension. 

	

2021 	 2020 

	

Frw'millions 	Fnv'm lions 
Pension And Occupational Hazard Contributions 	 106,821 	(3377 

Pension And Occupational Hazard Contribution Penalties 	 0 	 948 
- 	Pension and Occupational Hazard Contribution arrears 	 0 	2.853 

	

106,821 	12,178 

- 	9.2. Contributions - Medical scheme 

In accordance with Law. No 45/20 10 concerning the responsibilities, organization and functioning of the 
Rwanda Social Security Board, both employee and employer medical contributions are determined at 7.5% of an 
individual's basic salary. 

	

2021 	 2020 
- 	 Frw'millions 	Frw'milions 

Public medical contributions 	 45,697 	4O. 179 
Private medical contributions 	 10,741 	l.621 

- 	Pensioners medical contributions 	 839 	 535 

	

57,277 	.1,334 

- 	9.3. Contributions - CBHI scheme 

In accordance with Article 2 of the Prime Minister's order No.034/01 of 13/01/2020 related to the Cornrn1nit\-
Based Health Insurance Scheme contributions, contributors to community-based health insurance are the 
following: 

The Government. 
Employees in State organs and those in private sector. 

- 	3. Entities providing health insurance services operating in Rwanda. 
Telecommunication companies. 
Petrol and gas oil trade companies. 

- 	CBHI contributions received by RSSB during the year were as follows: 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

2021 
Frw'millions 

Government contributions 11,779 
Members contributions 25.537 
Insurance contribution 7,939 

- 	 Employees contributions 4.830 
Telecommunication contribution 5,244 
Petrol and gas oil contributions 6,194 

- 	 CBHI Contribution Partners 0 
Other CBFII Subsidies 3.075 
Contributions - RDB 36 
Contributions - RNEC 120 

64,754 

*Amount for partner contribution from Imbuto Foundation has been reclassified to other income as grants. 

During the year the Prime minister's order No.034/01 of 13/01/2020 introduced new sources of BHI 
contribution income which include Employees, Telecommunication companies, Patrol and Gas oil and ther 

- 	CBHI subsidies. 

9.4. Contributions - Maternity leave scheme 

Pursuant to Law N °  003/2016 of 30/03/2016 establishing and governing maternity leave benefits scheme. The 
contribution for maternity leave benefits is equal to zero-point six percent (0.6%) of the salary to which the 
contribution is subscribed. The employer and the employee each contribute zero-point three percent (0.3%) 9f 
the salary to which the contribution is subscribed. 

- 	 2021 	 2020 

	

Frw'millions 	Fn%'milJions 
- 	Maternity Contributions 	 7,939 	7.416 

	

7,939 	7,416 

9.5. Contributions/Savings - Ejo Heza 

Frw 
2020 

Ilions 
9.828 
3.842 
5.380 
1.093 
3.9 IS 

642 
2,914 

701 
0 
0 

8,315 

Members' contributions/savings 
Government contributions to member savings 

10. Benefits paid 

- 	Pension and Occupational hazards scheme 
Medical scheme 
Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI) scheme 

- 	Maternity leave scheme 
Ejo Heza scheme 

2021 p020 
Frw'millions Frw'milions 

9,212 692 
1,440 23 

10,653 3,715 

2021 020 
Sub-Note Frw'millions Frw'mill ons 

10.1 35,248 30468 
10.2 32,103 27,597 
10.3 59,066 52710 
10.4 1,677 1 284 

ç 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

10.1. 	Benefits paid - Pension and Occupational hazards scheme 

2021 2020 
- Frw'millions Frw'mi lions 

Benefits paid to pensioners 27,575 2 .788 
Benefits paid to deceased members' beneficiaries 6,252 .522 
Sub-total benefits paid 33,827 2 .311 
Incapacity benefits 371 343 
Other occupational hazards 1,050 814 

- 	 Subtotal - Occupational hazard paid 1,421 
Total benefits paid 35,248  

10.2. 	Benefits paid - Medical scheme 

- 2021 020 
Frw'millions Frw'millons 

Medical Procedures from partner hospitals, health centers and clinics 22,477 18952 
Partners pharmacy costs 9,626 8645 

32,103 27597 

- 	 10.3. 	Benefits paid - CBHI scheme 

2021 2p20 
- Frw'millions Frw'millins 

CBHI medicine 21,966 25.954 
CBHI medical procedures 37,100 26156 

- 59,066 52,110 

10.4. 	Benefits expense - Maternity leave Scheme - 

2021 200 
Frw 'millions Frw 'mi1liois 

Maternity leave benefits 1,677 I .24 
1,677 1,24 

10.5. Benefits expense - Ejo Heza Scheme 

	

2021 	200 

	

Benefits 	
Frw 'millions 	Frw 'millio S 

	

5 	 0 

	

5 	 0 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
11. Investment income 

RSSB generates most of its income from interest on Treasury bonds and bills, term deposits with financial institutions and current 
accounts. Refer to notes 11.1 to 11.3 for further details. 

Pension and 
Occunational hazard Medical Scheme CEll! Maternity Leave Ejp ileza Total 

Scheme 

Sub note 	2021 	2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

F..Uiio. 	Yr',Ii& F.'mW,n. Fn.'n.U. Fn.'..,UI Fn.'n..Itk,, Fn.',nlib... Fn,n.IIb.,, 

Dividendincome 11.1 	6,842 	2,092 1,038 943 0 0 0 0 0 0 7.880 3,036 

Rental income 11.2 	2,286 	2,099 394 608 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,680 2.707 

Interest income: o 
Treasury bills 4.938 	4,622 2,924 1.758 0 0 305 174 0 0 8.167 6,554 

Term deposits with financial institutions 11.3 	12,216 	11,875 12.320 12,256 0 0 1,171 793 0 0 25,707 24,924 

Commercial papers 2.246 	1537 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2.246 1.537 

Government bonds 0 	 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Corporate bonds 2,976 	754 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2.976 754 

Treasury bonds 15,473 	12,909 2,748 1,351 0 0 360 0 1.094 133 19,675 14,394 

Mortgage loans 17 	32 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 32 

Current accounts 2.695 	2,300 
2,097 1,739 428 285 354 439 53 13 5,627 4,777 

49,688 	38,220 21,521 18,655 428 285 2,191 1,406 1,146 147 74,974 58,714 

-- 	
55 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (conlinued) 

11.1. Dividend income 

Pension Scheme Medical Scheme Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millious Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'niillions 

4,363 0 III 0 4,474 0 

199 0 82 0 281 0 

302 316 0 0 302 316 

0 383 0 0 0 383 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

362 0 0 0 362 0 

157 67 47 20 204 87 

II 0 0 0 II 0 

5,393 766 240 20 5,633 786 

276 277 0 0 276 277 

975 998 798 923 1.772 1,921 

61 52 0 0 61 52 

138 0 0 0 138 0 

1,449 1,326 798 923 2,247 2,249 

6,842 2,092 1,038 943 7,880 3,036 

Local investments 

Bank of Kigali Limited 

Bralirwa Limited 

Crystal Telecom Ltd 

Ruliba Clays Limited 

l&M Bank 

Cogebanque 

lnyangye Industries Limited 

Rwanda Investment Group Limited 

Rwanda stock exchange 

Sub-total (I) 

Foreign investments 

Safaricom Limited 

Eastern and Southern Africa Trade Development Hank 

Afrexim Bank 

KCB Bank Group Limited 

Sub-total (2) 

Grand total (1+2) 

56 



a 	 I 	 I 	 I 	I 	 I 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

11.2. Rental income 

Pension Scheme Medical Scheme .11 	 Maternity Leave 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 	 2020 	 2021 	 2020 	 2021 2020 

Frw'millions Frw'milllons Frw'milliona Frw milhio*i Frw'millions 	Frw'milhions 	Prw'milIions 	Frw'anillions 	Frw'millions 	Erw'mllIions 

Kacyiru Executive Apartments 207 366 - - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 207 494 

GrandPcnsionPlaza 830 1,087 - - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 830 1.256 

Other Rental income 33 II - - - 	 - 	 - 	 33 37 

Nyanza Pension Plaza 77 93 - - - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 77 107 

Karongi Pension Plaza 119 30 - - - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 119 44 

Musanzc Pension Plaza 212 82 - - 	 - 	 - 	 212 98 

Rwamagana Pension Plaza 8 IS - - - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 8 Il 

CiystaI Plaza 2 37 - - - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 2 45 

Nyanilarama Plaza 793 - - - - 	 - 	 793 0 

Doctors' piaza 

Towcrl 
- 36 36 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 36 41 

Tower II 6 - 358 467 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 364 567 

2,286 1,742 394 502 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 2,680 2,707 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

11.3. Interest income on term deposits with financial institutions 

Pension Scheme Mcdicl Scheme Maim-niCy L.cay 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Frw'millions 	Frw'miUions Frw'niillions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions 	Frw'milliona Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 

Interest income on long term deposit 

Development Bank ofRwanda (BR!)) 2.540 2,256 2,668 2.610 - - 5,208 4.867 

ABBank 120 120 - - - - 120 120 

Batik ofKigali 741 351 - - - - 741 351 

Bank Populatre du Rwanda (Atlas Mara) 124 85 1,175 808 - - 1.299 893 

Commercial Bank of Africa (Rwanda) - 36 - - - - - 36 
ZigamaCSS 429 421 - - - - 429 421 

sub-total (1) 3,954 3,270 3,843 3,418 - - 7,797 6,699 

Intercst income on short term deposits 

Access Hank Limited - - - I - - 
- 

BanquePopulaircS.A 691 942 1.116 1.058 - 
- 1.808 2,000 

Cogebanque 1.264 1,519 1.320 1.385 480 191 3.064 3,095 

Bank ofKigali Limited 2.989 2,997 2,479 2,175 394 387 5.862 5,560 

Ecobank Rwanda Limited 484 386 2 77 - 

- 486 463 

KC'H Rwanda limited 1.390 1.204 1,025 - 2,229  
- 2.185 

I&M Batik Rwanda Limited - - 
1.250 187 - 1,187  

- 1.250 

Zigama CSS 425 449 346 
- 

- 771 809 

Equity bank limited - 161 975 1,376 282 214 1.257 1.751 

tlnguka Batik 75 30 - - - - 75 30 

AB Bank 74 73 - - 
- 74 73 

LETSIIEGO - - - - - - - 

Commercial Hank of Africa (Rwatida) 58 42 - - 15 - 74 42 

Bank of Aftica 
495 

419 
195 193 - - 690 613 

Sub-total (2) 7,945 8,222 8,477 8.837 1.171 793 17,594 17,853 

Interest income on call deposit 

KCB Rwaitda Limited 73 190 - - - - 73 190 

Sub-total (3) 73 190 - - - - 73 190 

Interest income on B1 Nest Fund 

Ilank of Kigali Nest Fund 243 194 - - - 243 194 

Stib-total (4) 243 194 - - - 243 194 

Grand totitl (1+2+3) 12,216 11,875 12.320 12.256 1.171 793 25.707 24.924 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

12. 	Gain/(loss) on valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Pension and Occupational Hazards Medical Scheme Iiai Scheme 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millious Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Subsidiaries 
Ultimate Developers Limited (UDL) 884 (1,164) 0 0 884 (1.164) 
Akagera Game Lodge SA (AGL) (742) (399) 0 0 (742) (399) 
SONARWA Life Assurance Limited o 0 0 0 0 0 

Rwanda Foreign Holding Investment Company (RFIHC) 1,012 1,739 438 753 1,450 2,492 
Edge Hostels Limited 8 105 0 0 8 105 

SONARWA General Insurance Limited 860 (90) 0 0 860 (90) 
Joint venture 

Building Materials Investment subsidiaries (RULIBA and EAGI) (1.309) 281 0 0 (1,309) 281 

Associates 

Rwanda Development Bank (BRD) 3,580 905 0 0 3,580 905 
tjltimate Concepts Limited 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Inyange Industries (486) (241) 0 0 (486) (241) 

Bank of Kigali (BK) (6,059) (4,242) (154) (108) (6,214) (4.350) 
Cogebanquc 0 0 1,357 961 1.357 961 
Crystal 'l'elccom 12.968 1,216 0 0 12,968 1,21 

horizon SOPYRWA Limited 90 291 0 0 90 291 

Rwanda Enterprise Investment Company (REIC) (2) 62 0 0 (2) 62 
RNIT Iterambere Limited 304 269 0 0 304 269 

CIMERWA Limited 2.914 (4) 2,914 (4) 5,827 (9) 

Eastern Province Investment Corporation (EPIC) (848) (2.028) 0 (848) (2.028) 

Other equity investments 0 
Rwanda Investment Group (RIG) (96) 32 (29) 9 (124) 41 

Prime Economic Zone Limited (formerly Rwanda Free l'rade Zone) (16) 314 0 0 (16) 314 
New Forest Rwanda Limited (NFCR) 0 0 0 0 0 C) 

Rwanda Stock Exchange (RSE) 25 4 0 0 25 4 

Eastern and Southern Trade Development Bank (formerly P'I'A Bank) 2.208 2,154 2.227 2.213 4,435 4,367 

Brasserie Et l.imonaderic Du Rwanda (BRALIRWA) (368) (184) (151) (76) (519) (259) 
l&MBank 211 0 0 0 211 0 

New Forest Company I lolidings Uk (I td) 0 0 () 1) 0 0 

---------------- - ------------------------------ 	 -----------.--------------.------------------------ - 	
-- 59 
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Pension and Occupational Hazards 
Medical Scheme 	 Total Scheme 

2021 	 2020 	 2021 	 2020 	 2021 2020 
Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'milhions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 

African Export-Import Bank (AFREXIM Bank) 	 492 	 289 	 0 	 0 	 492 289 
Safaricom 	 2,340 	 75 	 0 	 0 	2,340 75 
EquityGroup 	 4,704 	 (1,098) 	 0 	 0 	4,704 (1,098) 
Ouch Networks Rwanda Limited (KT Rwanda) 	 0 	 0 	(8,469) 	 84 	(8,469) 84 
Rwanda Ultimate GolfCourse 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 0 
World Vu Satellites Limited 	 (35,895) 	 0 	 0 	 0 	(35,895) 0 
KCB Group 	 1.418 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 1.418 0 
LEAF Pharmaceuticals Limited 	 (35.627) 	 0 	 0 	 0 	(35.627) 0 

(47,431) 	 (1,715) 	(1,868) 	3,832 	(49,299) 2,118 

Fair value gain/loss is determined as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the fair value established. There were 
significant gains realised on Eastern and Southern Africa Trade Development Bank, Rwanda Development Bank, CIMERWA, 
COGEBANQUE, SAFARICOM, Equity Group, Crystal Telecoiri/MTN Rwanda and Rwanda Foreign Investments Holding Company. 
However, these were offset by significant losses on World Vu Satellites Limited, Bank of Kigali, Leaf Pharmaceuticals, BMI, Eastern 
Province Investment Corporation and KT Rwanda Network. For further details refer to note 27. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
13. Gain/(loss) on valuation of investment properties 

Description of property Pension Medicil 
Total 

2021 	 2020 2021 	 2020 2020 

Prw'millions 	 Frw'milliona Frw'millions 	 Frwmillions Frw'nullions 

Kacyiru Executive Apanmcnts - 	 1.199 - 1,199 

GRAND PENSION PLAZZA - 	 2,369 - 	 - 2369 

MUSANZE PENSION PLAZZA - 	 33 - 	 - 33 

RWAMAGANA PENSION PLAZZA • 	 (920) - 	 - (920) 

NYANZA PENSION PIAZZA - 	 (1137) - (1.137) 

KARONGI PENSION PLAZZA - 	 (1.025) - 	 - (1.025) 

RESIDENTIAL HOUSE KIVOVU - 	 23 . 	 - 23 

KIYOVU RESIDENTIAL HOUSE LAND - 	 179 - 	 - 179 

NYAGATAREHOIJSES - 	 (5) - (5) 
LAND FOR INVESTh4ENT PROPERTIES - 	 435 - 	 - 435 

LANDFORINSURANCEPI.AZZAS - 	 1,103 - 	 - 1,103 

FORMER CECFR PLOT - 	 361 - 	 - 361 

GACULIRO VISION CITY LAND - 	 31.635 - 	 - 31,635 

CRDI-RIJGF.NGE LAND - 	 418 - 	 - 418 

KINYINYA LAND - 	 31.584 - 	 . 31584 

BATSINDA PARCEl. - 	 6,230 - 	 - 6,230 

NYAGATARE LAND - 	 424 - 	 - 42.1 

RWAMAGANA PARCEL I&II - 	 2.957 - 	 - 2,957 

NYANZA PLOT - 	 421 - 	 - 421 

RU8AVU PLOT - 	 (2) - 	 - (2) 

I.AND FROM GPO - 	 (530) - 	 - (530) 

RATSINI)A PIPEliNE INVESTMENT - 	 23 - 	 - 23 

GISOZI PLOT - 	 963 - 	 - 963 

KIGALI GOLF ('LEO LAND - 	 1,042 1,042 

CRYSTAL PLAZA BUILDING - 	 1.345 - 	 - 1,345 

Land for investInent propczty - 	 - - 	 413 413 

Twin Tower 2 - 	 - - 	 (941) 944) 

Total - 	 79,126 - 	 (531) 78,595 

RSSB completed valuation of its investment properties in June 2019 and adopted the revalued balances at 1 July 2019. The last revaluation had 
been conducted in 2012. Over this period, there has been significant increase in value of land in Gaculiro and Kinyinya. There was DO valuation 
of investment properties done in 2021. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

Realised gain/loss on disposal of assets 

Pemion Scheme 	 MedicI Scheme CBIII Scheme tlptesniIy leave Scheme 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Frw'mlllions Frw'milhioos 	Frw'mlIlionn Frwmilhoni Frwmilllan. 	Frw'millions 	Erw'millionn Frwmillionn ErwmilIion. 	Frwmillionn 

Realised gain/(Loss) on disposal of Administrativc assets 	 (0) (16) 0 (31) I (7) 0 (0) I (54) 

Realised gainf(Loss) on disposal of Investment properties 	 393 419 0 0 0 0 0 0 393 419 

Renliscdgain/(Loss)ondisposalofBatsiridahouses 	 0 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13 

394 416 0 (31) () 0 (0) 378 

Impairment loss on financial assets held at amortised cost 

Ejo Ileza 
Emancuil assets at amortised cost 	 Pension Medical CDIII Maternity leave Total 

2021 	2020 2021 	2020 2021 2020 	2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Fnv'nüflioni 	Cn.mIii.ani F,w'mittioa. 	Frwn.iiiio... En.m.ttio,, PrwmiUi,ns 	Era m,)Iians Fn.mdtion, Framillioni En. niitiian Fn.miiiio,, En. milijan, 

Corporatcbonds 	 (113) - - 

Treasury bonds 	 (700) (173) - (33) (74) (981) 

Treastuybills 	 (241) (204) - (19) (4(.4) 

('onutiercial papers 	 (804) - - (804) 

loan and advances to third parties 	 (26) - - - (26) 

Mortgage loans 	 (2) - - - (2) 

Advances to Contractors 	 (190) - - - (190) 

Dividend and other income receivable 	 (21) (I) - - (22) 

Otherasseis 	 (22) 	 - (41) (26) - (89) 

Dcposits with financial institutionS 	 (708) 	 - (653) - (67) (1.428) 

Cash and bank balances (only bank balances) 	(443) (180) (13) (36) (5) (677) 

(3.270) 	 - (1.252) 	 - (38) - 	 (155) - (80) - (4.794) 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

16. Investment management expenses 

Pension Scheme Medical Scheme Total 
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Frw'mjlljons Frw'millions Frw'mjlljons Frw'milhons Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Kacyiru executive apartments 161 338 - - 161 339 

Kacyiru Estate - - - - - 

Grand PensionPiaza 413 452 - - 413 504 

Nyanza Pension Plaza 69 97 - - 69 97 

Karongi Pension Plaza 62 105 - - 62 III 

Musanze Pension Plaza 71 120 - - 71 120 

Rwamagana Pension Plaza 63 101 - - 63 105 

EX-CVL buildings 19 58 - - 19 58 

Nyarutarama Plaza 75 19 - - 75 19 

Vision City and Kinyinya - 3 - - - 3 
Management fees Tower 11 and Doctors plaza - - 322 238 322 254 
Othcr investment management and administrative expenses 532 209 32 60 564 403 

1,464 1,503 354 298 1,819 2,015 

17. Grants 

Grants to CR1-H scheme- arrears 
Grants to CR1-I! scheme- current 

Grants to Pension scheme 

Grants to Ejo ileza 

2021 2020 
Sub note 	 Frw'niilljons Frwmillions 

17.1 	 0 10,000 

241 16.889 

17.2 	 1.183 907 

1,424 27,795 

63, 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continue(l 

17.1. Government grants for CBHI Arrears 

	

2021 	 2020 

	

Frw'millions 	 Frw'millions 

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) as at 1 July 	 (25.015) 	 (20,662) 

Prior year adjustment 	 (-) 	 (-) 

CBHI net income/(loss) for the year (without Government grants) 	 2,635 	 (14,353) 

Accumulated surplus/(dcficit) without Government grant 	 (22,380) 	 (35,015) 

Government grant received during the year 	 - 	 10,000 

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) as at 30 June 	 (22,380) 	 (25,015) 

There was no Government grant provided during the year. Despite improvement in CBHI collections that financed the year operations, CBI-1l 
scheme still had arrears of Fnv 22,380,257,531 as at 30 June 2021. The scheme still requires continued Government support to finance the 
CI3HI funding deficit, especially the balance carried forward from prior years. 

17.2. Government grants to Pension scheme 

In 2020, RSSB (Pension fund) received Government grant of Fnv 16,888,519,600 in form of land donation for Kigali Golf Club investment. 
This was a one-off donation for last year and therefore no additional grants during the year. 

17.3. Grants to Ejo Heza 

AFR cash grants AFR capital grants Cost cash grants Total 

Frss"millions Frw'millions Fn' 'millions Frw'millions 

Year ended 30 June 2021 

New grants utilised during the year 0 0 1,135 1,135 

Capital grant amortised during the year 0 48 0 48 

0 48 1,135 1,183 

Year ended 30 June 2020 

New grants utilised during the year 648 - 175 823 

Capital grant arnortised during the year . 83 - 83 

648 83 175 907 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

Cash grants 

The cash grants are cases where funds were transferred to Ejo Heza and utilised to incur specific expenditure during the financial year 
(Government) or where the grantor incurred expenditure on behalf of Ejo Heza (AFR). For the year ended 30 June 2021, cash grants represent 
funds from Government of Rwanda that were utilised for operating expenses of Ejo Heza scheme. No cash was received from AFR in 2021. 

Capital grants 

Ejo Heza received support in terms of assets from Access Finance Rwanda (AFR). The capital grant represents the amortised portion of the 
assets donated and is equivalent to the depreciation and amortisation charged for the year to utilise the assets. This amount is attributed to 
depreciation on computers and office equipment and arnortisation charge for the software donated to Ejo Heza by AFR. 

18. Other income 

Pension Scheme 	 Medical Scheme 	 CI4BI Scheme 	 Maternity Leave Scheme 	 Ejo 8 leza 	 Total 

	

2021 	 2020 	 2021 	 2020 	 2021 	 2020 	 2021 	 2020 	 2021 	 2020 	 2021 	 2020 

	

Frss'mjllions 	Frw'milljons 	Frw'tnihjons 	Frw'miltions 	lrw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frwmillions 	Frw'miHions 	Frw'millions 	Fns'niillions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 

Issue of 
clearing 	 483 	 105 	 18 	 17 

cerlificates 	 199 	 31 	 I 	 0 	 0 	 336 	 519 
Issue oi card 	

0 	 18 	 7 	 0 	 0 
duplicates 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 18 	 7 
Exchange rate 	

263 	 421 
gain 	 563 	 337 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 984 	 601 
Penalties 

received 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 
CI3HI Sales of 

Medical and 	
0 

Members 

Cards 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 
Grant to C131 II 

- Inibuto 	 0 
Foundation 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 5,957 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 5,957 	 U 
Interest 

income on Ejo 

lIeza 	 0 

operational 

account 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 31 	 38 	 31 	 38 

Total 	 762 	 746 	 544 	 362 	 5.988 	 17 	 1 	 1 	 31 	 38 	 7.326 	 1,165 

6.5 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEM'ENTS (continued) 

19. Staff costs 

Description Pension Scheme Meditsl Scheme CBHI Maternity Leave Ejo Hoza Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Frw'mdtions Frw'nalltiona Frw'mltthns Frw'inlltiani Frw'mltOons 	Frw'mittlona Frw'millioas Vrw'mittions Fn,'mtHiou, 	Frw'milhiorn F,w'mltIiona 	Frw'nutlioos 

Basic salaries 1306 1,363 1501 1.616 4,034 4.896 155 168 985 247 7,980 8,290 

Orertime 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Pay in lieu of leave 0 0 0 I 0 I 0 0 0 0 0 3 

Technical allowances 12 13 II 12 14 16 I I 0 0 38 42 

Responsibility allowances 31 4 28 3 99 67 4 I C) 0 160 74 

Social security contributions 79 81 90 95 238 286 9 10 0 0 416 471 

Medical insurance contributions 99 99 113 117 304 357 12 12 0 0 528 584 

Maternity Leave contributions S 5 5 6 14 17 I I 0 0 25 28 

Transport allowances 143 147 177 185 $31 637 IS 16 0 0 867 985 

house allowances 190 194 217 227 580 687 22 24 0 0 1,009 1.133 

Notice and dismissal costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Retirement benefits 7 14 II 5 Il 4 0 0 0 0 29 23 

Funeml charges 0 2 0 I 4 3 0 0 0 0 4 6 

Training and internship expenses 17 115 16 108 20 138 2 II 0 0 55 372 

Employee benefits in kind 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other Allowances& Indemnities 25 31 21 28 24 32 5 6 0 0 

Personnel sport activities 0 7 0 7 0 9 0 I 0 0 0 23 

Otherbcnetits 3 7 I 5 2 6 0 0 87 51 93 69 

Death indemnities 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 6 

Membership fees 2 I II I 2 0 0 0 0 15 4 

Total 1,916 2,082 2,203 2,417 5,878 7,163 226 253 1,072 297 11,294 12,211 

66 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

20. Administrative expenses 

Description Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI Maternity Leave Ejo Ileza Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 	2020 2021 2020 

•u. r..', rn..ua.. 	Fr. .5b. rr.aar.. rr..&Ja 	Fr.niihr.. Fr...O. 	Fr,n.tb.i 

Water and electricity 
56 69 53 48 67 49 5 4 0 181 170 

Fuel 
11 16 10 15 13 19 1 2 0 36 51 

Office equipment 
80 77 121 93 102 91 8 7 0 310 268 

Other equipment 
33 92 32 86 42 109 3 9 0 III 296 

Office supplies 
0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 o 0 o 

lTflquipment 
52 76 48 71 62 90 5 7 0 167 245 

Transport ofstaffin the Country 
169 196 125 139 187 197 22 23 19 	24 522 579 

Transport expenses for staff abroad 
I 12 0 II I IS 0 I 0 2 39 

Transport expenses for Non staff 
45 30 46 28 136 156 4 3 0 232 216 

Transport of equipment 
I 0 I 0 I 0 0 0 0 2 0 

Building maintenance 
20 110 12 14 16 1 I 0 136 49 

Vehicle maintenance 
6 3 5 3 7 4 I 0 0 IS 10 

Maintenancc of equipment and Furnitures 
8 9 7 9 9 II I I 0 24 30 

Cleaning of buildings 
36 37 34 35 43 44 4 4 0 117 119 

Mission 

Allowance in the country 55 85 51 80 65 102 5 8 0 176 275 
Mission allowances abroad 

I 35 I 33 2 42 0 3 0 5 113 
Representation fees 

0 I 0 I 0 I 0 0 0 0 3 
Staff replacement Ices 

0 0 0 3 19 18 0 0 0 19 21 
Documentation & abonnemcnt 

0 2 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 6 
Publication 

47 20 44 19 57 26 5 2 0 153 67 
Sensitization 

0 I 0 I 0 I 0 0 36 	84 36 86 
Branch rental expenses 

40 54 38 51 48 66 4 5 0 130 176 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Other rental/hire service 

74 156 38 56 48 69 4 6 0 165 286 
Security services 

73 81 63 60 81 77 7 6 0 224 225 
Maititenance of buildings 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Vehicle maintenance 

It 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
X'lissmuim allosvaiicc - 	sitIus the CoLiliIiy 

0 (I tt 0 11 I) it (I  
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Description Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CDIII Maternity leave Ejo Heza Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Fn,nt& rr.'aai... F,aIMe. Ft&.,. 

Refreshment fees 
30 35 29 33 43 42 3 3 0 105 113 

Communication expenses 
66 74 66 78 126 135 7 9 5 10 271 306 

Internet fecs 
117 108 110 122 323 218 II 10 0 4 561 463 

Loyems de service 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

FeesfortheupgradeofthelTsystcm — llmodemiaationcoats 
347 15 116 14 148 17 12 I 0 623 47 

Honorarium 
456 236 179 191 312 244 19 20 0 965 691 

Casual wages 
I 8 I I I I 0 0 0 3 10 

Casual wages 
0 I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Bank charges 
19 25 5 14 289 710 3 2 0 316 751 

RRA commission fees 
49 41 46 38 59 49 5 4 0 158 132 

BNR supervision fees 
74 72 74 72 0 0 28 27 0 176 170 

CBHI bank charges 
0 0 0 0 570 116 0 0 0 570 116 

SACCOs Commission Fees o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Cowl costs - CBHI 
0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 3 0 

Other services 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 80 411 80 411 

Total 1,958 1,688 1,455 1,415 2,877 2,737 167 171 139 532 6,597 6.543 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

21. Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI Maternity Leave Ejo Heza Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Fn.LflI.e. Fn.,flhIoo, F,nIUMe, Fn,.,flftm. Fn,'JIIt.a. FIII1a.. Fn,'nUIio,. Fwo,1II6n, Fn.'mafl..,, 	n,ilIi.,., Fn,n,IIiloa. F,.,alUk,n. 

Property and Equipment 

Buildings 22 22 579 578 0 0 0 0 0 0 601 600 

Motor vehicles 0 6 0 6 I 9 0 0 0 0 I 21 

Oflicc equipment 3 3 3 3 3 3 0 0 4 4 13 13 

Furniture and 6ttings 93 51 63 58 74 58 6 5 0 0 236 171 

Computers 115 68 45 64 57 84 5 7 7 43 299 266 

Kitchen cquipmcnt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Depreciation expense on property and equipment 303 ISO 639 709 136 154 II 12 11 47 1.150 1,071 

Computcrsoftwarc 120 158 119 157 9 25 I 2 36 36 286 379 

Amortisatiooexpenseonlntangibleasseta 120 158 119 IS? 9 25 1 2 36 36 286 379 

Total depreciation and amortization expense 423 308 808 866 145 179 12 14 48 83 1,436 1,450 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

22. Other expenses 

Description 	 Pension scheme 	 Medical scheme 	 CBHI scheme 	 Maternity leave scheme 	 Total 

2021 	2020 	2021 	2020 	2021 	 2020 	2021 	2020 	2021 	 2020 

Frw'milliona 	Frw'mihlons 	Frwmiflioni 	Frw'mltIions 	Frwmllllons 	Frw'mIllions 	Frwmillion, 	Frw'niillions 	Frw'mlllions 	Frw'milhlons 

Fire Insurance 	 IS 	 45 	 10 	 32 	 8 	 42 	 I 	 2 	 37 	 121 

Moto vehicle insurance 	 2 	 4 	 2 	 4 	 3 	 5 	 0 	 0 	 7 	 14 

Comprehenstve all risks 	 24 	 0 	 14 	 0 	 12 	 0 	 I 	 0 	 52 	 0 

Dtrcctors sitting allowance 	 0 	 0 	 9 	 6 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 9 	 6 

Conunission 	 6 	 2 	 6 	 2 	 8 	 2 	 I 	 0 	 21 	 5 

Corporatc Social Responsibility 	 34 	 547 	 32 	 116 	 41 	 148 	 3 	 12 	 110 	 823 

Contribution to ISSA and ECASSA 	 3 	 7 	 3 	 23 	 4 	 9 	 0 	 I 	 10 	 40 

CUncncy Exchange loss 	 0 	 158 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 158 

CBHI subsidy 	 0 	 0 	5.728 	3,553 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	5.728 	3,553 

Forcignexchangediffcrcncc 	 362 	 19 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 362 	 19 

Legal fees 	 50 	 29 	 3 	 II 	 IS 	 35 	 0 	 I 	 70 	 76 

Seminar expenses 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 

Fiscal penalties 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 

Conference and woitshops 	 3 	 20 	 2 	 20 	 3 	 32 	 0 	 4 	 8 	 77 

Commemoration events 	 4 	 4 	 4 	 4 	 5 	 5 	 0 	 0 	 14 	 14 

Othcrcxpenses 	 1395 	(212) 	(1.834) 	 461 	 431 	 (182) 	 (6) 	 (42) 	 (15) 	 25 

Net inter-scheme expense/( income) 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 0 

Total 	 11900 	 624 	3,978 	4,231 	 532 	97 	 0 	 (21) 	6,411 	4,931 

-- 	 - - 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

23. Revaluation gain/(loss) on administrative property 

Pension Medical Total 

2021 	2020 2021 	 2020 2021 	 2020 
Class of property and equipment Frw'milhons 	Frw'milhions Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions 	Frwmillions 

LAND FOR ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDINGS - 	 170 - 	 242 - 	 413 
GICUMBI PLOTS - 	 (6) - 	 - - 	 (6) 
NYAMASHEKE PLOT - 	 6 - 	 - - 	 6 
NYAMAGABE PLOT - 	 2 - 	 . - 	 2 
GISAGARA PLOT - 	 (3) - - 	 (3) 
MUHANGA PLOT - 	 109 - 	 - - 	 109 
RUHANGO PLOT - 	 9 . 	 - - 	 9 
RUTSIRO PLOT - 	 (7) . - 	 (7) 
NGORORERO PLOT - 	 (16) - 	 - - 	 (16) 
GAKENKE1LOT - 	 12 - 	 - - 	 12 
GATSII3O PLOT - 	 (2) - 	 - - 	 (2) 
NYABIFIUI'LOT - 	 (12) - 	 - - 	 (12) 
BURERA PLOT - 	 (14) - 	 - - 	 (14) 
RSSB HEADQUARTERS - 	 - - 	 2.017 - 	 2,017 
ASSETS FIELD FOR SALE - 	 82 - 	 - - 	 82 
AUTRES IMMEUBLES - 	 (2) . 	 - - 	 (2) 

- 	 328 - 	 2,260 - 	 2,587 

A revaluation gain on land and buildings was realised prior year as the result of a revaluation exercise undertaken by RSSI3. RSSB did not 
undertake revaluation of land and buildings during the year. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (con(inued) 

24. Property and equipment 

As at 30 June 2021 As at 30 June 2020 
Cost Accumulated Net book value Cost Accumulated 	Net book value 

depreciation depreciation 
Scheme Sub-l\ote 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'nsillions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

A B C=A-B A B C=A-B 

Pension Scheme 24.1 5,575 3,035 2,540 4,094 2,783 1,311 

Medical Scheme 24.2 15,299 4,250 11,049 15,218 3,596 11,623 

dliii Scheme 24.3 705 629 76 685 497 188 

Maternity Scheme 24.4 49 43 6 47 32 15 

Ejoileza 24.5 153 148 5 153 137 16 

Total 21,781 8,105 13,676 20,197 7,045 13,153 

24.1. Property and equipment- Pension scheme 

Land and Motor Office Furniture, Computers Total 
Buildings vehicle equipment fixtures and 

fittings 

Fny'millions Frw'nsillions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frss"millions Frw'millions 

('ost 

AtlJuIy2019 1,206 108 434 1,572 849 4,168 

Adjustment to opening balances 0 0 10 (161) 68 (83) 

Transfer from I'PE to investment properties (77) 0 0 0 0 (77) 

Revaluation adjustment - reversal of cost (203) 0 0 0 0 (203) 

Revaluation 246 0 0 0 0 246 

Additions 0 0 2 42 83 126 

Disposals 0 0 (II) (32) (41) (83) 

At 30 June 2020 1,172 tOX 435 1,420 959 4,094 

Adjustment to opening balances 0 0 1 (3) (25) (26) 

Transfer from P1'E to investment properties 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Revaluation adjustment - reversal of cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Additions (I (1 0 180 1.432 1.611 

l)isposals (74) 0 - 0 (29) (7) (lOS) 
- 	
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Land and 	Motor 	Office 	Furniture, 	Computers 	Total 
Buildings 	vehicle 	equipment 	fixtures and 

fittings 

Frw'millions Frw'miliions Fnv'millions Frw'millions Fnv'millions Frw'millions 

At3OJune2O2I I,uo iU i 3 OY Z,304 

Accumulated depreciation 

AtlJuly2019 339 102 434 1,568 803 3,246 

Adjustment to opening balances (136) (1) 4 (265) 66 (332) 

Revaluation adjustment - reversal of accumulated depreciation (203) 0 0 0 0 (203) 

Charge fortheyear 22 6 3 51 68 150 

Disposal 0 0 (11) (32) (36) (79) 

At30June2020 22 108 430 1,322 901 2,783 

Adjustment to opening balances 0 0 (0) 5 (25) (20) 

Revaluation adjustment - reversal of accumulated depreciation 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Charge for the year 22 0 3 93 185 303 

Disposal 0 0 0 (29) (2) (31) 

At 30 June 2021 44 108 433 1,391 1,059 3,035 

Net book value (Cost less Accumulated depreciation)  

At30Junc2021 1,054 0 4 177 1,304 2,540 

At303une2020 1,150 0 5 98 58 1,311 

*A revaluation gain arose on land and buildings because of a revaluation exercise undertaken by RSSB. 
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NOTES TO THE FiNANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

24.2. Property and equipment- Medical scheme 

Land and 	Motor 	Furniture, 	Computers 	Office 	Laboratory Kitchen equipment 	Total 

Buildings 	vehicle 	fixtures & 	 equipment 	equipment 

Fittings 
Frw'milhions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 	Frw'niillions Frw'millions 

14,935 	 190 	 1,725 	 474 	 379 	 524 	 107 	18,333 

o 0 266 26 (5) 0 0 287 

(5.141) 0 0 () 0 0 0 (5,141) 

2260 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,260 

o 0 39 78 2 0 118 

0 0 (128) (39) (2) (470) 0 (639) 

12,054 190 1,902 539 373 54 107 15,218 
0 0 (3) (25) I 0 (26) 

0 0 0 (1 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

72 0 49 0 0 0 0 121 

0 (0) (9) (2) 0 0 (3) (14) 

12,126 190 1,939 513 374 54 103 15,299 

5,141 183 1,541 454 234 524 107 8,184 

C) I 315 2 134 0 0 451 

(5.141) 0 0 0 0 o 0 (5.141) 

578 6 58 64 3 0 0 709 

0 0 (1()1) (35) (2) (470) 0 (608) 

578 190 1,813 485 368 54 107 3,596 

0 0 5 (25) (0) 0 C) (20) 

0 C) 0 0 0 0 0 0 

579 (1 63 45 3 0 0 689 

(1 (0) (9) (2) 0 () (3) (14) 

1,158 190 1,872 503 371 54 103 4,250 
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Cost 

At 1 July 2019 
Adjustment for reapportionment of common assets among 
schemes 

Reversal of cost upon revaluation 

Revaluation loss 

Additions 

Disposals 

At 30 June 2020 

Adjustment to opening balances 

Reversal of cost upon revaluation 

Revaluation loss 

Additions 

Disposals 

At 30 june 2021 

Accumulated depreciation 

At 1 July 2019 
Adjustment for reapportionment of common assets among 
schemes 

Reversal of accumulated depreciation on previously 
revalued assets 

Charge for the year 

1)isposals 

At 30 June 2020 

Adjustment to opening balances 
Revei sal of accumulated depreciation on previously 
revalued assets 

Charge for the year 

Disposals 

At 30 June 2021 
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Land and Motor Furniture, Computers office Laboratory Kitchen equipment Total 
Buildings vehicle fixtures & equipmenf equipment 

Fittings 
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'mlllions Frw'millions 

Net book value (Cost less Accumulated depreciation) 

At30June2021 	 10,969 0 68 10 4 0 0 11,049 

At30June2020 	 11,475 0 88 54 5 0 0 11,623 

*A revaluation gain arose on land and buildings because of a revaluation exercise undertaken by RSSB. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
24.3. Property and equipment- CBHI scheme 

Cost 

At 1 July 2019 

Adjustment for reapportionment of common assets among schemes 

Additions 

Disposals 

At 30 June 2020 

Adjustments to opening balances 

Additions 

Disposals 

At 30 June 2021 

Accumulated depreciation 

At I July 2019 

Adjustment for reapportionment of common assets among schemes 

Charge for the year 

1)isposals 

At 30 June 2020 

Adjustment for reapportionment of common assets among schemes 

Charge for the year 

Disposals 

At 30 June 2021 

Net book value (Cost less Accumulated depreciation) 

At 30 June 2021 

At 30 June 2020 

Land and Motor vehicle Furniture, Computers Office Total 
Buildings fixtures & equipment 

Fittings 
Fn"millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'nsillions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

o 107 338 344 23 812 

o () (Ill) (100) (5) (216) 

o 0 50 99 3 151 

0 (SI) 0 (12) (0) (63) 

0 56 277 331 20 685 
0 0 0 (7) 3 (4) 

0 0 32 0 0 32 

0 (5) (1) (2) 0 (7) 

0 52 308 322 23 705 

0 71 161 258 12 502 

0 (0) (53) (72) (2) (127) 

0 9 58 84 3 154 

o (25) 0 (7) (0) (32) 

0 55 166 262 14 497 

o 0 9 (7) I 3 

0 I 74 57 3 136 

0 (4) (0) (2) 0 (6) 

0 52 249 311 18 629 

0 0 60 12 5 76 

0 2 lii 69 7 188 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

24.4. Property and equipment- Maternity leave scheme 

Cost 

At I July2019 

Adjustment for reapportionment of common assets among schemes 

Additions 

Disposals 

At 30 June 2020 

Adjustment to opening balances 

Additions 

Disposals 

At 30 June 2021 

Accumulated depreciation 

At I July2019 

Adjustment for reapportionment of common assets among schemes 

Charge for the year 

E)isposals 

At 30 June 2020 

Adjustment fbr reapportionment of conunon assets among schemes 

Charge for the year 

Disposals 

At 30 June 2021 

Net book value 

Al 30 June 2021 

At 30 June 2020 

Land and Motor Furniture, Computers Office Total 
Buildings vehicle fixtures & equipment 

Fittings 
Fnv'millions Frw'inillions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

o 0 12 11 1 24 

o 0 6 6 0 12 

o o 4 8 0 12 

o 0 0 (I) (0) (I) 

0 0 22 24 1 47 

o o 0 (0) 0 (0) 

o o 3 0 0 3 

o o (0) (0) 0 (0) 

0 0 25 23 1 49 

O 0 6 8 0 14 

o 0 3 4 0 7 

o 0 5 7 0 12 

o o 0 (I) (0) (1) 

0 0 13 18 1 32 

o o I (I) 0 0 

o o 6 5 0 II 

o o (0) (0) 0 (0) 

0 0 20 22 1 43 

0 0 5 1 0 6 

0 0 9 6 0 15 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

24.5. Property and equipment- Ejo Heza 

Land and Motor Furniture, Computers Office Total 
Buildings vehicle fixtures & equipment 

Fittings 
Frw' millions Frw'millions Frw' millions Frw'millions Frw' millions Frw' millions 

o 0 0 133 19 153 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 133 19 153 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 133 19 153 

0 0 0 83 7 90 
0 0 

0 43 4 47 

0 0 0 126 11 137 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

7 4 II 

0 0 0 133 15 148 

0 0 0 0 5 5 

0 0 0 7 8 16 

Cost 

At 1 July 2019 

Adjustment for reapportionment of common assets among schemes 

Additions 

At 30 June 2020 
Adjustment for reapportionment of common assets among schemes 

Additions 

At 30 June 2021 

Accumulated depreciation 

At 1 July 2019 
Adjustment for reapportionment of common assets among schemes 

Charge for the year 

At 30 June 2020 
Adjustment for reapportionment of common assets among schemes 

Charge for the year 

At 30 June 2021 

Net book value 

At 30 June 2021 

At 30 June 2020 
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- 	 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
25. 	Intangible assets 

As at 30 June 2021 Pension Scheme 
Medical 
Scheme CBEII 

Maternity 
Leave Lio Ueza I otal 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'n Ilions 
Cost 
At start of year 2.022 831 218 10 365 3.447 
Adjustment to opening balances - - - - - - 

Add itions - IT modernisation 
(Ishema project) [work in 1.177 - 1.177 
progress] - - - 

4,624 3,200 	831 	218 	 10 	365 
Amortization 
At start of year (507) (711) (209) (10) (36) (1.473) 

- 	 Adjustment to opening balances - - - - - - 

Charge forthe year (120) (119) (9) (1) (36) (286) 

(1,759) - (627) (831) (218) (10) (73) 

Closing net book value 2,573 (-) - (-) 292 2,865 

Pension Medical CBHI Maternity . 

Eio Heza H 
I otal 

As at 30 June 2020 Scheme Scheme Leave 
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Fnv'nllions 

Cost 
—. 

	

At start of year 585 813 281 7 365 2.051 

Adjustment to opening balances 42 17 (63) 3 - 

Additions - IT modernisat ion (lshema 
project) [work in progress] 1.396 - - - - 1.396 

2,022 831 218 10 365 3,447 

Amortization 

At start of year (313) (547) (229) (5) - (1.094) 
— 	 Adjustment ofopening Balance (36) (8) 46 (3) - I 	- 

Charge for the year (158) (157) (25) (2) (36) 

— (507) (711) (209) (10) (36) ( 	 .473) 

Closing net book value 1,516 119 9 1 328 11.973 

Intangible assets relate to computer software licenses. It also includes any cost that is used to upgrad the 
computer software. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

- 	 26. Investment properties 

Scheme 	 Sub-Note 	Carrying values 
2021 	020 

Frw'millions Fnv'mil ions 
Pension Scheme 	 26.1 	208,896 	201875 
Medical Scheme 	 26.2 	1206 	11686 

- 	 Total 	 221,582 	21 .562 

During year ending 30 June 2020, RSSB's investnient properties and administrative land and build rigs 
(classified under property and equipment - note 23) were subject to valuation at 24 June 2019 by 

- 

	

	 NSHIZIRUNGU Vincent an independent professional valuer. Valuation methods used were the D iect 
comparison, Replacement cost methods and the income capitalization method. 

Valuation of Land 

The valuation for land was based on estimated land prices for specific locations across the country and vitue 
was determined by multiplying the land size with the estimated price per square metre. The estimated value of 
land, forms pa rt  of the estimated fair value for investment prope rt ies and property, plant and equipment. rfhe 
l ast valuation was  based on 2018 land reference prices published by the Institute of Real Prof erty valuei in 
Rwanda. These reference prices had not been revised by 30 June 2021 and new reference prices are expected in 
December 2021. Directors believe 2018 reference prices provide reasonable estimate of land value. 

Where the direct comparison method was used to determine property values, the properties have been recorde1 at 
their Open Market values which is the highest price in terms of money which the property under appraisal shquld 
or could fetch in a competitive and open market under conditions requisite for a fair sale. 

Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a sale at specified date and the passing of ownership from sllei 
to buyer under the following conditions: 

Both the buyer and seller are economically motivated and are both acting prudently 

The sale price is not affected by any undue influence 

Both parties are well informed and well advised and are acting in what they consider to be their own $est 
interest 

A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market value 

	~ Ise  The valuer has assumed that the property is not affected by statutory notices and neither the property nor its  
gives rise to contravention of any statutory requirements. The Valuer did not inspect any woodwork or o er 
parts of the structure that were covered, inaccessible or unexposed. 

The open market values for the lands for development in urban and rural areas were obtained using the 

comparison valuation method and international valuation standards. 

Where replacement cost method was used to determine property values, the cost of construction was recognized 
at 1,500 USD per square meter (at an exchange rate of Frw 910:US$1) by analyzing the different costsI of 
building similar modern commercial properties completed in the last 3 years. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

As per the valuation report, total valuations of RSSB properties are as follows: 

Valuation as at 24 June 2019 

Frw) 

Open market 	 223,383,61 .000 

Insurance value 	 89,300,04 .000 

RSSB management adopted the open market values for the properties in 2020. RSSB has not done ar other 
valuation of properties for the year under review. Management and Directors have assessed the potential chnges 
to the values and considered that the values held in the books of account best represent the value of the prop rties 
as at 30 June 2021. Any changes would neither be significant nor material to the financial statements givi the 
prevailing economic conditions. 7 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

26.1. Reconciliation of movement in Investment properties during the year - Pension Scheme 

At 30 June 2021 
Property descrsplion 	 As at I July 2020 	Adjustment 	Adjustment 	Transfer 	 Fair 	Additions 	Disnosals 30 

me 1011 

KACYIIW EXECUTIVE APARTMENTS 

GRAND PENSION PLAZZA 

MUSANZE PENSION PLA2ZA 

RWAMAGANA PENSION PLAZZA 

NYANZA PENSION PLAZZA 

- 	 KARONGI PENSION PLAZZA 

RESIDENTIAL HOUSE KIYOVU 

KIYOVU RESIDENTIAL HOUSE LAND 

- 	 NYAGATARE HOUSES 

LAND FOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

LAND FOR INSURANCE PLAZZAS 

FORMER CECFR PLOT 

GACULIRO VISION CITY LAND 

CBDIRUCIENGE LAND 

KINYINYA LAND 

- 	 BATSINDA PARCEL 

NYAGATARE LAND 

RWkMAGANA PARCEL I&II 

- 	 NYANZA PLOT 

RUBAVU PLOT 

LAND FROM GPD 

BATSINDA PIPELINE INVESTMENT 

GISOZI PLOT 

KIGALI GOLF CLUE LANI) 

RUSORORO PLOTS 

NYARUGENGE PLOTS 

MATERIEL DES MA ISONS D'HABITATION 

SIATERIELS DL KEA 

GROUPES ELECTROGENES DE KEA 

ASCENSEURS DE KEA 

CRYSTAL PLAZA BUILDING 

NYARUTARAMA PENSION PLAZA 

MO8IUER DFSMAISONSD'HABITATION 

MOBIUERSDEK.EA 

- 	 Agen Amen. Placement 

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMLATFOR AU PL4ZZ4S 

GASOGI LAND 

to opening 	to opening 	from valuation 	- 	 - 

balance 	balanre 	property gain/(Ioss) 
and 

equipment 
to 

investment 
property 

Frwmillions Frw'million, 	Frwmillions 	Frw'millions Frwmillions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'nullions 

7.773 . 	 . 

24.049  

4,519  

3.403 - 	 - 	 - - 	 - 

3,421 - 	 - 	 - - 	 - 

3.439 - 	 - 	 - - 	 - 

224 - 	 - 	 - - 

256  

55  

.526 - 	 - - 

1.901  

1143 . 

54.633 - 	 - 	 - 
(1.022) 

044  

41,384 - 	 - 	 - - 	 - 

7.233 - 	 - 	 - - 

.15!') 

3.42! 

<C 

1,526 

1)43 

044 

41,384 
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- 	 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS(continued) 
At 30 June 2020 

Mat! July 2019 Adjustmenl Adjustment Transfer Fair Additions 	Disposals 
to opemog to Opening from valuation 

balance balance properly gain/(loss) 
- (refund (related to and 

Rusororo enpropriation equipment 
plots) claim 10 

Caculiro investment 
vssion city property 

- land - plot) 

Property description 

Frw'inill)ons FrwmilUons Frw'm)Hions Frwmjllinns F,wmillions Frw'millions 	Frw'mitlions 

Cyiiw ExECtfllvE APARTMENTs 
6.574 - - 1.199 

GRAND PENSION PLAZZA 
21.680 - - 2.369 

MUSANZE PENSION PLAZZA 
4.487 - 33  

- 

RWAMAGANA PENSION PLAZZA 
4. 323 - - - 

(920) 

N YANZA PENSION PLAZZA 
4.558 - 

(1,137) 

KARONGI PENSION PLAZZA 
4, 463 - - - 

(1.025) 

RESIDENTIAL HOUSE KJYOVTJ 
200 - - 23 

KIYOVU RESIDENTIAl. HOUSE LAND . 77 179 

NYAGATARE HOUSES 
60 - - 

(5) 

LANDFORISJVESTMENTPROPERTIES 
350 - - - 435 741 

LAND FOR INSURANCE p&zzs 798 - 1,103 

FORMERCECFRPLOT 
781 - . 361 

GACULIRO VISION CITY LAND 
22,966 . - - 31,635 31 	(,022) 

CBDI-RUGENGE LAND 
626 - 418 

 
. . 

KINYINYA LAND 
10.633 . - . 31584 

- 	 (034) 

BATSINDA PARCEL 
1.003 - . - 6,230 

NYAGATARE LAND 
247 424 

 
. . 

RWAMAGANAPARCELI&II 
179 - - . 2,957 

NYANZA PLOT 
135 - - - 421 

RUBAVU PLOT 
53 - . 

(2) 

LAND FROM GPO 
2, 066 - - 

(530) 

BATSINDA PIPELINE INVESTMENT 
19 - . . 23 

GISOZI PLOT 
627 ' . . 963 

KIGALI GOLF CLUB LAND 
5,642 . . . 1.042 

RUSORORO PLOTS 
14. 056 

(2,135) - - 

NYARUGENGE PLOTS 
.264 

 
- . . 

MA7FJOJEL DESMAISONSOHABITATION 

MATERIEISDEXEA 
224 - 31  - 

GROUPES ELECTROGENES DE KEA 
70 

 

ASCENSEURS DE KEA 
log  - - . 

CRYSTAL PLAZA BUILDING 
L160 ' .345 

 
. - 

NYARUTARAMA PENSION PLAZA 
0 . - 16.318 

 
- - 

MO8IUER DES MAISONSD'HAHJTA TION 
4 

 
. . . 

MOBJIJEREDE KEA 
576 

 
- - . 

Agen.Anrèn,Placem enl 
290 - - - - 

(59) 

ELEC77UCAL EQ WPAfFJsT FOR AIJ. PLAZZ4S 
2.165 - - - - 

AI at 30 

me 2929 

2.1.04') 

3-103 

3.42 

3439 

224 

256 

s-c 

2ó 

. 1101 

.23 

(.7(1 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

26.2. Reconciliation of movement in Investment properties during the year - Medical Scheme 

As at 30 June 2021 

Property description At 1 July 2020 	Fair valuation gal/loss At 30 June 2021 
Frw'rnillions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Land for investment property 925 - 925 
Twin Tower 2 11,622 - 11,622 
Twin Tower Equipment's 140 - 140 

Total 12,686 - 12,686 

As at 30 June 2020 

Property description At 1 July 2019 Additions At 30 June 2020 
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Land for investment property 512 413 925 
Twin Tower 2 12,566 (944) 11,622 
Twin Tower Equipment's 140 - 140 

Total 13,218 (531) 12,686 

26.3. Land without titles 

Description 	 Asset Identifier Classification Location Date of Acquisition Amount 
Frw 

Grand Pension Plaza B 	1/01/09/03/785 Investment properties NYARUGENGE 30/06/2012 16,800,000 
TOWER III 	 1/01/06/07/72 Investment properties NYARUGENGE 01/07/2016 47,700,000 
Nyanza plot 	 2/01/01/04/2534 Investment properties NYANZA 0 1/07/2019 475,600 

64,975,600 



NOTES TO THE FINANCiAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
27. Investment properties in the process of construction 

Scheme Sub-Note Carrying values 

2021 2020 
Frw'millions Fnv'm Ilions 

Pension Scheme 27.1 7.684 7.684 
Medical Scheme 27.2 - 

Total 7,684 7,684 

27.1. 	Investment properties under construction - pension scheme 

30 June 2021 
Property description At 1 July 2020 Prior year Additions Reclassificati At 30 ,June 

adjustment onto other 2021 
assets 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'miHions Frw'mi lions 
LAND FOR DEVELOPMENT - - 

LOGEMENTS BATSINDA 2eme PHASE 7,684 .684 
Investment in CATCHUP 
INVESTMENTS LIMITED - - 

7,684 - - - 7,684 

30 June2020 
Property description At 1 July 2019 Prior year Additions Reclassificati At 30 June 

adjustment on to other 020 
assets 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frsv'mil inns 

LAND FOR DEVELOPMENT (19) 19 - - - 

- 	 LOGEMENTS BATSINDA 2eme 684 
PHASE 4,467 3.217 - 

Investment in CATCHUP (840) - 

INVESTMENTS LIMITED 840 - 

5,288 19 3,217 (840) 

27.2. 	Investment properties under construction - medical scheme 

At 30 June 2021 

Property description At I July2020 	Prioryear adjustment At30JuneO21 

Frw 'millions Frw 'mu lions Fnv 'mill ons 

LAND FOR DEVELOPMENT - - 

Property description 

LAND FOR DEVELOPMENT 

	

At 1 July 2019 	Additions 	At 30 June 2 120 

	

Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frss' millins 

	

19 	(19) 	 - 

 



 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

28. Assets held for sale 

Cost 
Opening at 1 July 
Revaluation gain 
Disposals 

Closing at 30 June 

2021 
Frw'millions 	Frw'iu 

2020 
lions 

454 
82 

536) 

RSSB's assets held for sale comprise centre socio-recréatjf at Kacyiru estate. 
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- 	 NOTES TO THE FINAJ'ICIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
29. Equity investments 

- 	 Scheme 

- 	 Pension Scheme 

Medical Scheme 

Total 

Sub-Note 

29.1 

29.2 

Carrying values 

2021 

	

Frw'millions 	Frw'n illions 

	

408.683 	4 

48.686 

	

457,370 	4 

2020 

.4 17 

0.027 

8,443 

29.1. Equity investments - Pension 

%age Number of Number of Basis of 
Carrvin ( arrin 

Equity Inveatce 
Type of equity %age holding shares held shares held measurement 

g %aliir .lue 

instrument holding as at :I 	at 

- 2021 21)21) 

2021 2020 2021 2020 E',,t.,fl. I, 	 • 

Subsidiaries 

(Control evidenced by ownership of 
50% or more of ordinary shares 
with voting rights and board 
representation) 
ULTIMATE DEVELOPMERS 

Ordinary shares 100.00% 100.00% 9,915 9.915 Fair value 95.373 4.489 
LIMITED (UDL) 

AKAGERAGAMELODGE(AGL) Ordinaiyshares 100.00% 100.00% 4.042,100 4.042.100 Fairvalue 11.826 6.27 

SONARWA LIFE ASSURANCE Ordinary shares 100.00% 100.00% 494.005 494,005 Fair value 0 

RWANDA ULTIMATE GOLF 
Ordinajy shares 100% 100% 

292024.67 , 292.024, 67 
Cost 34,599 9.202 

COURSE 7 7 

EDGE HOSTELS Ordinaiyshares 87.01% 87.01% 9.041.380 9.041,380 Fair value 10.166 

SONARWA GENERAL 
Ordinary shares 79.20% 79.20% 

382,586.23 382,586,23 
Fair value 6.309 I') 

INSURANCE 3 3 
RWANDA FOREIGN HOLDINGS 
INVESTMENT COMPANY Ordinary shares 65.95% 65.95% 6.675,000 6,675.000 Fair value 3.863 rl.si2 
LIMITED (RFHIC) 

Joint Venture 

(Joint control evidenced with 50% 
of ordinary shares (considering both 
pension and medical schemes) with 
voting rights and board 
representation) 

BMI (RULII3A and EAGI) Ordinary shares 50.00% 50.00% 9,526 9.526 Fair value 4.439 .749 

- 	 Associates 

(Significant influence rvidcnce with 
ownership (considering both pension 
and medical schemes) of 20% or 
more of ordinary shares with voting 
rights and board representation) 

ULTIMATE CONCEP'F LTD Ordinary shares 43.57% 43.57% 2.316 2.316 Fair value 0 

INYANGE INDUSTRIES LTD Ordinary shares 40.00% 40,005'. 3,280.000 3,280.000 Fair value 11.178 II 564 

RWANDA DEVELOPMENT BANK 
Ordinary shares 34.74% 34.74% 17,892.275 17.892.275 Fair value 29.974 26 '93 

(BRD) 

BANK OF KIGALI (BK) Ordinary shares 33.49% 33.49% 
302,966.10 302,966.10 

Fair value 72.712 78 71 

EASTERN PROVINCE 
INVESTMENTCORPORATION Ordinaryshares 30.03% 30.03% 55.259 55,259 Fairvalue 2,484  
(EPIC) 

CRYTSTAL TELECOM Ordinary shares 30.00% 30.00% 81.053.000 81.053,000 Fair value 18,642 5. 74 

HORIZON SOPYRWA LTD Ordinaryshares 30.00% 30.00% 1.262 1,262 Fairvalue 9.885 9. 95 

RWANDA ENTERPISE 
INVESTMENTCOMPANY Ordinasyshares 26.52% 26.52% 2.652 2.652 Fairvaluc 71 73 
LIMITED (REIC) 
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%age Number of Number of Basis of 
Carrin Carri in 

Equity Investee Type of equity %age holding shares held shares held measurement g Value  g \ aluc 
instrument holding as at as at 

2021 21)20 

2021 2020 2021 2020 F..'.,,5b.,, 

RNITITERAMBERE Fund Fund units 2391% 23.91% 18.995.095 18995,095 Fair value 3.055 1751 

Other equity investments 

(No control or significant influence 
evidencedby ownership of Itas than 
20% of ordinary shares with voting 
rights) 
RWANDA INVESTMENT GROUP 
LIMITED (RIG) Ordinary shares 17.39% 17.39% 2.400 2.400 Fair value 3.184 .279 

PRIME ECONOMIC ZONES 
Ordinary shares 14.40% 14.40% 164.748 164,748 Fair value 3,576 3.592 COMPANY LIMITED 

CIMERWA Ltd Ordinary shares 10.12% 10.12% 3.557,652 3.557.652 Fair value 8.538 5.625 
NEW FOREST RWANDA Ltd 

Ordinarysharcs 10.00% 10.00% 100.000 100.000 Fairvaluc 2.52$ 2.52$ (NFR) 
RWANDA STOCK EXCHANGE 
(RSE) 

Ordinary shares 10.00% 10.0056 10 10 Fair value 70 -IS 

EASTERN AND SOURTHERN 
AFRICA TRADE DEVELOPMENT Ordinary shares 1.53% 1.53% 1 .736 1.736 Fair value 23.832 29.979 
BANK (FORMERLY PTA BANK) 
Brassetic Es Lirnonadenc Du Rwanda 

Ordinaz3 shares 1.99% 1.99% 20,418,800 20.418.800 Fairvalue 2,450 2.61$ (BRALIRWA) 

I&M RWANDA Ordinary shares 1.94% 1.94% 9.813.600 9.813.600 Fair value 2.699 583 

NEW FORESTS COMPANY Ordinary shares 0.87% 0.87% 110,372 110.372 Fair value 395 395 
HOLDINGS LIMITED (UK) 

AFREXIMBANK Ordinaryshares 0.I09 16 0.10% 124 124 Fairvalue 3.144 2.652 

SAFARICOM Ordinary shares 0.04% 0.04% 17.153.550 17.153.550 Fair value 12.456 4.469 

EQUITY GROUP Ordinary shares 0.60% 0.60% 25.000.000 25.000,000 Fair value 17.82$ 8.041 

LEAF PHARMACEUTICALS 
Ordinary ShareS 30% 30% 697 697 Cost 0 5(,27 

LIMITED 

WORLD VU SATELITES LIMITED Ordinary shares 0.1321,; 1.06% 8 8 Cost 1.013 .9US 

AKAGERA MEDICINES INC Preference 33.3% 33.3% 6,000.000 6,000,000 Cost 5.530 5.530 
shares 

NEW FOREST RWANDA Ltd Preference N/A N/A 100.000 100,000 Cost 420 429 
shares 

KCB Group Ordinary shares 0.48% . 15.289.541 Fair value 6.443 0 

42,4 17 408.683 

29.1.1. Reconciliation of changes in carrying values of equity investments under pension scheme durina 
the year 

a) Summary reconciliation 

2021 
Frwmillions 

Asatijuly 	 428,417 

Additional Investments during the year 	 27.698 

Disposals during the year 	 0 

Write backl(offs) 

Fair valuation gainl(loss) during the year 	 (47,431) 

As at 30 June 	 408,683 

Fns milloii 

3734)71 
56.54 

(1.715) 

428.417 
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- 	NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

- 	b) Detailed reconciliation per equity investee 

Carrying Additional Disposals Writeoffs Fair ('aminO 
value as as capital during the valuation aloe as at 

quisy Investee I July 2020 injection year ain!)Ioss) 30 lane 
during the 2021 

year 

Frondllon, Fru,illinu, Fn,n.lIllou, Fn.'nillinu,  

Subsidiaries 

ULTIMATE DEVELOPMERS LIMITED (UDL) 94409 0 0 0 884 '.5.173 

Al AGERA GAME LODGER (AGL) 8.273 4.295 0 0 1742 .926 

SONARVA LIFE ASSURANCE 0 0 0 0 0 0 

RWANDA ULTIMATE GOLF COURSE 29.202 5.396 0 0 0 34,599 

RWANDA FOREIGN INVESTMENT HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED (RFIHC) 2.852 0 0 0 1.012 3.863 

EDGE HOSTELS 10,158 0 0 0 8 10.166 

SONARWA GENERAL INSURANCE 5,449 0 0 0 860 619 

Joinlventure 0 0 0 0 

BMI(R.ULIBAundEAGI) 5,748 0 0 0 (1,309) 4.439 

Associates 0 0 0 0 

RWANDADEVELOPMENTBANK(SRD) 26.393 0 0 0 3.580 29.974 

ULTIMATE CONCEPT LTD 0 0 0 0 0 0 

INYANGE INDUSTRIES LTD 11,664 0 0 0 (486) 11.178 

BANK OF KIGALI (BK) 78.771 0 0 0 (6,059) "2.712 

CRYI'STAL TELECOM 5.674 0 0 0 12.968 

HORIZON SOPYRWA LTD 9795 0 0 0 90 ',085 

RWANDA ENTERPISE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED (REIC) 73 0 0 0 (2) 71 

RNlTlterambcrcFund 2,751 0 0 0 303 3,055 

CIMERWA Ltd 5,625 0 0 0 2,914 3.538 

EASTERNPROVTNCEINVESmIENrCORPORATI0N(EPIC( 3,332 0 0 0 (848) 2.48.1 

O*berequitylnvestonenB 0 0 0 II 

RWANDAINVESThIENTGROUPLIMITED(RIG) 3.279 0 0 0 190 3.184 

PRIME ECONOMIC ZONES COMPANY LIISIITED 3,592 0 0 0 (16) 1 11, 

NEW FOREST COMPANY RWANDA (NFCR) 2.521 0 0 0 0 .52S 

RWANDA STOCK EXCHANGE (BEE) 45 0 0 0 25 78 

EASTERN AND SOIJRT}OERN AFRICA TRAI)E DEVELOPMENT BANK (FORMERLY PTA BANKO 20,979 645 0 0 2,200 :3.832 

BRALIRWA 2.018 0 0 0 (360) 2.450 

l&M EWANDA 083 1.606 0 0 211 2,000 

NEW FORESTS COMPANY HOLDINGS LIMITED (UK) 395 0 0 0 0 

AFRE2GMBANK 2.652 0 0 0 492 3144 

SAFARICOM 4,469 5,648 0 0 2.340 12 

EQUITY GROUP 8,041 5,083 0 0 4704 7.820 

LEAFPHARMACEOmCALSUMITED 35,627 0 0 0 (35,627) 

WORLD VU SATELITES LIMI'FED 36.908 0 0 
0 (35,895) I .1)3 

ANAGERA MEDICINES INC 5.530 0 0 0 0 5530 

NEW FOREST COMPANY RWANDA (NFCR) 420 0 0 0 0 420 

KCB GROUP 0 5,025 0 0 1,418 v.44% 

Total 428,417 27,698 0 0 (47.431) 408.683 
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NOTES TO THE FINAIJCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

c) Significant fair valuation gain during the year ended 30 June 2021 

Crystal TelecomlMTN Rwanda - Frw 12.9 billion gain 

The fair value gain is due to the delisting of former CTL shares and listing of MTN R shares. The diares 
were listed on the stock exchange on 4th May 2021 at a price of RWF 269 (previously at Frw 70 in CTL) 
which led to the increase in value of RSSB shares. 

• CIMERWA Limited- Fnv 2.9 billion gain 

RSSB's shareholding in CIMERWA as of3lst December 2020 was valued at FRW 17.076 billion from 
- FRW 11.249 billion the previous year. In August 2020, CIMERWA Plc (RSE: CMR) was listed n the 

Rwanda Stock Exchange. The Company has 703,219,520 issued shares with a par value of Fr' 5 The 
Company's authorized share capital was altered through a share split. Each share was divide into 
Twenty (20:1) units from a par value of Frw 1,000 to a par value Frw 50 per share. RSSB's share s rose 
to 142,306,060 following the listing of the company and market value has risen to FRW 17 billion. 

• Rwanda Development Bank- Frw 3.5 billion gain 

The fair value gain is consistent with the performance of the BRD for the period ended 30 June 2021. 
BRD improved financial performance from a profit of Frw 79 million for the 6 month period en ed 30 
June 2020 to a profit of Frw 507 million for the 6 month period ended 30 June 2021 due to increse in 

- 	 net interest income from Frw 6 billion in 2020 to Frw 7 billion in 2021. 

• Eastern and Southern Africa Trade Development Bank —Frw 2.2 billion gain 

- 	 During the year, a fair value gain is consistent with the continued good performance of the bank. buring 
the year ended 30 December 2020, the bank made a profit of USD 157 million, an improvernnt in 

financial performance when compared to the previous year -2019 (profit of USD 151 million). 

• Safaricom- Frw 2.3 billion gain 

The fair valuation gain is a result of combined fluctuations in both the currency and share prices 1Ioii 
9.12 to 9.4833 and from 28.55 to 40.85 respectively. There was also additional investment duriig the 
year of Frw 5.6 billion. 

• Equity Group- Frw 4.7 billion gain 

The fair value gain is consistent with the change in the price per share (Share price increased fron Frw 
35.25 as at 30 June 2020 to 46.30 as at 30 June 2021) and additional investment of Frw 5.1 billion during 
the year 2021. 

- 	 • Rwanda Foreign Holding Investment Company (RFIHC) - Frw 1 billion gain 

The fair valuation gain of FRW 1 billion is consistent with company performance. The col*pany 
increased its net profit from Frw 635 million in 2019 to Frw 1.5 billion in 2020 mainly from fair value 
gain on assets. 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

d) Significant fair valuation losses during the year ended 30 June 2021 

• Bank of Kigali (BK)- Frw 6 billion loss 

The fair value loss is consistent with the movement in share price for BK shares. The price fell 
	

[I." 

260 per share (June 2020) to Frw 240 per share (June 2021). 

• Building Materials Investment subsidiaries (RULIBA and EAGI)- Frw 1 billion loss 

The fair value loss is consistent with the company's performance for the year then ended 3 1 Dec rnber 
2020. The company made a loss for the year of FRW 941 million (2019: FRW 1.4 billion). 

• WORLD VU SATELITES LIMITED- 35 billion loss 

In 2017, on behalf of Government, RSSB and Agaciro Invested US$ 25 million and US$ 15 i illioti 
respectively, which was invested as shares of the company. 

The company filed for bankruptcy/administration on 27 March 2020 in the United States of America. As 
a result of this, the initial capital injection by both RSSB and Agaciro Fund of US$ 25 milli i and 
US$15 million respectively were all lost. 

The companies had made additional capital injection through secured notes of USS 17 million all USS 
10 million for RSSB and Agaciro respectively. These secured notes were converted into new shres as 

- part of the reorganisation of the company. Later on the company went bankruptcy and additional qapital 
was injected by new shareholders. Subsequent to this, a new share certificate was issued in the names of 
RSSB for 1,629 shares each at US$ 1,000. Based on the collective investment arrangement that had been 
agreed between MINECOFIN, RSSB and Agaciro, the respective share values for RSSB and A4aciro 
were US$ 1,026,000 and US$ 603,000 respectively as at 20 November 2020. 

Consequently, management and the Board have recorded an impairment loss of Frw 35 billion n the 
books of account as at 30 June 2021. 

• Leaf Pharmaceuticals Limited- 35 billion loss 

LEAF Pharmaceuticals is a pharmaceutical company, based in the USA, developing drug treatm ms to 
fight lung cancer. The most promising drug developed by LEAF called LEAF-1401 is aim ng at 
outperforming and replacing an existing medicine called Pemetrexed developed by Eli Lilly. The c irient 
revenues generated by the Pemetrexed are estimated to be around USD 2bn annually. 

In 2017, RSSB committed a USD 40m investment in LEAF Pharmaceuticals to support pre-clinical tests 
of LEAF-Ol, LEAFI4-02 and LEAF-03. Significant disagreements appeared shortly after the invetment 
commitment between RSSB management and LEAF management on ownership of patents: value  for 
money, reliable financial information and corporate governance. During the years 2017-2021 svenal 
meetings took place, involving LEAF Management/Significant Shareholder, RSSB, RDB. Minisrv of 
Finance and other stakeholders, in order to correct these concerns. The Significant Shareholder pronised 
many times to implement these adjustments but never did one of these. 

In the second semester of 2021, as the company was running out of cash and LEAF Pharmaceuticals was 
- to raise USD 45m to fund notably LEAF 1401 phase I of clinical tests, RSSB refused to participate in the 

next rounds unless a thorough financial audit is done and earlier reported governance issus are 
addressed. The final report of the audit confirmed that the company had ran out of money to colitinue 
operations without a new capital injection, mismanagement of the funds, and that Intellectual Proç1erties 
(IPs) were owned by the Leaf Holding rather than Leaf Pharmaceuticals. Without changes n the 
governance structure and transfer of the IN from Leaf Holding to Leaf Pharma, RSSB refu. ed to 

- 	 participate in the next funding round. 



RSSB has been in discussion with the majority shareholder, Leaf Holding, on an exit strategy that 9ould 
create value for RSSB to recover the investment or minimize the loss. This includes convertina the 
ownership of RSSB into another Pharmaceutical company with advanced research phase and hgher 
commercial potential. The conversation are ongoing including due diligences with a target to close heni 
by end of June 2022. 

Based on these issues, RSSB Board resolved to fully impair the investments as RSSB pursue other 
means of recovery. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

29.2. Equity investments - Medical 

7sumber Number 
Carrying 

Value as at 
((rrr,rng 

atiic;i 	at 
Equity 	

Type of equIty 
•iag holding %age holding oIshares of shares Basis of measurement 

30 June 40 June instrument held held 
2021 211211 

2021 2020 2021 2020 
Frw'millioas Frs, 

Subsidiary tuItions 

RWANDA FOREIGN HOLDINGS 
Ordinary shares 2855% 28.55% 2,889,606 2,889,606 Fair value 1,672 

INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED (RFHIC) 

Associate 

BANK OF KIGALI (BK) 	 Ordinary shares 085% 0.85% 7.723.900 7.723,900 Fair value 1.954 

COGEBANQTJEsa 	 Ordinary shares 3060n/, 30.60% 21,375 21,375 Fair value I0,587 

C1MERVA Ltd 	 Ordinary shares 10.121/6 10.12% 3.557,651 3.557,651 Fair value 8.538 4,21 

- 	 Other equity investments 

RWANDA INVESTh(ENT GROUP UMITED 
Ordinary shuts 5 22% 5 22% 720 720 Fair value 955 904 

(RIG) 
EASTERN AND SOURTHERN AFRICA TRADE 
DEVELOPMENT BANK (FORMERLY PTA 	Ordinary shares 1.53% 153% 1.376 1.376 Fair value 23.071 

BANKO 

BR.ALIRWA 	 Ordmaryshares 08214 0.82% 8.404.200 8,404.200 Fairvalac 1,009  

KT RWANDA LIMITED 	 Preference shares N/A N/A 10.775.087 10.775.087 Artortised cost 0 

48.636 51l,112 

29.2.1. Reconciliation of changes in carrying values of equity investments under medical scheme during 
the year 

a) 	Summary reconciliation 

2021 2020 

Frw'millions Frw'nilIiotts 

As at 1 July 50,027 42/36 

Prior year adjustment 0 7) 

Additional Investments during the year 528 4. ItS 

Interest on preference dividends 85 04 

Fair valuation gainl(Ioss) during the year (1,953) 3.740 

As at 30 June 48,686 50.027 

9,2 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

b) 	Detailed reconciliation per equity investee 

Additional Prior year Carrs ing 
Carrying capital Interest on Disposals 

adjustment - 
Fair 

val u as at 
Equity Investee value as at I injection preference during the interschcme valuation 

3(4 .lunc 
July 2020 during the dividends year 

correction 
gain/(loss) 

2021 year 
Frw'millions Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Fnr'mllions 

Subsidiary 
RWANDA I 

FOREIGN 
HOLDINGS 

1,234 0 0 0 0 438 11.672 
INVESTMENT 
COMPANY 
LIMITED (RFHIC) 
Associate 
BANK OF KIGALI 2,008 0 0 0 0 (154) 1.854 
(B K) 

COGEBANQUE SA 9.230 0 0 0 0 1.357 0.587 
CIMERWA 5,625 0 0 0 0 2.914 8.538 
LIMITED 
Other equity 
investments 
RWANDA 
INVESTMENT 984 0 0 0 0 (29) 955 
GROUP LIMITED 
(RIG) 
EASTERN AND 
SOURTHERN 
AFRICA TRADE 21.317 528 0 0 0 2.227 24.071 
DEVELOPMENT 
BANK (FORMERLY 
PTA BANK) 
BRALIRWA 1.160 0 0 0 0 (151) 1.009 

KT RWANDA 
8,469 0 85 0 0 (8.554) 0 

LIMITED 
50,027 	528 	 85 	 0 	 0 	(1,953) 	48.686 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

c) Significant fair valuation gains/losses during the year ended 30 June 2021 

• CIMERWA Limited- Frw 2.9 billion gain 

RSSB's shareholding in CIMERWA as of3lst December 2020 was valued at FRW 17.076 billion froill 
FRW 11.249 billion the previous year. In August 2020, CIMERWA Plc (RSE: CMR) was listed ofli the 
Rwanda Stock Exchange. The Company has 703,219,520 issued shares with a par value of Frw 50. The 
Company's authorized share capital was altered through a share split. Each share was divided into 
Twenty (20:1) units from a par value of Frw 1,000 to a par value Frw 50 per share. RSSB's shares hose 
to 142,306,060 following the listing of the company and market value has risen to FRW 17 billion. 

• Eastern and Southern Africa Trade Development Bank —Frw 2.2 billion gain 

During the year, a fair value gain is consistent with the continued good performance of the bank. Diring 
the year ended 30 December 2020, the bank made a profit of USD 157 million, an improvemel t in 
financial performance when compared to the previous year - 2019 (profit of USD 151 million). 

• Cogebanque- Frw 1.3 billion gain 

- 	 The fair value gain is consistent with the company's performance compared to previous period. The lank 
continued to be profitable and registered a net profit of Frw 2.5 billion in June 2021 (June 2020: 2.1 
Billion) 

• KT Rwanda Network- Frw 8.5 billion Loss 

In December 2015, with the intervention of MINECOFIN. RDB gave RSSB the option to convert the 
- loan into preference shares in ORN with a coupon rate of 1% thus transferring 12,406,793 non-voting 

shares (preference shares) of the value of FRW 8,089,229.036 of FRW 652 each in KT Rwanda 
Networks from RDB to RSSB as a non-monetary compensation for the loan owed to RSSB on 3 1st 
December 2015. 

After the loan conversion, RSSB has never received any interests on the preference shares as the 
company has consistently performed poorly and not registered distributable earnings since its formation 
and shows no potential turnaround in the near future due to the nature of its business. The cumulaiie 
interest on the preference shares calculated on the agreed 1% coupon rate per annum amounted to FRW' 
464,742,452 as of 30 June 2021. Therefore, RSSB's investment (principal + interest) in KT Rwnda 
Networks Ltd is valued at Frw 8.553,971,488 as at 30 June 2021. 

Given the continued poor performance of KT Rwanda Networks Ltd and its failure to pay interest at the 
agreed coupon rate of 1% that far lower than the original interest rate on the loan, the Board has resoved 
to fully impair the asset as at 30 June 2021. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

30. Corporate bonds 

2021 020 
- Sub note 	Frw'millions Fr%v'milions 

Agaciro Development Fund 30.1 	11,274 11.529 
Crystal Ventures Limited 3 0. 2 	12,166 1.225 

- 23,441 24754 

Classification of Corporate bonds (Non-current Vs Current) 
- 2021 T020 

Frw'millions Frw'mil ions 
Non-current 

- 	 Crystal Ventures Limited 11,638 .569 
Agaciro Development Fund 9,849 9609 

21,487 
11178 

Current 
Crystal Ventures Limited 529 3.960 

- 	 Agaciro Development Fund 1,425 2.6 16 
1,954 65576 

30.1. 	Corporate bond issued by Agaciro Development Fund 

2021 2020 
Frw'millions Frw'millions 

At 1 July - 12,529 - 

Placement - 12.000 

Accrued interest 1,416 529 

Maturity (2,616) - 

Gross at 30 June 11,329 12,529 
Impairment provision (IFRS 9) (54) - 

Net at 30 June 11,274 12,529 

30.2. 	Corporate bond issued by Crystal Ventures Limited 

- 2021 1020 
Frw'millions Frw'milions 

At 1 July 12,225 - 

Placement - 12.000 

Accrued interest 1,560 225 

Maturity (1,560) - 

At 30 June 12,225 12,225 

Impairment provision (IFRS 9) (59) - 

Net at 30 June 12,166 IZ,225  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCL4L STA TEMENTS (continued) 

31. Treasury bonds 

The treasury bonds held by RSSB as at the end of the year per scheme were as follows: 

Balance as Balane as 
Description Sub-Note at at 

30-Jun-21 30-Jui-20 
Frw'millions Frw'mil(ions 

Treasury bonds - Pension scheme 31.1 145,170 12.597 
Treasury bonds - Medical scheme 31.2 35,856 23.799 
Treasury bonds - Maternity scheme 31.3 6,831 - 

Treasury bonds - Ejo Heza scheme 31.4 15,657 3541 
Total 203,514 153,936 

C1assfication of Government Bonds (Non-current Vs Current) I  

Non-current 
Treasury bonds - Pension scheme 126,114 10 .469 
Treasury bonds - Medical scheme 31,245 2 11.716 
Treasury bonds - Maternity leave scheme 6,638 - 

Treasury bonds - Ejo Heza 15,476 3.541 
Sub-total 179,473 I31726 

Current 
Treasury bonds - Pension scheme 
Treasury bonds - Medical scheme 
Treasury bonds - Maternity leave scheme 
Treasury bonds - Ejo Heza 

31.1. Treasury bonds - Pension scheme 

Particular 

Opening balance 1 July 
Prior year adjustments 
Investment during the year 
Interest income earned during the year 

- 	Receipts during the year 
Closing 30 June 
Impairment provision 
Closing 30 June 

19,057 20.127 
4,611 2.083 

193 - 

181 - 

Sub-total 24,042 22,211 (2)  
Grand 203,514 153,936 

total (1+2)  

2021 2020 
Frw'millions Frw'mil!ions 

126,597 8 [.742 
2,244 - 

22.356 51.259 
18,449 12.909 

(23,774) (193I3) 
145,870 12,597 

(700) - 

145,170 126,597 

The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair value. 
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- 	 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

31.2. Treasury bonds - Medical scheme 

Particular 2021 P.020 
Frw'millions Frw'milions 

Opening balance 1 July 23,799 4700 
Investment during the year 14,242 14767 

- 	 Interest income earned during the year 2,748 IL35 1 

Receipts during the year (4,761) (1.020) 
2,799 Closing 30 June 	 36,029 

- 	 Impairment provision (173) 1 -  

2,799 Closing 30 June 	 35,856 

The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair value. 

31.3. Treasury bonds - maternity leave scheme 

Particular 	 2021 	 2020 

	

Frw'millions 	Frw'milions 
Opening balance 1 July 	 - 	 - 

- 	Investment during the year 	 6,882 	 - 
Interest income earned during the year 	 360 	 - 
Receipts during the year 	 (378) 	 - 

Closing 30 June 	 6,864 	 - 
Impairment provision 	 (33) 	 - 

Closing 30 June 	 6,831 	 - 

31.4. Treasury bonds - Ejo Heza 

Particular 2021 2020 
Frw'millions Frw'milions 

Opening balance 1 July 3,541 98 

Investment during the year 11,787 3.443 

Interest income earned during the year 1,094 130 

Receipts during the year (764) (l 30) 

- 	 Closing 30 June 15,657 3,541 

Impairment provision (74) - 

Closing 30 June 15,583 3,541 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

32. Treasury bills 

Balance as Balan e as 
- 	 Description 	 Sub-Note at at 

30-Jun-21 30-Jt i-20 
Frw'millions Frw'mil I ions 

Treasury bills - Pension scheme 	 32.1 49,986 3 	.81 I 
Treasury bills - Medical scheme 	 32.2 42,352 16.513 
Treasury bills - Maternity leave scheme 	 32.3 3,935 - 

Total 96,272 51 ,323 

32.1. Treasury bills - Pension scheme 

- 	 Particular 2021 020 
Frw'millions Frw'mi1ions 

Opening balance 1 July 37,811 7 	.108 
Purchases 47,718 4 .477 

Interest accrued 4,938 .622 

Maturities (40,240) (911397) 
Closing 30 June 50,227 31,811 
Impairment provision (241) - 

Closing 30 June 49,986 37,811 

- 	 The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair value. 

32.2. Treasury bills— Medical scheme - 

Particular 2021 2020 
Frw'millions Frw'millions 

- 	 Opening balance 1 July 16,513 40.286 

Purchases 62,657 16.270 

Interest accrued 2,924 1.758 

Maturities (39,538) (41.802) 
- 	 Closing 30 June 42,556 1,513 

Impairment provision (204) - 

Closing 30 June 42,352 16,513 

The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair value. 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

32.3. Treasury bills - Maternity leave scheme 

Particular 
	 2021 	J020 

Opening balance 1 July 
Purchases 
Interest accrued 
Maturities 
Closing 30 June 

- 	Impairment provision 
Closing 30 June 

The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair v 

33. Commercial papers 

During the year, RSSB invested in commercial papers as follows: 

	

Frw'millions 	Frw'mill ons 

	

- 	3829 

	

3,648 	 - 

	

305 	 174 

	

- 	(4.003) 

	

3,954 	i - 

Company issuing commercial paper Sub-Note 	2021 	2020 
Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 

HORIZON GROUP 33.1 	 - 	 - 

NPDLimited 33.2 	12,506 	l47I5 

NGALI Holding Limited 33.3 	16,789 	 - 

Total 29,296 	147l5 

Details of the commercial papers are as follows: 

33.1. Commercial paper issued by Horizon Group 

2021 	 2020 
Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 

Opening balance 1 July - 	 2,756 

Purchases during the year - 	 - 

Interest accrued during the year - 	 211 
Maturities - 	 (2.966) 

Closing 30 June - 	 - 

On 22 February 2019, Commercial papers with Horizon Group Limited were renewed attracting an annual 
interest of 11% with a term of 364 days from purchase. This commercial paper matured and was fully settled 11 

2020 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

33.2. Commercial papers issued by NPD Limited 

- 2021 020 
Frw'miilions Frw'milions 

Opening balance 1 July 14,715 13.389 
- 	 Purchases during the year - 4.52() 

Interest accrued during the year 1,446 1326 
Maturities (3,312) (14.b20) 
Closing 30 June 12,849 14,7 15 
Impairment provision (343) - 

Closing 30 June 12,506 14,715 

-. 	On 15 May 2021, Commercial paper with NPD Limited was extended for 2 months attracting an annual intel' st 
of 10% 

33.3. Commercial papers issued by Ngali Holding Limited 

2021 2020 
Frw'millions Frw'miljions 

- 	 Opening balance 1 July - - 

Purchases during the year 16,915 

Interest accrued during the year 800 - 

- 	 Maturities (465) - 

Closing 30 June 17,250 - 

Impairment provision (461) - 

Closing 30 June 16,789 - 

During the year, NH issued a commercial paper of Frw 16.9 billion attracting an annual interest rate of 11% xilith 
a term of 364 days 

34. Advances to third parties- Government 

Loan to City of Kigali 

Loans to MININFRA 

Loan to MINECOFIN (CI3HI financing loan) 

Total 

Pension Medical Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Sub note FrwmiHions 	Frw'millions Frwmillions 	Frwmillions Frw'millions Frss'njllion 

34.1 1.330 1.501 - - 

34.2 3.989 4.009 - - 3.989 4 .UU9 

34.3 - ' 30.629 35.812 30.629 35.812 

5,319 5,510 30,629 35,812 35,948 41.322 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

Classification of advances to third parties (Non-current Vs Current) 

Pension Medical Total 
- 2021 	2020 2021 2020 2021 1 020 

Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'mil!ions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'miIions 
Non-current 

-- 

 

Loan to City of Kigali 1,330 	1,501 - - 1,330 1 50I 
Loans to MININFRA - 	 - - - 

- I 	- 

LoantoMINECOFIN - 	 - 30,629 35,812 30,629 35812 
37313 Sub-total (1) 	 1,330 	1,501 	30,629 	35,812 	31,959 

Current 
Loan to City of Kigali - 	 - - - - - 

Loans to MININFRA 3,989 	4,009 - - 3.989 4. 009 

Loan to MINECOFIN - 	 - - - - - 

4,009 Sub-total (2) 3,989 	4,009 - - 3,989 
4022 Grand total (1+2) 	 5,319 	5,510 	30,629 	35,812 	35,948 

34.1. Loan to City of Kigali 

	

2021 	 2020 

	

Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 
At 1 July 	 1,501 	1.76 
Repayments 	 (165) 	 (7) 
At3OJune 	 1,336 	1,501 
Impairment provision 	 (6) 	 - 
At 30 June 	 1,330 	1,501 

The loan to City of Kigali is from the agreement for Kibagabaga - Kinyinya road project between City of Kigali. 
-.  RSSB and Horizon Group where City of Kigali was responsible of contribution for the 60% of the total 

expropriation cost evaluated for the branch connecting to RSSB and 50% for the branch connecting to Horizon 
Group LTD investment sites, contribution of 100% cost for the study of road and contract management of all 

-  contracts related to this project which is road study and supervision services, road construction works and the 
expropriation related services. On 21 March 2019, an agreement between RSSB and City of Kigali to provide for 
the modalities of payment amounts due to RSSB by the City of Kigali was signed. The amounts covered uiider 
the agreement are as follows: 

Details 	 Amount (En) 
Advance for the construction of Kibagabaga - Kinyinya road 	 876.247 1 281 

- 	Compensation for plot transferred to Well Spring Academy 	 850.000000 
Total 	 1,726,247281 

It was agreed that payment would be made over a period of six (6) years from the financial year 2018/2019 to the 
financial year 2023-2024. Payment was to be executed on a quarterly basis with a payment of Frw 75,000000 
per quarter. As at 30 June 2020, a cumulative total of Frw 385,0000,000 had been settled by the City of Kigali. 

BE 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

34.2. Loan to MININFRA 

2021 - 2020 
Loan for Loan for 

Loan for 	Partitioning Loan for 	Partitioning 
CBDI 	ofKicukiro 	Total CBDI 	ofKicukiro otal 

Infrastructure 	pension Infrastructure 	pension 
plaza plaza 

Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Fnv'mil ions 

At 1 July 	 3.859 	149 	4.009 4.210 	149 .359 

Additions 	 - 	 - 	 - - 	 - - 

Repayments 	 - 	 - 	
- (351)  

At 30 June 	 3,859 	149 	4,009 3,859 	149 41009 

Impairment provision 	 (19) 	(I) 	(19) - 	 - - 

At 30 June 	 3,841 	149 	3,989 3,859 	149  

34.3. Loan to MINECOFIN 

The Loan to MINECOFIN relates to amounts advanced to Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI) Schpme 

during the year ended 30 June 2021 as per the movement shown below: 

- 2021 2020 
Fn'millions Frw'mi1ions 

At 1 July 35.812 
- 

35.323 
1.000 Additions 

Repayments (5.183) (9.51 I 

At 30 June 30,629 35,812 

Impairment provision - - 

At 30 June 30,629 3$,812 

The 	ministry 	settled 	Frw 	5,182,803,191 	during the 	year, 	therefore 	the 	outstanding 	balance due from 

MINECOFIN is Frw 30,629,079,251. 

- 	 35. Mortgages loans 

Pension Medical Total 

2021 2020 2021 	2020 2021 Z020 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

At 1 July: 63 153 - 	 (6) 63 147 

Adjustment to opening 
- 	 balance - (8) - 	 6 - (I) 

Unallocated receipts on 
Mortgage loans - prior 
year 78 93 - 	

- 78 93 

- 	 Receipts during the year (58) (97) - 	 - (58) (97) 

Unallocated receipts of 
Mortgage loans (66) (78) - 	

- (66) (78) 

- 	 Balance at the 30 June 18 63 - 	
- 18 63 

Impairment provision (2) - - 	
- (2) - 

Net balance at 30 June 16 63 - 	
- 16 63 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

Classification of Mortgage loans (Non-current Vs Current) 

Pension scheme Medical scheme 	 Total 
At 30 June 2021 At 30 June 2020 At 30 June 2021 	At 30 June 2020 	2021 N21 

- 	 Frwt milhions  Frw'millions Frw'milhions 	Frw'milhons 	Frw'milhions Frw'mill ions 
Non-current 	 7 26 7 26 
Current 	 9 36 - 	 9 36 
Total 	 16 63 - 	 16 63 

IC 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (conlinued) 

I 	I 	I I 	I I 	I I 

36. 	Inventory 

Pension Scheme 	 Medical Scheme CBHl Maternity leave I'otal 

2021 	2020 	2021 	2020 2021 	 2020 2021 	2020 2021 2020 

Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'miflions Frw'niillions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Office suppliers 	 89 	 146 	 83 	 119 106 	 80 9 	 14 287 358 

Fuel Inventory 	 I 	I 	 I 	 I I 	 I - 	 - 2 3 

90 	 147 	 84 	 119 107 	 80 9 	 14 290 361 

37. Advances to contractors 

Pension Medical ('BHI Maternity leave 	 Total 

2021 2020 2021 	 2020 2021 2020 2021 	2020 	 2021 2020 

Frw'milhions 	Frn'miflions Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions 	Fnv'millions Frw'nsillions 	Frw'milI ions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 

ENGINEERING BRIGADE 358 2,012 - 	 - - - - 	 - 	 358 2.012 

AFRI1'RECAST LII) 6,775 6.775 - 	 . - - - 	 - 	 6.775 6.775 

Other advances - 4 - 	 13 I 4 - 	 - 	 I 21 

Total 7,133 8,790 - 	 13 1 4 - 	 - 	 7,134 8,808 

Impatrrncnt pro'ision (190) - - 	 - - - - 	 - 	 (I 9(1) - 

Total (net of impairment) 6,943 8,790 - 	 13 1 4 - 	 - 	 6,944 8,808 

The advances to Engineering Brigade was reduced by the recognition of work done on Batsinda Housing project-phase 2 by Frw 406 inclusive of 
taxes the outstanding Frw 1.6 exclusive of taxes was compensated by a land swap between Engineering Brigade/Horizon Group and RSSB 
following the resolutions in the RSSB extraordinary Board meeting held on 21 August2020 and a land sale agreement entered into on 
November 2020. The total land purchase agreement is Frw 3,258,468,000 for 24.16h, RSSB withheld frw 1.6 billion for the advance paid to 
Engineering brigade/Horizon and paid the difference excluding 10% which will be paid after the transfer of land titles in RSSB names. 

Afriprecast Limited has taken up the ongoing contract for the Batsinda Housing project Phase 2 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

38. Dividends and other income receivable 

Pension Medical CBHJ Total 

2021 2020 	2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Frw'millions 	Frw' millions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'miliions Frw'millions 

Dividends receivable 4,698 731 	381 527 - - 5,079 1,258 

Other income receivable - - 	 - - - - - - 

Total 4,698 731 	381 527 - - 5,079 1,258 

Impairment provision (21) - 	 (1) - - - (22) - 

Total 4,677 731 	381 527 - - 5,058 1,258 

37 (a) Summary reconciliation of movement in dividend receivable 

Year ended 30 June 2021 Year ended 30 June 2020 
Pension Medical Total Pension Medical Total 

Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Opening balance 731 527 1,258 4.489 94 4,583 

Dividends declared 6.842 1,038 7,880 2.092 943 3,036 

Dividends received (2,230) (656) (2,886) (5,325) (117) (5,442) 

Dividends converted into share capital (645) (528) (1,173) (525) (394) (919) 

Gross dividend receivable 4,698 381 5,079 731 527 1,258 

Impairment provision (21) (I) (22) - - - 

Net dividend receivable 4,677 381 5,058 731 527 1,258 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

37 (b) Detailed reconciliation of movement in dividends receivable per equity investee - Pension scheme 

At 1 July 2020 Dividend declared Dividend received 	Dividend At 30 June 2021 
converted 
into share 

capital 
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw' millions Frw'miflions 

- 4,363 - - 4,363 
- 302 (302) - - 

212 362 (574) - - 

- 157 (157) - (-) 

- 199 (199) - - 

- 11 (5) - 6 

212 5,393 (1,236) - 4,368 

- 276 (276) - - 

519 975 (519) (645) 330 
- 61 (61) - - 

- 138 (138) - - 

519 1,449 (993) (645) 330 

731 	 6,842 	 (2,230) 	(645) 	 4,698 

Local investments 
Bank of Kigali Limited 
Crystal Telecom Ltd 
Ruliba Clays Limited 
lnyangye Industries 
Rwanda Investment Group 
Brasserie Et Limonaderie Du Rwanda (BRALIRWA) 
Rwanda stock exchange 

Sub-total (1) 

Foreign investments 
Safaricom Limited 
Eastern and Southern Africa Trade development bank 
Afrexim Bank 
KCB Group 
Sub-total (2) 

Grand total (1+3) 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

At 1 July 2019 Dividend declared Dividend received Dividend At 30 June 2020 
converted 
into share 

capital 
Frw'milljons Frv'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw' millions 

Local investments 
Bank of Kigali Limited 3,698 4,363 (3,698) - 4,363 

Crystal Telecom Ltd 366 302 (682) - (14) 

RulibaClays Limited - - (383) - (383) 

lnyangye Industries 424 362 (212) - 574 

Rwanda Investment Group 0 157 (67) - 89 

Sub-total (1) 4,489 5,183 (5,043) - 4,629 

Foreign investments 
Safaricom Limited - 276 (277) - (1) 

PTA Bank - 975 (3) (476) 496 

Afrexim Bank - 61 (3) (49) 9 

Sub-total (2) - 1,311 (282) (525) 504 

Grand total (1+3) 4,489 6,494 (5,325) (525) 5,133 

37 (c) Detailed reconciliation of movement in dividends receivable per equity investee - Medical scheme 

At 1 July 2020 Dividend declared Dividend received Dividend At 30 June 2021 
converted 
into share 

capital 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Fnv'millions 

Local investments 

Bank of KigaIi Limited - III 111 

Rwanda Investment Group - (47) - - 

Brasscrie El Limonaderie Du Rwanda (BRAIJRWA) - 82 (82) - - 

Suh-total (I) - 240 (129)  
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Foreign investments 

PTA Bank 

Sub-total (2) 

Grand total (1+3) 

StatT adv.mccs 

Former staff advances 

Other advances and deposits 

Other rental receivable 

Kicukiro pension plaza tenantS 

Grand pension plain tenants 

Nyatiza pension, plaza Teitni,s 

527 798 (527) (528) 270 

527 798 (527) (528) 270 

527 1,038 (656) (528) 381 

At 1 July 2019 Dividend declared Dividend received Dividend At 30 June 2020 
converted 
into share 

capital 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

94 111 (94) - 111 

- 47 (20) - 27 

94 158 (114) - 138 

- 798 (2) (394) 402 

- 798 (2) (394) 402 

94 956 (117) (394) 540 

Pennion Medical CBIII Maternity leave Ejo heir. Totr.I 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 	2020 2021 	2020 2021 	2020 2021 	2020 

Fnñotlt$o.,. Fr,.mtttton. FearnttU. 	Fn,n.Ifltrn. hn..mttI.... 	Fm.,.Ltttar. Froortlika. 	Feo.otttka. Fro.nittkwr. 	F.-,,.nttttns, Feer.ttttan. 	Fro.tItka. 

o 9 0 9 0 	 0 0 	 0 0 	 0 0 	 18 

33 53 43 40 10 	 (6) 1 	 (I) 0 	 0 87 	 86 

0 2 0 0 0 	 0 0 	 0 0 	 0 0 	 2 

IS 41 (3) (33) (I) 	 (I) (0) 	 (0) 0 	 0 14 	 6 

20 23 0 0 0 	 0 0 	 0 0 	 0 20 	 23 

231 322 0 0 0 	 0 0 	 (1 0 	 1) 231 	 322 

16 0 0 0 (I 	 11 I) 	 1) 0 	 ii (6 	 60 

IN 

Local investments 
Bank of Kigali Limited 

Rwanda Investment Group 

Sub-total (1) 

Foreign investments 

PTA Bank 

Sub-total (2) 

Grand total (1+3) 

39. Other assets 



Ponilon Medical ('Bill Maternity leave Ejo lieza Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Frot1t. 	Fn.'itti.a. Fro'88.o. 	Fni'..iU, Fr'ittI.n. Fn.'rr4Irn F,'.tIUi Fra'IIos .jIti.o. 	Fn'iIio Vn.'fli.a. Frn'iUk,ar 

Musanze pension plaza tenants 223 57 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 223 57 

Karongi pension plaza tenants 321 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 321 8 

Rwamagana pension plaza tenants 6 (4) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 (4) 

Doctors' plaza tenants 0 0 3 (I) 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 (I) 

Crystal plaza 341 342 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 341 342 

Mutazaenterprisebuilding IS IS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Ii IS 

Tower 2 tenants 6 0 3 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 8 

Nyarutarama plaza 268 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 268 0 

Staff advances (0) 132 I 103 0 (167) 0 (6) 0 0 t 61 

Otherdeduction 0 0 0 (13) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 0 0 (13) 

SONARWA Group Insurance 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (0) 

Staff pledges 0 2 0 I 0 2 0 (0) 0 0 I S 

Ishemaryacu 4 4 4 4 S 5 0 0 0 0 13 13 

Petty cash shortage 0 0 0 0 I 0 0 0 t 0 

Salary reversals 0 (0) 0 (0) 20 (0) 0 (0) 0 0 20 (0) 

Advance to be justified (0) (10) 8 7 60 59 I I 0 0 60 58 

Otherdebtors 1,204 1.356 31 14 5,193 2,904 I I 0 0 6,429 4,274 

KCC debt 437 437 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 437 437 

Batsundahouscsdcbl (17) (Il) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (17) (17) 

Withholding tax retained 31 32 24 26 0 0 (0) (0) 0 0 56 58 

Loan to ejo heza 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other receivables 629 335 to 3 0 Ii 0 0 0 0 6411 338 

Intevsclremctransfcr (6,943) (289) 8,162 1,418 (1.219) (1,167) 0 38 0 0 0 0 

Prepayment 771 23 30 14 33 II 4 I 0 0 838 48 

interest receivable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total (2,389) 2,936 8,325 t,599 4,102 1,639 7 34 0 0 10,045 6,207 

Impairment provIsion (22) 0 (41) 0 (26) 0 0 0 0 0 (89) 0 

Total (net of impairment) (2,411) 2,936 8,284 1,599 4,077 1,639 7 34 0 0 9,956 6,207 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
Due from (Due to) other schemes 

Pension Medical CBHI Maternity leave Total 

2021 2020 2021 	2020 2021 2020 2021 	2020 2021 	 2020 

Erw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'inillion 	Frw'mil1ion Frw'mitlions 	Frw'millions Frw'rnillions 	Frw'nzillions Frw'millions 	Frw'million, 

INTERSCHEMELOANRECEIVABLE 	 (1,000) 7,647 - 	 9,023 - 372 (-) 	 121 (1,000) 	17.162 

INTERSCHEME LOAN PAYAI3LES 	 - (5.502) - 	 (7,451) 1.000 (3,916( - 	 (294) 1.000 	(17,162) 

Net due from/(due to) other schemes 	 (1.000) 2,145 - 	 1,572 1,000 (3,544) - 	 (173) - 	 - 

Deposits with financial institutions 

Long term deposits 

Rwanda Developmcnl Bank 

All Hank 

Bank of Kigali 

Bank Populaire du Rwanda (Atlas Mara) 

Commercial Bank of Africa (Rwanda) 

Zigama CSS 

Sub-total (1) 

Short term deposits 

AB BANK Rwanda Limited 

Bank of Africa 

Hank of Kigali Limited 

Bank Populaire du Rwanda (Atlas Mara) 

Cogdllanque 

ECOBANK Rnda l.imited 

Equity Bank Rwanda Limited 

l&M Bank Rinda limited 

Kenya Commercial Ilank 

1.LTSI ll( ill Bank 

Pension Medical Maternity leave Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Frw'miHions 	Frw'millions Frw'nsillions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 

23.282 25,398 24,454 26,673 - - 47,736 52,071 

1.075 1,076 - - - 
- 1,075 1.076 

9,204 8,146 - - - 
- 9.204 8.146 

2.094 1,052 10,808 10.808 - - 12.902 11.860 

7,144 6,134 - - - - 7,144 6.134 

41.1 	42,798 41,807 35,262 37,481 - - 78,060 79,288 

770 779 - - - - 770 779 

5,318 5.323 2,052 2,057 - - 7,370 7,380 

42.192 32,373 16.495 32,118 4,381 4,387 63,068 68,879 

7,153 10,463 16,543 11,527 - - 23.697 21.990 

13.213 13,248 12,230 17,611 5,170 5,191 30.612 36.050 

5,249 5,270 - - - - 5,249 5,270 

5 18 19,354 9.278 3.046 30A 22.404 12.360 

- - 17.232 16,585 - - 17.232 16,585 

15,403 15.009 8,773 8,628 - - 24,176 23,637 
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Pension Medical Maternity leave Total 

2021 2020 	2021 2020 2021 	2020 2021 2020 

Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Unguka Bank - 1,030 	 - 2 - 	 - - 1,032 

ZigainaCSS 5,214 5,264 	4,191 4,225 - 	 - 9,405 9.489 

Commercial Bank ofAtrica (Rwanda) 0 1,042 	 - - 1,015 	 - 1,015 1,042 

Sub-total (2) 41.2 	94,517 89,818 	96,870 102,031 13,612 	12,643 204,999 204,492 

Call deposit - KCB 804 2,300 	 - - - 	 - 804 2,300 

Sub-total (3) 41.3 	 804 2,300 - - 	 - 804 2,300 

Bank ofKgaIi - Nest fund (long term deposit) 41.4 	5,192 5,194 	 - - - 	 - 5,192 5,194 

Sub-total (4) 5,192 5,194 	 - - - 	 - 5,192 5,194 

Grandtotal(1+2-f3+4) 143,310 139,118 	132,131 139,513 13,612 	12,643 289 9054 291,273 

Impairment provision (708) - 	 (653) - (67) 	 - (1.428) - 

Total (net of impairment) 142,602 139,118 	131,479 139,513 13,545 	12 9643 287,626 291,273 

Classification of deposits with financial institutions (Non-current Vs Current) 

Pension Medical Maternity leave Total 

2021 	 2020 2021 2020 2021 	 2020 2021 2020 

Frw'millions 	F'rw' millions Fns'millions 	Fnv' millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw' millions F'nv' millions Frw'millions 

Non-current 47,282 	41,807 31,245 37.481 - 	 - 81.824 84,481 

Current 95,320 	92,118 100.234 102.031 13.545 	12,643 205,802 206.792 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

41.1. Reconciliation of movement in long term deposit during the year 

Pension Medical Total Pension Medical Total 

2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020 

Frwniillions Frw'millions Frwrnillionn Frw'millions Erw'millions Frw'niillions 

Opening I July 
41.807 37.481 79.288 35.540 26.773 62,313 

Prior year adjustment 4 (4) 

Placements 
3.000 - 3.000 5,000 10,000 15.000 

Interest accrued during the year 
3,954 3843 7,797 3270 3.418 6.688 

Rcceiptsduringtheyear 
(5,962) (6.066) (12,028) (2,003) (2,706) (4,709) 

Closing 30 June 42,798 35,262 78,060 41,807 37,481 79,288 

41.2. Reconciliation of movement in short term deposits in financial institutions during the year 

Pension 	Medical Maternity leave Total Pension Medical 	Maternity leave Total 

2021 	 2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020 2020 

Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'niillions Fns"millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Fnv'millions Fnv' millions 

Opening I July 	 89,818 	102.031 12,643 204,492 83,217 74,758 - 157,975 

Adjuslinent to opening balances 	 7,357 	 (7) - 7,350 58 2 - 60 

l'laccment during the year 	 90.750 	99,000 13.000 202.750 90.763 120.000 15,000 225.763 

Interest accrued during the year 	 7.945 	8.477 1.171 17.594 8,222 8,837 793 17,852 

Maturities 	 (101.354) 	(112.632) (13,201) (227.187) (92.442) (101.566) (3.150) (197.159) 

Closing 30 June 	 94,517 	96,870 13,612 204,999 89,818 102,031 12,643 204,492 

41.3. Reconciliation of movement in call deposit during the year 

2021 2021 2020 2020 

Fn 'mil lions Frw' millions Frw' millions Frs" millions 

Opening balance - 1 July 2018 252 2.300 1,208 11.014 

Placements during the year 105 963 5317 48,135 

Interest accrued during the year 9 73 21 190 

Receipt of principal and interest (280) (2.554) (6,294) (56.880) 

tJnrealised exchange gain - 22 - (158) 

Closing balance -30 June 2019 86 804 252 2,300 



NOTES TO THE FIN14NCL4L STA TEMENTS (continued) 

41.4. Reconciliation of movement in Bank of Kigali - Nest Fund 

Opening 1 July 

Placement during the year 

Interest accrued during the year 

Maturities 

Closing 30 June 

2021 2020 

Frw'millions Frw'millions 

5,194 - 

- 5,000 

243 194 

(245) - 

5,192 5,194 

Cash and bank balances 

Pension Medical CBHI Maternity leave Ejo llcza Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Fn,'uhi,, En,'mUIi.. Fn,'mUHo,, 	Fr,'ntIIn, Fr.'ilii,n, Fr.,'n,tlIiorn Fn'iIIi,. 	EnItIi, 'IIli. Fr,,.lIILo.., 

I3NR and Commercial banks 89,684 47,020 36.453 27.388 2.004 3,552 4,390 8.227 931 921 133.462 87,109 

lmpairmcnt provision (443) 0 (180) (1 (13) 0 (36) 0 (5) 0 (676) 0 

BNR and Commercial banks (balancej net of impairment) 89,241 47,020 36,273 27,388 1.992 3,552 4,354 8,227 926 921 132,786 87,109 

Savings and Cicdit Societies (SAC('Os) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Mobcash 0 0 0 0 409 1,053 0 0 3 0 412 1,054 

Petty cask 5 5 S 5 6 6 0 1 0 0 17 17 

Transit accounts 342 1,988 294 (1,601) 587 749 25 7 0 4 1.247 1.147 

89.588 49.014 36,571 25.792 2,993 5,360 4.379 8,235 929 926 134,461 89.327 

Other payables 

Pension Medical CBIII Maternity leave Ejo Heza Total 

2021 	2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 	2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Frw 	Few Frw Frw I"rw Frw Few 	Few Frw Few Few Few 

Suppliers 1,756 	1.221 1.035 470 491 396 52 	41 0 0 3,334 2.128 

Advance to Supl)lterS (0) 	 (0) (0) (0) 0 0 0 	 0 0 0 (0) (0) 

('outtilmijons (51,665) 	(48,592) (1 1) 0 0 (I 	 0 0 (1 (51,665) (48,592) 

Voliiniarv ccintl ibiitions 210 	2 	I 0 0 0 (1 o 0 I) 230 231 



I 	 I 	 I 	 I 	I 	I 	I 	I 	I 

Unidentified contributions 

Contributions declared not yet paid/Pension 

Contributions Pcnaltics declared not yct paid/Pension 

Estimation for non-declared contributions 

Medical contributions receivable 

Contributions declared not yet paid/Medical 

Estimation for non-declared contributions and penalties/Medical 

CBHI Contributions receivable 

('BHI Voluntary contributions 

CBHI Contributions declared not yet paid 

CBHI Contributions Penalties declared not yet paid 

ML, Contributors 

ML. Unidentified 

ML. Contributions declared not yet paid 

ML. Contributions Penaltics declared not yet paid 

Ml.. Estimation for non-declared contributions 

Staff salaries payable 

Solidanty hind 

CESTRAR contributions 

l)eductions for Caisse IYEntraidc Mutucllc 

Stall' contribution to TONTINE 

SONARWA individual insurance 

SEAR deductions 

CORAR Insurance 

SORAS Individual insurance 

Agaciro Development Fund 

PRIME LIFE INSURANCE 

FJ() HF2A 

Other salary reversals 

RRA- WIlT 

PA VU 

Pension Medical CBHI Maternity leave Ejo Heza Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Erw Frw Few Frw Fm, Frw 

O 1,412 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,412 

(33,069) (30,639) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (33,069) (30,639) 

28.959 27,368 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28,959 27,368 

55,544 51,633 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 55,544 51,633 

0 0 12,082 8,625 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,082 8,625 

0 0 (15,447) (12,003) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (15,447) (12,003) 

0 0 3,365 3,377 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,365 3,377 

0 0 0 0 658 0 0 0 0 0 658 0 

0 0 0 0 (0) 0 0 0 0 0 (0) 0 

0 0 0 0 (729) 0 0 0 0 0 (729) 0 

0 0 0 0 71 0 0 0 0 0 71 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 1,684 1,241 0 0 1,684 1,241 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 (1,688) (1,244) 0 0 (1,688) (1,244) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 (0) (0) 0 0 (0) (0) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 0 4 4 

3 2 3 10 4 (I) 0 (I) 124 0 135 10 

2 (9) 2 16 3 0 0 I 0 0 7 8 

0 (0) 0 (0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (0) 

(0) (0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (0) 0 

0 (0) 0 (0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (0) 

0 (1) 0 (I) 0 (I) 0 (0) 0 0 0  

0  0 (0) (0) 0 0 0 (I 0 0  

(0) (0) 0 (0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 (0) 0 0 0 (0) 0 0 0 (0) 

0 (0) 0 (0) (0) 1 0 (0) 0 0 0 (0) 

0 (0) 0 (0) 0 0 0 (0) 0 0 0 (0) 

0 I 0 2 0 (0) 0 0 0 3 0 

0 (7) 0  0  0 (2) 0 0 (7 (21) 

(73) (32) 347 320 (242) (258) (3) (4) 0 0 30 26 

52 (26) 55 158 165 56 6 2 1; 0 278 190 
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VAT (Value Added Tax) 

Pension benefit payablc 

OH benefit payable 

Pension benefits returned unpaid 

occupational hazard bcncflts returned unpaid 

CPOEL payable 

Contribution due to employces from Bunindt 

Electricity advances to tenants 

RSSB/Pension &OH 

RSSBIRAMA 

RSSB/MATERN ITY 

RSSB/CBHI 0.5 

Unidentified receipts 

Other creditors 

Anears CBHI 

Other payablcs 

Advance received 

Prnaion Medical CBHI Maternity leave Ejo Heea Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 202* 2020 2021 2020 

Frw Frw Frw Frw l?rw Frw Few Frw Few Fn' Few Few 

782 706 (775) (805) (436) (420) (12) (13) 0 0 (440) (531) 

58 41 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 58 41 

22 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22 5 

11 ii 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 II II 

(I) (I) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (I) (I) 

33 32 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 33 32 

112 112 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 112 112 

0 I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 I 

Il (273) 12 297 32 31 I I 0 0 57 56 

17 356 19 (344) 51 58 2 2 0 0 90 72 

1 2 I I 2 2 0 (0) 0 0 4 4 

0 0 I 0 I (0) 0 0 0 0 2 (0) 

0 399 (5) (5) 0 22 0 (0) 0 0 (5) 416 

2.115 238 (252) 317 9,872 7,325 16 16 0 0 11,751 7,895 

0 0 0 0 1,131 1,028 0 0 0 0 1,131 1,028 

54 0 1 0 I 0 (0) 0 0 0 57 0 

48 48 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 48 48 

5,005 4,231 445 428 11,078 8,233 63 46 124 0 16,716 12,937 

44. Deferred income- Ejo Heza 

Pension Medical 	 Ejo Heza Total 

2021 	 2020 2021 	 2020 	 2021 2021 202* 2020 

Frw'milliorm 	Frw'millions Frw'millions 	Frw'rnillions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

MINECOFIN deferred income- unutilised fluids 386 347 386 347 

AFR deferred income (PPE) 5 16 5 16 

AFR defcrrcd income (Intangible asset) 292 328 292 328 

- 	 - - 	 - 	 682 69* 682 691 

The balance for deferred income on PPE and intangible assets is equivalent to the nethook value of the assets as at the reporting date. 



Share capital 

Pension Medical Total 

Frw Frw Frw 

AtlJuly2Ol9 53 1,179 1,232 

At 30 June 2020 53 1,179 1,232 

At 1 July 2020 53 1,179 1,232 

At3OJune2O2I 53 1,179 1,232 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
45. Accumulated members funds and retained earnings 

Retained earnings relate to surpluses from the medical and pension division not converted to statutory reserve. Accumulated members' funds represent the surplus 
on the other reserves of occupational Hazards. Movements in the reserve are shown on the statement of changes in equity. 

Pension Medical ('Bill Maternity lease Ejo flees Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

S'r'mittIoa, Fraettt6.,, Fn,'atiii.n* Fr,,'n,Iih,.,. Fm'n,itttoa, Fnetttloa, I'n,'nittim, Fn,'mltIi,o, Fma.iitioa, Fn,aiitioa. 

At I July (A) 366,641 331,244 290,485 257,003 (24.938) (20,662) 20.396 13,274 179 104 652,763 580,963 

Adjustments to opening balances (B) 0 (0) (531) (0) 0 (0) 0 0 (30) (105) (561) (105) 

0 0 

Allotment of net income for the year to reserves 0 0 

Net income for the year (I) 64,295 198,990 35.321 36,783 2.635 (4,277) 7.893 7,123 11.669 3,894 121,813 242,514 

Allotment of net uicome for the year to statutory reserves and fair value reserve (2) (54.554) (163.593) 1.868 (3.301) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (52.686) (166,895) 

Net increase in lu0 Hera member funds (10,653) (3,715) (10,653) (3,715) 

Net increase in lujo Heza unallocated n,einber funds 0 0 

Net income for year after allotment (C1+2) 9,741 35,397 37,189 33.482 2,635 (4,277) 7,893 7,123 1,017 179 58,474 71,904 

At30June(D"A+l84(7+D) 376,382 366,641 327,143 290.485 (22,303) (24,938) 28,289 20,396 1,165 179 710,676 652,763 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
- 	 46. Revaluation reserve 

The revaluation surplus represents the surplus on the revaluation of land and buildings and is non-
distributable Movements in the reserve are shown on the statement of changes in equity 

Pension 	 Medical 	 Total 

Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 

At 1 July 2019 4.252 	 4.506 

Revaluation gain/(loss) 328 	 2,260 	 2.587 

At3OJune2O2O 581 	 6,512 	 7,093 

- 	 At 1 July2020 581 	 6.512 	 7.093 

At30June2021 581 	 6.512 	 7.093 

Fair value reserve 

The fair value reserve represents the surplus on the revaluation of equity investments at fair value 
through profit and loss, and investment properties. This surplus is non-distributable. Movements in 
the reserve are shown on the statement of changes in equity. The revaluation has no deferred tax 
impact as RSSB is tax exempt by law. 

- 	 Pension Medical 	 Total 

2021 	 2020 2021 	 2020 	2021 	 2020 

Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions 	Fn4- 'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 

At I July (A) 	 81.936 	 4.525 15,677 	12.376 	97,613 	16.906 

Adjustment to opening balance 	 0 	 0 531 	 0 	 531 	 0 

Allotment of increase in net assets during the year - 

gain/(loss) arising from changes in fair values of 

equttv investments (B) 	 (47,431) 	(1.715) (1.868) 	 3.832 	(49,299) 	 2.118 

- 	 Allotment of increase in net assets during the year' 
gaini(loss) arising from change in fair value of 
investmentproperties 	 0 	79.126 0 	 (531) 	 0 	78.595 

At30June(DA+B) 	 34,505 	81,936 14.340 	15,677 	48,845 	97,613 

Statutory reserves 

The statutory reserves are set out by decree law of 22 August 1974 concerning organisation of Social 
Security. Article 15 of the Law stipulates that the National Social Security Institutions provide the 
following reserves for both the occupational hazards and pensions branches; 

Pension Working Capital reserve is equivalent to a quarter of the total expenses of the pension's 
branch previous year 
Pension Technical reserve should not be lower than the total expenses of the branch for the last 
three years 
Occupational Hazards Technical reserve must be equal to twelve times the total amount of 
occupational hazards paid during the year 
Occupational Hazards Security reserve is equal to a quarter of the expenses incurred during the 

- 	 last three years 
Occupational Hazards Working capital reserve should be equal to a quarter of the expenses of the 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

Statutory reserves as at the end of the year were as follows: 

2021 2020 
- Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Occupational hazard reserve -technical 48.1 78.225 61.168 

Occupational hazard reserve -Security 48.2 7,769 7.006 

- 	 Occupational hazard reserve- Working capital 48.3 2,786 2.497 

Sub-total (1) 88,780 70,670 

Pension reserve- technical 48.4 577,938 501,390 
Pension reserve- working capital 48.5 38,035 30.708 

Sub-total (2) 615,973 532,098 

Total 704,753 602,768 

48.1. Occupational hazard reserve -technical 

Pension 

	

2021 	2020 
Frw'millions Frw'millions 

At 1 July (A) 	 61.168 	47.281 

Allotment of increase in net assets during the year (B) 	 48.1 (a) 	17.057 	13,887 

At30 June (CA+B) 	 78,225 	61,168 

48.1 (a) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year to reserve 

Amount 
(Frw'millions) 

Occupational hazard benefit paid during the year ended 30 June 2021(B) [See note 10.1] 	1.421 

Allocation of increase in net assets to Occupational hazard technical reserve (Bx12) 	17,057 

Occupational hazard benefit paid during the year ended 30 June 2020 [See note 10.1] 	 1.157 

Allocation of increase in net assets to Occupational hazard technical reserve (Bx12) 	13,887 

48.2. Occupational hazard reserve -Security 

Pension 

At 1 July (A) 
Allotment of increase in net assets during the year (B) 

At 30 June (CA+B) 

	

2021 	2020 
Frw'millions Frw'millions 

	

7.006 	6.377 
48.2 (a) 	 763 	630 

	

7,769 	7,006 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

- 	 48.2 (a) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year to reserve 

Amount 
(Frw'millions) 

- 	 Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2018 875 
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2019 1.019 
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2020 (see note 10.1) 1.157 

- 	 Total occupational hazards benefit expenses paid in the last three years (A) 3,051 

Allocation of increase in net assets of pension scheme to reserve (C=Ax25%) 763 

Amount 
(Frw'millions) 

Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2017 624 
- 	 Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2018 875 

Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2019 1.019 

Total occupational hazards benefit expenses paid in the last three years (A) 2,518 

Allocation of increase in net assets of pension scheme to reserve (C=Ax25%) 630 

- 	 48.3. Occupational hazard reserve- Working capital 

Pension 
- 2021 2020 

Frw'millions Frw'millions 
At 1 July (A) 2.497 2.242 

Allotment of increase in net assets during the year (B) 	 48.3(a) 289 255 

- 	 At 30 June (CA+B) 2,786 2,497 

48.3 (a) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year to reserve 

Amount 
(Frw'millions) 

Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2020 	 1.157 

Allocation of increase in net assets of pension scheme to reserve (Frw) (B=Ax25%) 	 289 

- 	 Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2019 	 1,019 

Allocation of increase in net assets of pension scheme to reserve (Frw) (BAx25%) 	 255 

48.4. Pension reserve- technical 

At I JuIy(A) 
Allotment of increase in net assets during the year (B) 

At 30 June (CA+B) 

Pension 

	

2021 	2020 
Frw'millions Frw'millions 

	

501.390 	436.623 
48.4 (a) 	76,548 	64.768 

	

577,938 	501,390 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCiAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

48.4 (a) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year 

Amount 
(Frw'millions) 

Total pension benefits expense 2018 20,662 

Total pension benefits expense 2019 26.575 

- 	 Total pension benefits expense 2020 [see note 10.1] 29.311 

Total benefits expense for the last three years (A) 76,548 

- 	 Allocation of net assets to pension technical reserve (B=A) 76,548 

Amount 
- (Frw'millions) 

Total pension benefits expense 2017 17.531 

Total pension benefits expense 2018 20.662 

Total pension benefits expense 2019 26.575 

Total benefits expense for the last three years (A) 64,768 

Allocation of net assets to pension technical reserve (B=A) 64,768 

48.5. Pension reserve- working capital 

Pension 
2021 2020 

Frw'millions Frw'millions 

At 1 July (A) 30,708 24,064 

Allotment of increase in net assets during the year (B) 	 48.5 (a) 7,328 6.644 

At 30 June (CA+B) 38,035 30,708 

48.5. (a) Reconciliation of allocation of net income for the year to reserve 

Amount 
(Fn%' millions) 

Benefits paid to pensioners in 2020 (A) [see note 10.1] 29.311 

Allocation of increase in net assets to Pension working capital reserve for the year 
(B=A*25% 7,328 

Amount 
(Frw'million 

s) 
Benefits paid to pensioners in 2019 (A) 	 26.575 
Allocation of increase in net assets to Pension working capital reserve for the year 
(B=A*25% 	 6,644 
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Pension 

	

2021 	 2020 

	

Frw'millions 	Frs'millions 

0 

1.811 

105 

(6) 

Total 

	

2021 	 2020 

	

Frw'millions 	Frw'miIlions 

0 

1.811 

05 

(6) 

1,910 	 0 	 1,910 	 0 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

Unallocated pension contribution reserve 

At I July (A) 

Creation of unallocated pension reserve (reclassifying from other payables to reserves) 

Unallocated contributions received during the year (B) 

Allocation of previously unallocated contributions to member accounts (C) 

At 31 July D=(A+B-C) 

Ejo Heza Member funds 

Accumulated member funds (allocated member contributions) 

Reserve for unallocated member contributions 

Ejo Heza 

2021 2020 

Frw'millions Frw'miUions 

14.458 3.805 

379 1 35 

14.837 3,941 

Contingent liabilities 

The Board is a litigant in various cases for breach of contract arising in the normal course of business 
The directors are of the view that the Board has high chances of success against the plaintiffs and 
none of the cases individually or in aggregate would have a significant impact on the Board's 
operation. The directors are confident that the Board shall receive favourable ruling from the 
outstanding cases. Information on these cases has not been disclosed as the directors consider that the 
disclosure of the information could prejudice the Board's position. The cases in which the Board is a 
litigant majorly relate to alleged breach of contracts that the Board entered into and members suing 
for their unsettled benefit claims. 

Other than the liability to pay future pensions and other benefits, there were no contingent liabilities 
of the Board at 30 June 2021. 

Related parties 

The Rwanda Social Security Board operates under the Ministry of Finance and Economic Planning 
(MINECOFIN). In accordance with Law No 45 of 2010 establishing the Rwanda Social Security 
Board and determining its mission, organization and functioning, the Prime Minister appoints the 
directors to the Board of RSSB. RSSB considers the Government of Rwanda ("GoR") to be in a 
position to exercise significant influence over it, and therefore regards GoR and several of its bodies 
as related parties for the purpose of the disclosures required by lAS 24 (2009) Related Parties 
Disclosures 

RSSB has elected to adopt the exemption available in paragraph 25 of lAS 24, and therefore has not 
provided detailed disclosure of its transactions with GoR and its agencies. A summary of the Board's 
transactions with the GoR and its bodies is included below: 

. 	RSSB advanced amounts to the City of Kigali, Ministry of Infrastructure and Ministry of 
Finance and Economic Planning. Details of these advances are disclosed in note 33 to these 
financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

• 	RSSB in the normal course of its investment and treasury operations during the year purchased 
treasury bonds and bills as reflected in notes 30 and 31 to the financial statements. RSSB also 

- 	 places term deposits and operates current bank accounts with the following institutions which 
are related parties; 

- National Bank of Rwanda (BNR) which is the central bank of the Republic of Rwanda. 

- Rwanda Development Bank (BRD) - RSSB held 32.2% of ordinary shares in BRD as at 30 
June 2021. 

- 	 - Bank of Kigali (BK) - RSSB held 34.3% of ordinary shares in BK as at 30 June 2021. 

- Cogebanque SA - RSSB held 30.6% of ordinary shares in Cogebanque as at 30 June 2021. 

- Zigama CSS - is a credit and savings bank under the Ministry of Defence (MINADEF). 

The transactions described above are both collectively and individually significant to the financial 
statements. 

53. Actuarial valuation 

a) Pension and occupational hazard scheme 

Background and purpose of the actuarial valuation 

The purpose of an actuarial valuation is to review the long-term financial sustainability of a scheme. 
RSSB therefore commissioned AON Hewitt limited to conduct actuarial valuation of the pension and 
occupational hazard scheme as at 30 June 2020. Aon Hewitt Ltd has issued an actuarial report dated 
16 February 2021. 

- 	 The actuarial valuation report includes projections over the next 50 years from the valuation date, i.e. 
over the period 2020-2021 to 2069-2070 for: 

the financial position of the Scheme on a "going concern" basis, comparing the actual assets 
held against a target amount planned to be sufficient to pay the benefits; 
the planning or budgeting of contributions required to bring the assets in line with the planned 
target. 
the contribution rate required to balance contribution income and expenditure (known as 
'Breakeven Contribution Rate') 
income and expenditure 
The 'Balance of Fund' as a multiple of expenditure (also known as the 'Fund Ratio') 
Dependency ratio and membership profile 

Management and directors have not undertaken an actuarial assessment for the period ended 30 June 
2021 and believe the report for the period ended 30 June 2020 provides reasonable actuarial valuation 
to support a review of the long-term financial sustainability of a scheme. 

The results of the actuarial valuation of the Rwanda Pension and Occupational Hazard Scheme ('the 
Scheme") as at 30 June 2020 over are as summarised below: 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

1) Actuarial present value ofpromised retirement benefits for the scheme 

- 	 The actuarial valuation shows that the pension and occupational hazards scheme had projected 
actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits of Frw 5,709.2 billion compared to net 
assets of at Frw 1,052.3 billion at 30 June 2020, resulting to a deficit of Frw 4,656.9 billion, as 
shown below: 

As at 30 June 2020 
Frw' billions 

Past service liabilities (present value of benefits promised on service) 

Active members (4.640.9) 

Deferred members  (716.4) 

Pensioners  

Total past service liabilities (B)    (5,709.2) 

Short fall (C-B) - 	 (4,656.90) 

This corresponds to a funding ratio of 18.4%. This compares with a Scheme funding position of 
- 	 54J% at the previous actuarial valuation as at 30 June 2016 (issued in January 2018). 

The actuarial present value of benefits promised on service as at the valuation date is derived as the 
- 	 discounted present value of projected expenditure in respect of accrued benefits, based on projected 

salary levels. 

Pension branch 

- 	 For Pension branch of the scheme, the actuarial valuation shows that the branch had projected 
actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits of Frw 5,673.9 billion compared to net assets 
of at Frw 789.2 billion at 30 June 2020, resulting to a deficit of Frw 4,884.7 billion, as shown below: 

As at 30 June 2020 
Frw billions 

Assets of the scheme (A) 789.2 

Past service liabilities owed - 

(present value of benefits promised on service) - ........................ 
Active members (4.6 14.8) 

Deferred members   (716.4) 

Pensioners 	 - 
(342.7) 

Total past service liabilities (B) (5,673.9) 

Short fall (A-B) (4,884.7) 

- 	 This corresponds to a funding ratio of 13.9%. This compares with a funding ratio of4l.1% at the 
previous actuarial valuation. 

Occupational hazard branch of the scheme 

- 	 For Occupational hazard branch of the scheme, the actuarial valuation shows that the branch had 
projected actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits of Frw 35.3 billion compared to net 

assets of at Frw 263.1 billion at 30 June 2020, resulting to a surplus of Frw 227.8 billion, as shown 

- 	 below: 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

The surplus of the assets relative to the technical provisions is RWF 227.8bn for the occupational 
hazards branch. This corresponds to a funding ratio of 745.5%, compared to funding ratio of 
1,100.9% at the previous actuarial valuation. 

- 	 The overall decline in the funding ratio of the scheme compared to previous actuarial valuation is 
attributed to a number of changes to the Scheme since the previous actuarial valuation was completed 
as at 30 June 2016; as well as changes in the data, methodology and assumptions. This has led to 
changes in the results since the previous actuarial valuation. The main changes to the Scheme during 

- - 	 the inter-valuation period were outlined in the actuarial report to as follows: 

The last pension increase in the Scheme was awarded in 2018 where the Minimum Pension was 
increased from RWF 5,200 per month (which was applicable from 2002) to RWF 13,000 per 

- 	 month and other pension benefits increased as well. 

Prior to 2015, deferred members who had contributed but did not make any claim on their 
pensions for a period of 10 years and above would forfeit their benefits. However, new laws 
with effect from 2015 have reversed this approach and now anyone who contributed and who 
claims their pension even after a 10-year period, will have their accrued rights preserved. 

Funding position excluding deferred members 

The overall shortfall of the assets relative to the technical provisions excluding deferred members is 
RWF 3,940.5 billion for the Scheme. This corresponds to a funding ratio of 21 .1%. The shortfall of 
the assets relative to the technical provisions excluding deferred members is RWF 4,168.3 billion for 

- 	 the Pension Branch. This corresponds to a funding ratio of 15.9%. 

2) Contributions required to bring the assets in line with the planned target (the requiredfuture 
service contribution rate) 

The required future service contribution rate is the rate of contribution that would normally be 
appropriate if the Scheme had no surplus or shortfall and the assets were exactly equal to the technical 
provisions at the valuation date. The required total contribution rate under the Pension Branch to 

- 	 cover the cost of benefits accruing over the next year, excluding expenses of the Scheme, is 27.1% of 
pensionable salaries (The rate is before any allowance to cover the amortisation of the deficit) as 
shown below: 

Pension branch 

- 	%ageofpensionable salary 
Future service benefits under psion branch - 	 27.1 
Adminstratveexppesunderpensionbranch 0.3 

27.5 

This compares with contributions of approximately 16.6% of pensionable salaries at the previous 
valuation. It should also be noted that only 6% of pensionable salaries is currently being paid by the 
employer and employee jointly. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

The increase in contribution rate over the valuation period under the Pension Branch is mainly due to 
the change in financial assumptions and demographic assumptions (ageing population and increase in 
life expectancy). 

Occupational hazard branch 

-. 	 The required total contribution rate under the Occupational Hazard Branch to cover the cost of 
benefits accruing over the next year, excluding expenses of the Scheme, is 0.2% of pensionable 
salaries (The rate is before any allowance to lower the surplus). 

Required contributions for: - 	 geofpensionablesalar - 
Future service benefits under occupationalhazard branch- .........................9.•2 
Administrative expenses under occuponaI hazard branch 	 0.1 

0.3 

Historically, administrative expenses represent on average 0.4% of pensionable salaries. These 
expenses were apportioned between the pension and occupational hazard branches in a 75 0/0125% 
split. 

3) The contribution rate required to balance contribution income and expenditure (known as 
'Breakeven Contribution Rate) 

The breakeven contribution rate represents the Pay-As-You-Go (PAYG) contribution rate as if the 
Scheme was unfunded and only considers money-in and money-out without future investment 
returns. The contribution-weighted average break-even contribution rate over the projection period 
is around 23.4% of pensionable salary as compared to the current 6% of contributions. 

The projected short term and long-term break-even contribution rates required to balance 
contribution income with expenditure on benefits and expenses each year over a 50-year projection 
period are shown below: 

Short-term break-even contribution rates: 

Year 2021 	2022 	2023 . 	 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 1 2029 2030 

Pension 660% 	330% 	310% 	320% 320% 330% 340% 350%360% 400% 

Occupational 0.20% 	0.20% 	0.20% 	0.20% 0.20% 0.20% 0.20% 0.20% 0.20% 0.20% 

hazard ..................................... - ------------------- - 
Scheme 

____ 	 _. 
6.80% 	3.50% 	3.30% 	3.40% 3.40% 3.50% 3.60% 3.70% 3.80% 4.20% 

Long-term break-even contribution rates: 

Year 2021 2030 2040 2050 2060 2070 

Pension  660% 400% 970% 27 80% 33 1 0%_J 1870% 

Occupationa_ 0 20% 1 0 20% 0 20% 0 20% 0 20% 0 20% 

Scheme 6.80% 1 4.20% 10.00% . 28.00% 33.30% 18.90% 

These compare with the current 8% salary contribution rate of which 6% in respect of the pension 
branch and 2% is in respect of the occupational hazard branch. 

The current contribution rate seems to be sufficient to meet benefits on a PAYG basis until the year 
2038. The lower Break-even contribution rate at the start of the projection period reflects the lower 
average service (i.e. those entitled to a lump sum instead of the more costly pension payments) and 
part subsidy by the surplus in occupational hazard branch as well as covering pension payments by 
a large active population earlier in the projection. After 2038, the current contribution rate is no 
longer sufficient as evidenced by the rising required break-even contribution rate. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

The current pension branch contribution rate is expected to be sufficient to benefits on a PAYG 
basis until the year 2036. However, after 2036, the pension branch break-even contribution rate 

- 	 increases to 35.6% of pensionable salary in 2056/2057 assuming that there will be fewer active 
members in the future to bear the cost of benefit payments and expenses thereby clearly indicating 
that the current contribution rate of 6% would not be adequate over the projection period. The 

- 

	

	 occupational hazard Branch break-even contribution rate is low for the duration of the projection 
period to reflect the low level of benefits currently claimed from this section of the Scheme. 

Membership profile and dependency ratio 

- 	 Age distribution of active membership as at 30 June 2020 is shown below: 

>60 

Number of active members 20,401 	206.471 	204.903 	102,781. 	42.315 	10.398 

The dependency ratio shows how the membership profile is expected to change over time and is 
calculated as a projected ratio of pension beneficiaries to active members. The dependency ratio is 

- 

	

	 expected to increase and then stabilize at around 120% reflecting the Scheme maturing over the 
projection period and the ageing of the population as shown below: 

Year 2020/2021 2021/2022 2030/2031 2040/2041 2050/2051 2060/2061 2070/2071 

Active members 587,269 639,456 1.097.689 1.149.344 1,013,552 862.940 971.205 

Deferred members i 925,028 916,993 850,291 	i 763.115 647,691 504.600 343.605 

Pensioners 	- - 38338 54,584 i 102959 1  273629 650594 1040366 1161163 

Dependency ratio 7% 9% 24% 64% 121% 120% 

Active membership is projected to increase rapidly initially due to the high assumptions for new 
entrants and low number of pensioners. It starts to fall after year 2050 due to the higher number of 

- 	 pensioners and the slower increase in new entrants. 

The deferred members are projected to decrease over time only considering the existing deferred 
members without allowing for any new members and a zero-withdrawal rate has been assumed to 
reflect the mandatory nature of the Scheme. 

The pensioners are projected to increase gradually over time to reflect the retirement of the 
existing active membership, retirement of new entrants in the active membership and retirement of 
deferred members. It also reflects the fact that pensioners are living longer than expected. 

Income and expenditure 

- 	 The long-term projections of future income and expenditure from financial year 2020/2021 to 
financial year 2070/2071 are shown below: 

2020/2021 2030/2031 2040/2041 	I 2050/2051 2060/2061 	2070/2071 

Frw' billions 

Assets at start of thLyar 1 	1,052 3,726 i 9,294 (850) (81,609) (271,854) 

Income 

Contributions  167 518 981 1.485 2,619 6,087 

________ _____- ____-.-------- ---------- 

Benefits  131 I0.702I3.93I 

Expeflses 12 36 69 104 - 183 426 

Total out  -- 143 269 1,222 5,199 10,885 14,357 

pgup/(deficit) .24 249 (241) (3,714) (8,266) (8,270) 

Investment income 68 246 587 (171) (5.483) (17.659) 

Assets at the end of the year 1,144 4,221 9,640 (4,735) (95,358) (297,783) 
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Expenditure is projected to be more than income on an annual basis from the year 2043. The 
projected income becomes negative as a result of exhaustion of assets around 2049 assuming the 
shortfall will be finance out of borrowing (hence the negative interest). 

At branch level, the pension branch has higher income than expenditure until around 2039/2040. 
After 2040, the projected expenditure is higher than the projected income. This is due to the 
scheme demographics of having higher number of beneficiaries many of whom are currently above 
normal retirement age and the effect of the lower contributions than required. The assets held are 
projected to reduce to become negative due to increasing benefits payments and expenses. 

The occupational hazard branch is projected to have higher income than expenditure over the 
whole projected period. 

6) The 'Balance of Fund' as a multiple ofexpendilure (also known as the 'Fund Ratio') 

The fund ratio shows the projected balance of the fund at the start of the year expressed as a 
multiple of expenditures on benefits and other administrative costs expected in that year. The 
projected fund ratios have been calculated assuming the current contribution rates remain 
unchanged and allowing for future investment returns and are as follows: 

2021 2030 2040 2050 2060 2070 
Fund ratio - Pension branch 5.7 9.6 4 (2.5) (10.1) (23.6) 
Fund ratLo—OccuRatlonal  hazard branch 1 637 968 161.4 - 2783 445 92 

Scheme 7.4 13.8 7.6 (0.2) (7.5) (18.9) 

The scheme is projected to continue to grow for several years and peak in the financial year 
2029/2030 after which it is projected to decline and become insolvent at around financial year 
2049/2050. This is because the pension branch is expected in the long term to pay out pension 
benefits to an increased number of members while insufficient contributions are being made to pay 
for the required benefits. 

- 	 At branch level, the pension branch is projected to continue to grow and peak at financial year 
2023/2024 after which it is expected to decline until it becomes insolvent around financial year 
2046/2047. The occupational hazard branch has a net surplus and is projected to continue to grow 
and remain solvent over the projected period due to the projected low level of benefit payments. 
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Methods and key assumptions used 

- 	 Projection methodology 

The model used for projection used as a starting point the clean data and applied the labour force 
assumptions for the development of the future contributory population. 

- 	 The model used was based on a cohort approach using the flow method for generating future 
generations of pensioners on a single age basis, i.e. the identification of each new pensioner and the 
recording of the average period of past pension credits and the average earnings of each cohort. 
Future new entrants were assumed to have the same average salary as the relevant cohort at the 
valuation date but allowing for the rate of earnings inflation assumption. 

The present value of the liabilities was calculated by projecting cashflows over the whole lifetime of 
- the existing membership, i.e. effectively allowing for every existing member to die. For the year on 

year income and expenditure projection, only a snapshot of the cashflows over a projection period of 
50 years was illustrated. 

- 	 The same active member pensionable service proportions at the valuation date for the projection 
period were used. Members with more than 15 years service were projected to receive pension 
benefits; whereas members with less than 15 years' service were projected to receive lump sum 
benefits, as per the rules of the Scheme. 

Active members were grouped by age and sex based on who would receive pension and lump sum 
benefits based on the June 2020 membership data taking into account the members' projected service 
at retirement. We assumed that these groups would apply to future new entrants during the projection 
period. 

Each cohort of future new entrants was assumed to follow the same age, gender, salary and marital 
status distribution of existing actives for the different age groups. The distribution of new entrants by 

- 

	

	 age and sex would reflect that observed at the valuation date and it was assumed that these 
distributions remain constant throughout the projection period. 

The Projected Unit Method has been used to calculate the future service contribution rate. This 
calculation draws on the same assumptions used for the technical provisions. 

The Projected Unit Method (PUM) is one of the common methods used by actuaries to calculate a 
contribution rate for a funded scheme. This method calculates the present value of the benefits 
expected to accrue to members over a control period (often one year) following the valuation date. 

The present value is usually expressed as a percentage of the members' pensionable pay. It allows for 
projected future increases to pay through to retirement or date of leaving service. 
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- 	 Key assumptions made 

• Margin for adverse experience 

- 	 An allowance has been made for adverse experience in both the financial and demographic 
assumptions used to calculate technical provisions. 

• Financial assumptions 

A summary of the key economic and expense assumptions adopted for the valuation of the 
Scheme as at 30 June 2020, together with the long-term assumptions adopted for the previous 
valuation as at 30 June 2016 are shown below: 

Keysumptions . Valuation as at 30 June 2020 . Valuation as at 30 June 2016 
Price inflation 10.0% p.a. for the first year; 9.0% p.a. for the first year; 

6.0% p.a. in the second year; 7.0% p.a. in the second year; 
5.0% p.a. in the third year and 5.0% p.a. in the third year and 
for the remainder of the for the remainder of the 
projection period projectionperiod 

Earnings inflation 12.0% p.a. for the first year; 10.0% p.a. for the first year; 
8.0% p.a. in the second year; 8.0% p.a. in the second year: 
7.0% p.a. in the third year and 6.0% p.a. in the third year and 
for the remainder of the for the remainder of the 
projection period pjectionperiod 

Investment return 6.4% p.a. 11.0% p.a. for the first year; 
9.0% p.a. for the second year; 
7.0% p.a. in the third year and 
for the remainder of the 

ylr9jsoon 
Pensions increase ---------------------------------------------- ------- .... 
Expenses 7% of contribution income 10% of contribution income 

assumed to be funded in assumed to be funded in 
future each year future each year 

The long-term economic assumptions adopted are the same for all future years of the projection. 

• Demographics 

A summary of the key demographic assumptions adopted for the valuation of the Scheme as at 
30 June 2020, together with the long-term assumptions adopted for the previous valuation as at 
30 June 2016 are shown below: 

Key assurnptions Valuation as at 30 June 2020 Valuation 
Labour Market Increase of 12% in the first year of Increase of 10% in the first year of 
(Increase in Scheme the projections, reducing to a long the projections, reducing to a long- 
membership) term assumption of 2.0% a year over term assumption of 2.5% a year 

a 10-year period, and continuing at over a 10-year period, and 
10% p.a. for the remainder of the continuing at 2.5% pa. for the 

-- projectionpedod. remainder of the projection period. 
Mortality assumptions Rwanda Mortality Table; 2012-2016 Rwanda Mortality Table; 2012- 

scaled by 60%; with an allowance for 2016; with an allowance for future 
future annual improvements of 0.8% annual improvements of 1.25% for 
for males and 1% for females males and 1.5% for females 

Withdrawal Rates Same as last valuation No allowance was made for early 
withdrawal from active service. 
1-lowever, an implicit allowance 
was captured in the labour market 
assumption. 

130 



Key assumptions Va!uation as at 30 June 2020 Valuation as at 30 June 2016 

Invalidity Rates A rate ofO.0l% for active members A rate of0.01% for active 

(Pension Branch) between ages 20 and 64 members between ages 20 and 60 

Incapacity Rates Same as last valuation 
: 

Permanent Incapacity Rate of 
(Occupational 1-lazards 0.005% for both males and 
Branch) females between the ages of 20 

and 60. 
Assumed that 5% of future 
permanent incapacity will be full 
incapacity (based on 100% 
incapacity rate) and 95% will be 
partial incapacity based on a 40% 

Workers Medical Benefits An uplift of 30% to the projected An uplift of33% to the projected 
(Occupational 1-lazards Permanent Incapacity expenditure in l'ermanent Incapacity expenditure 
Branch) order to make an allowance for the in order to make an allowance for 

Workers Medical_Benefits, the Workers Medical Benefits. 

Constant Care Supplement No allowance No allowance 
(Pension Branch and 
Occupational Hazards 

Retirement Rates Same as last valuation Non-Uniformed members retire at 
age 60 and that Uniformed 
members retire at age 50. 

No allowance has been made for 
early retirements as the experience 
indicated that few such benefits 

-_____ ,---- 	---------------------------------------- 
Family Statistics - 76% of male members and 62% of 80% of male members and 65% of 

proportion married female members are married at all female members are married at all 

Family Statistics —Age A 4-year age difference between A 4-year age difference between 

difference members and spouses has been members and spouses has been 
adopted, with husbands older than adopted. with husbands older than 
wives, with a 27-year age difference wives, with a 32-year age 
between male parents and children difference between male parents 
and a 23-year age difference between and children and a 28-year age 
female parents and children. difference between female parents 

and children. 

Family Statistics - Same as last valuation Unmarried members have two 
Number of dependants dependents, that is, both parents. 

and that married members have 
three dependents; a spouse and 
two dependent children. 

We have not made any allowances 
for remarriage rates and we have 
assumed that orphan benefits cease 
at age 25. 

• Deferred members 

The previous valuation results did not allow for deferred members who left active employment 
before July 1994. The previous actuary was provided with 641,018 deferred member records, of 
which 208,754 last contributed before July 1994. At the valuation date, all the deferred members 
even those prior to 1994 have been included. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

Investment returns 

In determining the investment return assumption, an allowance for the benchmark allocation set out in 
the Fund's Investment Policy (third edition) and expected returns on each asset class has been made. 
A long term expected investment return of 6.4% per annum was obtained. 

The previous valuation constructed the investment return assumption by adding a margin to the price 
inflation assumption whereby a long-term margin of plus 2.0% p.a. in addition to price inflation was 
used to get an investment return assumption of 11% p.a. for the first year, 9% p.a. for the second year, 
7% p.a. in the third year and for the remainder of the projection period. 

The net effective rate in service would be -0.6% in the long term which is lower than the previous 
valuation. 

Earnings inflation 

The previous valuation assumed that the rate of earnings inflation to be 10.0% p.a. for the first year; 
8.0% p.a. for the second year; 6.0% p.a. for the third year; and remaining at 6.0% p.a. for the 
remainder of the projection period. This was equivalent to the price inflation assumption plus a 1.0% 
p.a. margin. 

The current valuation assumes that the rate of earnings inflation to be 12.0% p.a. for the first year; 
8.0% p.a. for the second year; 7.0% p.a. for the third year; and remaining at 7.0% p.a. for the 
remainder of the projection period. This is equivalent to the price inflation assumption plus a 2.0% 
p.a. margin. The higher margin was derived based on the data analysis. 

• Pension increase 

The current valuation makes an allowance of 1% per annum for any increases in benefit payments or 
minimum pensions as such increases are provided on a discretionary basis based on our analysis of 
past increases and following a request by RSSB. 

The previous valuation did not include any allowance for periodic increases to benefit payments. 

• Expenses 

The expense assumption is based on our findings from the Annual Report & Accounts during the 
- 	 inter-valuation period. The actuarial assumption is 7% p.a. of contribution income for the projection 

period. 

This compares to the previous actuarial valuation expense assumption of 10% a year of contribution 
income for the projection period which reflected higher expenses recorded at that time. 

• Labour market 

- 	 The current valuation assumes that the active membership of the Scheme increases by 12% in the first 
year reducing to a long term assumption of 2.0% over a 10-year period (i.e. using a declining scale 
from 12% to 2% at the end of the 10 years); and continuing at 2.0% for the remainder of the 
projection period. The long-term assumption reflects the combined effect of increases in the employed 

- 	 population and increases in coverage that might be expected during the period. 

The previous valuation assumed that the active membership of the Scheme increases by 10% in the 
first year reducing to a long-term assumption of 2.5% over a 10-year period; and continuing at 2.5% 
for the remainder of the projection period. 

The short-term assumptions adopted reflect the high numbers of new entrants to the Scheme in recent 
years. The long-term assumption reflects the combined effect of increases in the total population, total 
employed population and increases in the coverage of the Scheme. 

It is assumed that these high levels will not continue over the longer-term as Rwanda is the most 
densely populated country in East Africa (and Africa); and so it is likely that the population growth 

- 

	

	 will begin to plateau during the projection period. However, it is expected that the formal sector will 
expand during the projection period; and therefore creating more gradual increase each year. 
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• Mortality 

The current valuation assumes mortality experience in line with the 'Rwanda Mortality Table: 
2012-2016' scaled by 60% with an allowance for future annual improvements of 0.8% for males 

- 

	

	 and 1.0% for females. A 60-year old male pensioner is assumed, on average, to live to age 84.4 
years and under a 60-year old female pensioner is assumed, on average, to live to age 85.4 years. 

The previous valuation assumed mortality experience in line with the 'Rwanda Mortality Table; 
- 	 2012-2016' with an allowance for future annual improvements of 1.25% for males and 1.5% for 

females. The new Rwanda specific mortality table had been constructed using RSSB data. 

• Incapacity rates 

The incapacity rates reflect the proportions of active, deferred and pensioner members who 
become eligible to (start to) receive Incapacity Benefits at each age as a result of occupational 
disease or accident. The valuation assumes an Incapacity Rate of 0.06% for both males and 

-  females between the ages of 20 and 60 based on a 10-year analysis of annual claim payments. 
The previous valuation assumed a permanent incapacity rate of 0.005% for both males and 
females between ages of 20 and 60. 

- 	 The difference comes from the fact that all incapacity claims were considered instead of focusing 
only on permanent incapacity since the data was relatively scarce for such benefits and unlikely 
to be credible. 

b) Medical scheme 

Background and purpose of the actuarial valuation 

- 	 The purpose of an actuarial valuation is to review the long-term financial sustainability of a scheme. 
RSSB therefore commissioned Zamara Actuaries, Administrators and Consultants Limited to conduct 
actuarial valuation of the medical benefits insurance scheme as at 30 June 2020. Zamara Actuaries, 

- 	 Administrators and Consultants Limited have issued an actuarial report dated 03 February 2021. 

Management and directors have not undertaken an actuarial assessment for the period ended 30 June 
2021 and believe the report for the period ended 30 June 2020 provides reasonable actuarial valuation 
to support a review of the long-term financial sustainability of a scheme. 

The core basis projections over the next 40 years from the valuation date, i.e. over the period 2020-
2021 to 2039-2040 is as shown below: 

Financial year 

2019/2020 

Total Population 
• 	 Size 

166,273 

Total Contribution 
Income (Frw' 

millions) 

51,335 

Total Benefit 
Expenditure (Frw' 

millions) 

27,597 

Accumulated 
Fund 

(Frw' millions) 

296,025 

2020/2021 171.472 56.599 31,078 339,990 

2021/2022 176,816 60,500 

64,550 

35,884 

41,550 

386.295 

434,383 2022/2023 182,329 

2023/2024 188,051 68,740 

73,086 

48.260 

56,221 

483445 

532,403 2024/2025 193,966 

2025/2026 

2026/2027 

200.144 

206,496 

77,584 

82.226 

65,714 

77,029 

579,781 

623.668 

2027/2028 213.156 86,980 

91.830 

90,605 

106,906 

661.492 

689,960 2028/2029 220,069 

2029/2030 227,317 96,742 

101.692 

126.569 

150.317 

704.788 

700.537 2030/2031 234.863 

2031/2032 242,703 106,660 • 179,056 670.323 

2032/2033 250,829 

259,352 

111,622 

116.480 

213,898 

256,327 

605.471 

494.899 2033/2034 
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2034/2035 268,258 121.228 308,076 324,733 

2035/2036 277,713 125369 371,519 77,300 

203612037 287.483 130.167 449,073 (261,261) 

2037/2038 	1 297,822 134,228 544.469 (691,770) 

2038/2039 	1 308,542 137,973 66i, 589 (L236,220) 

2039/2040 319.784 141.350 805.903 (1.922,116) 

The projected fund will be depleted by 30 June 2036 with the deficit growing exponentially until the 
end of the projected period. 

For the first seven years of the projection period, annual contributions are expected to exceed annual 
claims, however, after this, annual claims are expected to exceed annual contributions as the assumed 

- rate of claims escalation exceeds the rate of salary growth. For the year ending 30 June 2027, total 
claims are expected to represent 93.7% of total gross contributions income before allowing for 
expenses of the scheme. In the following year ending 30 June 2028, the total claims are projected to 

- 	 exceed total gross contributions and the utilisation ratio is 104.2% 

From the year ending 30 June 2028 to 30 June 2030, the projected investment income will be 
sufficient to meet the shortfall caused by increasing claim costs as well as projected expenses of the 
scheme. 

After the year ending 30 June 2030, net cashflows are projected to be negative. This differs from the 
- projection as at 30 June 2016 where the scheme was projected to remain in a positive cashflow 

position for 55 years in the future. This difference is mainly attributable to the worse than expected 
claims escalation that resulted from an upward revision of tariffs. Claims management solutions are 
essential to improving the long term health of the scheme. 

- 	 Methodology and key assumptions used 

Methodology 

- 	 The projection model used considered the evolution of the contributing members, which forms the 
basis for projecting the future primary cashflows of the scheme. The primary cashflows were then 
used to model the future retained funds of the scheme, by considering projections of future investment 
returns and expenses. 

The membership of the scheme has been segregated into employees from the public sector, employees 
from the private sector and retirees in assessing the future evolution of the scheme. The bases used for 
the various projections have been arrived at as a result of detailed analysis on data and experience 

- over the past five years as this is most likely to reflect future experience. However, long term 
expectations based on regional and global benchmarking as well as macro-economic factors have 
been used in determining the final set of assumptions for these projections. 

- 	 Key assumptions used 

Below is a summary of the key assumptions used in preparing these projections: 

- 	 Demographics 

Assumption Value used in valuation as at 30 June 2020 	- 

MembershipgroThrate_  2.60% 
New entrants' proportion (per age) Based on data - distributing the new entrants in a given year into 

. 
tritab1eg__ 

Mortality RwandaMortaIi'Tab1c-May2017 
-- -- 

 i 

- ........  ............ 

Pension growth rate 7.20% 

Pensioners contribution rate . 7.5% of pension 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

Economic 

Assumption 	 Value used in valuation as at 30 June 2020 - 

Inflation 	 10% in the first year, 6% in the second year and 5% 
from year 3 onwards 

Investment rate of return 	 8.9% 

Other income 	 0.43% of contributions 

Administrative expenses 	 12% of contributions 

Statutory CBHI contributions 	 10% of contribution s 

Claims 

Assumption Value used in valuation as at 30 June 2020 

Cost Component Annual Claims escalation rate Average Cost per Affiliate 
Member (Fnv) 

Consultation 9.8% 22.867 

Laboratory tests 9 7% 36620 

Medical imaging 21.1% - 13,513 

Hospitalization   
i4.0% 

20.5 0Xo 
 6.242 

2 9,7 10 Procedures and materials 

Other consumables 2.9% 2.650 

Medicines 10.8% 10,535 

Pharmacy 5.3% 40.171 

Events after the reporting period 

- 	 There are no reportable subsequent events. 

Financial risk management 

- 	 The Board has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

• Market risk, 
• Liquidity risk, 

- 	 . Credit risk, and 
• Capital management risk 

- 	 Included below is information about the Board's exposure to each of the above risks, the Board's 
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing the risks and the Board's management 
of capital. 

Risk management framework 

The Board's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Board's risk management framework. The Board has established an Audit and Risk Committee, and 
the Risk Department, which are responsible for developing and monitoring the risk management 

- 

	

	 policies in their specified areas. All Board committees have non-executive members and report 
regularly to the Board of Directors on their activities. 

The Board's risk management policies are established to identifj and analyse the risks faced by the 
- Board, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 

management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, 
products and services offered. The Board through its training and management standards and 

- 

	

	 procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations. 

IM 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

The Board's Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for monitoring compliance with the Board's 
risk management policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Board. The Audit and Risk Committee is assisted in 
these functions by Internal Audit and Risk functions. 

Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and 
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit and Risk Committee 

a) 	Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as investment prices, interest rates and 
foreign exchange rates will affect the Board's income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures 
within the acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on investment. 

Management of market risks 

Market risk arises from a decrease in the market value of a portfolio of financial instruments caused 
by adverse movements in the market variables such as equity, bonds and property prices, currency 
exchange rates and interest rates. 

The Board grants authority to take on market risk exposure to the Management Investment Committee 
- 	 (MIC). This committee manages this risk through the guidelines set out in the Board's investment 

policy. 

Equity price risk 

- 	 The Board is exposed to equity securities price risk through its investments in quoted and unquoted 
shares. The Board's Investment committee diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is 
done in accordance with the guidelines set out in the Board's investment policy. All shares held by the 

- 	 Board are either quoted on Rwanda Stock Exchange and Nairobi Securities Exchanges or unquoted. 
The table below shows the effect of share price sensitivity on the surplus for the year based on the 
share price volatility as at 30 June 2021; 

Type of Investment 
Change in share 

0 price /o 
Effect on surplus 

Effect on 
surplus 

Pension Medical 
2021 2021 

Frw'million Frw'million 

Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss ±1-9% 11.777 258 
2020 2020 
Frw Frw 

Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss +1-9% 8,273 253 

Properly price risk 

The Board is exposed to property price risk through its investments in real estate properties. The 
- Board's Investment committee diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in 

accordance with the guidelines set out in the Board's investment policy. The Board undertook a 
valuation of its investment property on 24 June 2019 and adopted valuations of investment and 
administrative properties as at 1 July 2019. During the year under review, RSSB has not undertaken a 

- 	 valuation of its investment properties. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
The table below shows the effect of property price sensitivity on the surplus for the year; 

Change in 
property price % 

Effect on surplus Effect on surplus 

Pension Medical 
2021 2021 

Frw' million Frw'million 

Investment property +1-9% 18.801 1.142 

2020 2020 
Frw Fnv 

Investment property +1-9% 18,529 1,142 

Currency risk 

The Board is exposed to currency risk through transactions in foreign currencies. The Board 
transactional exposures give rise to foreign currency gains and losses that are recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income. In respect of monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies, 
the Board ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level. Monitoring of foreign currency 
fluctuations is done through the Investment Committee. The Board operates wholly within Rwanda 
and its assets and liabilities are reported in Rwanda Francs, although it maintains some of its assets 
and trades with banks in foreign currencies. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 
Currency risk 

The Board had the following currency positions: 

	

Pension 	Medical 	Pension 	Pension 	Medical 	CBHI 	Maternity Leave 	Ejo Heza 	Total 

	

USD 	 USD 	 Kshs 	 Frw 	 Frw 	 Frw 	 Frw 	 Frw 	 Frw 

	

Frw'millioos 	Frw'millions 	Frwmillions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 

30-Jun-21 

Financial assets 

Cash and bank balances 

Deposits with financial institutions 

Treasury bonds 

Treasury bills 

Corporate bonds 

Commercial papers 

Mortgage loans 

Loans and advances to third parties 

Dividend receivable 

Advances to contractors 

Other assets 

Due froml(Due to) other schemes 

Equity investments 

Total financial assets (A) 

Financial liabilities 

63,968 	8,316 	 248 	25,372 28.256 	2,993 

- 	

- 	 804 	141,799 131,479 	 - 

- 	
- 	 145,170 35,856 	 - 

- 	 - 	
- 	 49,986 42,352 	 - 

23,441 

29,296 

16 

- 	 - 	
- 	 5,319 30,629 	 - 

496 	 402 	 - 	 4.182 (21) 	 - 

- 	 - 	

- 	 6,943 - 

- 	 - 	

- 	 (2,411) 8,284 	4,077 

- 	 - 	

- 	 (1,000) 
- 	 1,000 

33,913 	24,071 	30,284 	344.486 24,615 	 - 

4,379 929 	134.461 

13,545 - 	 287,626 

6,831 15,583 	203,440 

3.935 - 	 96,272 

- 

- 	 23,441 

- 
- 	 29,296 

16 

- 
- 	 35,948 

5,058 

6,943 

9,956 
7 

- 

(0) 
(0) 

- 

- 
- 	 457,370 

98,377 	32,789 	31,336 	772,596 	301,449 	 8,071 	 28,697 	16,512 	1,289,827 



I 	 I 	I 	I 

Retentions on construction contracts - 	 903 55 1 - 958 

Medical and maternity leave benefits 8,383 19,479 359 28,221 
payable - 	 - 	 - 	 - - 

Other payables - 	 - 	 - 	 5,005 445 11,078 63 124 	16,716 

Total financial liabilities (B) 0 	 0 	 0 	5,908 8,884 30,558 422 124 	45,895 

Net financial assets (A-B) 98,377 	32,789 	31,336 	766,689 292,565 (22,487) 28,275 16,388 	1,243,931 

Foreign currency exposure at 30 98,377 	32,789 	31,336 	 - - - - - 	 162,502 
June 2021 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

	

Pension 	Medical 	Pension 	Pension 	Medical 	CBIII 	Maternity Leave 	Ejo Heza 	Total 

	

USD 	USD 	Kshs 	Frw 	Frw 	Frw 	 Frw 	Frw 	Frw 

	

Frwmillions 	Frw'millions 	Frwmillions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frwmillions 

30-Jun-20 

Financial assets 

Cash and bank balances 

Deposits with financial institutions 

Treasury bonds 

Treasury bills 

Corporate bonds 

Commercial papers 

Mortgage loans 

Loans and advances to third parties 

Dividend receivable 

Advances to contractors 

Other assets 

Due from/(Due to) other schemes 

Equity investments 

Total financial assets (A) 

Financial liabilities 
Retentions on construction contracts 

20,379 7,773 - 	 28,634 18,019 5.360 8,235 926 	89,327 

- 
- 2,300 	136,818 139,513 - 12,643 - 	 291,273 

- - 

- 	 126,597 23,799 - - 3,541 	153,936 

- - 

- 	 37,811 16,513 - - - 	 54,323 

- - 
- 	 24,754 - - - 

- 	 24,754 

- - 
- 	 14,715 - - - 

- 	 14,715 

- - 
- 	 63 - - - 

- 	 63 

- - 

- 	 5,510 35,812 - - - 	 41,322 

519 527 - 	 212 - - 
- 	 1,258 

- - 
- 	 8,790 13 4 - - 	 8,808 

- 
- 	 2,936 1,599 1,639 34 

- 	 6,207 

- - 
- 	 2,145 1,572 (3544) (173) 

- 	 0 

102,090 21,317 12,510 	313,816 28,710 - - 
- 	 478,443 

122,988 29,617 14,810 	702,801 265,548 3,460 20,738 4,466 	1,164,430 

886 60 1 946 



Medical and maternity leave benefits 	 5359 	20,495 	 324 	 26.177 
payable 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 

Other payables 	 - 	 - 	 - 	4,208 	 30 	8.425 	 46 	 12.708 

Total financial liabilities (B) 	 0 	 0 	 0 	5,094 	5,448 	28,920 	 369 	 0 	39,923 

Net financial assets (A-13) 	 122,988 	29,617 	14,810 	697 9707 	260,100 	(25,460) 	 20,369 	4,466 	1,124,506 

Foreign currency exposure at 30 	 122,988 	29,617 	14,810 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 167,416 
June 2020 

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Board had significant exposure at 30 June on its non-trading monetary assets and liabilities and its 
forecast cash flows. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the Rwanda Francs, with all other 
variables held constant, on the statement of comprehensive income (due to the fair value of currency sensitive non-trading monetary assets and liabilitics).A 
negative amount in the table reflects a potential net reduction in the statement of comprehensive income and equity, while a positive amount reflects a net 
potential increase. An equivalent decrease in each of the below currencies against the Rwanda Francs would have resulted in an equivalent but opposite 

impact. 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

Pension 	 I Medical 

Change in currency rate 	Effect on net Change in currency Effect on net income 
Currency in % 	income for the year rate in % for the year 

2021 	 2021 2021 2021 

	

 +1-9% 	 7,870,164,928 

	

+19% 	- 	2506917692j 

	

2020 	 2020 

 +1-9% 

/9% 

2020 

2,623,080,915 

1 0 

2020 

USD   
KES  

Frw 
+/-8% 

Frw 
2.369,377,604 USD +/-8% 	9,839,058,973 

KES +/-8% 	1.184,813.340 j 	 +1-8% 0 

The following exchange rates applied during the year: 

Average 	rate 	 Reporting date spot rate 

	

2021 	 2020 	 2021 	 2020 

	

Frw 	 Frw 	 Frw 	 Frw 

USD 	 987 	 920 	 977 	 923 

KES 	 9.1 	 8.8 	 9 	 9.1 

Interest rate risk 

In broad terms, interest rate risk is the risk that concerns the sensitivity of the Board's financial performance to changes in interest rates. The Board's 
operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that interest earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities mature or re-price at 
different times or in differing amounts. Risk management activities are aimed at optimizing net interest income, given market interest rates levels consistent 

with the Board's business strategies. 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

The Board does not account for any fixed rate or variable rate financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the 
statement of financial position date will not affect the Board's surplus or deficit but would change the future performance of the Board. In addition, there are 
no financial assets held at variable interest rates. 

The tables below summarize the exposure to interest rate risk per scheme. Included in the table are the Board's assets and liabilities at carlying amounts, 
tri,l Iw thp Pnrlipr fAntrnctl1al r-nricino dates and the maturity dates. 

Average ra 
Financial assets 

2021 

Cash and bank balances 5% 

Deposits with commercial banks 10% 

Treasury bonds 12% 

i'reasury bills 8% 

Commercial papers 11% 

Mortgage loans 12% 

Corporate bonds 12% 

Equity investments 0% 

Loans and advances to third parties 0% 

Dividend receivable 0% 

Advances to contractors 0% 

Other financial assets 0% 

Matured 	<3 months 3-12 months > I year 
Non-Interest 

bearing 
Total 

Frwmillions 	Frwmillions Frw millions Frwmillions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

- 	 89,583 - - 5 89.588 

- 	 24,005 71.315 47,282 - 142.602 

- 	 5,214 13.843 126.1 14 - 145.170 

- 	 3.091 46,895 - - 49,986 

- 	
- 29,296 - - 29,296 

- 	
- 16 - - 16 

- 	
- 1.841 21,600 - 23.441 

- 	 - - 
- 408.683 408,683 

- 	 - - 
- 5.319 5.319 

- 	 - - 
- 4.677 4,677 

- 	 - - 
- 6.943 6,943 

- 	 - - 
- (2,411) (2.411) 



0% 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 (1,000) 	(1,000) 

0 	121,893 	163,205 	194,996 	 422,217 	902,310 

0% 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 903 	 903 

0% 

0% 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 5,005 	 5.005 

0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 5,908 	 5,908 

0 	121,893 	163,205 	1949996 	 416,309 	896,402 

- 	121,893 	163,205 	194,996 	 0 	480,093 

- - 	- 	- 	-. 	 - 	- --- 	Non-Interest 

Due froni/(Due to) other schemes 

Total financial assets (A) 

Retentions on construction contracts 

Benefits payable 

Other payables 

Total financial liabilities (B) 

Net financial assets (A-B) 

Interest rate exposure as at 30 June 2021 

Financial assets 

2020 

Cash and bank balances 

Deposits with commercial banks 

Treasury bonds 

Treasury bills 

Commercial papers 

Mortgage loans 

Corporate bonds 

Equity investments 

Average rate Matured 	J months i-I 	moums i year  bearing 

Frw' millions 	Frw' millions Frw'millions Frw' millions Frw' millions Frw'millions 

5% - 	 47,020 - - 1.993 49,014 

10% - 	 26,900 65,217 47,000 - 139,118 

12% - 	 3,125 17,002 106,469 - 126,597 

8% - 	 3,091 34,720 0 - 37,811 

11% - 	 - 14,715 0 - 14,715 

12% - 	 - 63 0 - 63 

12% - 	 - 
- 24,754 - 24,754 

428.417 428.417 



I 	
I 

I 	I 

0% - 	 - - - 5,510 5,510 

0% - 	 - - - 731 731 

0% - 	 - - - 8,790 8.790 

0% - 	 - - - 2,936 2,936 

0% - 	 - - - 2,145 2,145 

o 	80,136 131,718 178,223 450,522 840,599 

0% - 	 - - - 886 886 

0% - 	 - - - - 0 

0% - 	 - - - 4.231 4,231 

0 	 0 0 0 5,117 5,117 

- 	 80,136 131,718 178,223 445,405 835,482 

- 	 80,136 131,718 178,223 - 390,077 

Loans and advances to third parties 

Dividend receivable 

Advances to contractors 

Other financial assets 

Due fronil(Due to) other schemes 

Total financial assets (A) 

Retentions on construction contracts 

Benefits payable 

Other payables 

Total financial liabilities (B) 

Net financial assets (A-B) 

Interest rate exposure as at 30 June 2020 

- H4- 
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Medical Scheme 

Average rate Matured <3 months 3-12 months > 1 year 
Non-lnt:rest 

bearing 
Total 

Assets 
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'million 

2021 

Cash and bank balances 5% - 36566 - - 5 36.571 

Deposits with commercial banks 10% - 27.207 72.041 32.231 - 131479 

Treasury bonds 12% - 1,043 3,568 31,245 - 35.856 

Treasury hills 8% - 233 42.118 - - 42,352 

Equity investments 1% - - - 0 48,686 48,686 

Loans and advances to third parties 0% - - - - 30,629 30,629 

Dividend receivable 0% - - - - 381 381 

Advances to contractors 0% - - - - 0 0 

Other financial assets 0% - - - 
- 8,284 8,284 

Due from other schemes 0% - - - 
- 

Total Assets 0 65,049 117,727 63,476 87,985 334,238 

Retentions on construction contracts 0% - - - - 55 55 

Benefits payable 0% - - - - 8.383 8.383 

Other payahles 0% - - - - 445 445 

Total financial liabilities (B) 0 0 0 0 8,884 8,884 

Net financial assets/(liabiIities) (A-B) 0 65,049 117,727 63,476 79,102 325,354 

Exposure to interest rate risk as at 30 June 2021 0 65,049 117,727 63,476 0 246,253 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

Average rate Matured <3 months 3-12 months > i year 
Non-Interest 

bearing 
Tothi 

Assets 
Frw'miUions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

2020 

Cash and bank balances 5% - 27,388 - (1,596) 25,792 

Deposits with commercial banks 10% - 27.860 74.172 37.481 - 139.513 

Treasury bonds 12% - 2,083 - 21,716 - 23,799 

Treasury bills 8% - 233 16,280 - - 16,513 

Equity investments 1% - - - 8.469 41.558 50.027 

Loans and advances to thud parties 0% - - - .. 35,812 35,812 

Dividend receivable 0% - - - - 527 527 

Advances to contractors 0% - - - - 105 105 

Other tinancial assets 0% - - - 
- 1,599 1.599 

Due from other schemes 0% - - - 
- 1.572 1.572 

Total Assets 0 57,565 90,451 67,666 79,576 295,257 

Retentions on construction contracts 0% - - - - 60 60 

Benefits payable 0% - - - - 5.359 5.359 

Other payables 0% - - - - 428 428 

Total financial liabilities (B) 0 0 0 0 5,846 5,846 

Net financial assetsl(liabilities) (A-B) 0 57,565 90,451 67,666 73,730 289,411 

Exposure to interest rate risk as at 30 June 2020 0 57,565 90,451 67,666 0 215,682 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

CBHI scheme 

Average rate 

2021 

Financial assets 

Cash and bank balances 	 5% 

Advances to contractors 	 0% 

Other financial assets 

Total financial assets 

Financial liabilities 

Amounts retained on construction contracts 0% 

Benefits payable 
0% 

Due to other schemes 

Other payablcs 
0% 

Total financial liabilities 

Net financial assets/(liabilities) 

Exposure to interest rate risk as at 30 June 
2021 

	

Matured 	<3 months 	3-12 months 	> 1 year 	
Non-Interest

Total 
bearing 

	

Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 

	

- 	 2,578 	 - 	 - 	 415 	 2.993 

	

- 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 4.077 	 4,077 

0 2,578 0 0 4,493 7,071 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

I 

19,479 

I 

19,479 

- - - - (1,000) (1.000) 

- - - 
- 11.078 11,078 

0 0 0 0 29,558 29,558 

0 2,578 0 0 (25,065) (22,487) 

0 2,578 0 0 0 2,578 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

Average rate 

2020 

Financial assets 

Cash and bank balances 
	

5% 

Advances to contractors 
	

0% 

Other financial assets 	 0% 

Total financial assets 

Financial liabilities 

Amounts retained on construction contracts 
	

0% 

Benefits payable 	 0% 

Due to other schemes 	 0% 

Other payables 	 0% 

Total financial liabilities 

Net financial assetsl(liabilities) 

Exposure to Interest rate risk as at 30 June 
2020 

	

Matured 	<3 months 	3-12 months 	> i year 	
Non-Interest 	

Total 
bearing 

	

Frw'millions 	Frwmillions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frwmillions 	Frw'millions 

	

- 	 4.473 	 - 	 - 	 888 	 5,360 

	

- 	 - 	 - 	
- 	 13 	 13 

	

- 	 - 	 - 	
- 	 1,599 	 1,599 

	

0 	 4,473 	 0 	 0 	 2,499 	 6,972 

	

- 	 - 	 - 	
- 	 I 	 I 

	

- 	 - 	 - 	
- 	 20,495 	 20,495 

	

- 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 3,544 	
3,544 

	

- 	 - 	 - 	
- 	 8.233 	 8.233 

0 0 0 0 32,272 32,272 

0 4,473 0 0 (29,773) (25,300) 

0 	 4,473 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 4,473 
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Maternity leave scheme 

2021 

Financial assets 

Cash and bank balances 

Deposits with financial institutions 

Treasury bills 

Advances to contractors 

Other financial assets 

Average rate 

5% 

10% 

8% 

0% 

0% 

	

Matured 	<3 months 	3-12 months 	> 1 year 	
Non-interest 	 Total 

bearing 

	

Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 	Frwmillions 	Frw'millions 	Frw'millions 

	

- 	 4,379 	 - 	 - 	 0 	 4,379 

	

- 	 4,320 	 9.225 	 - 	 - 	13,545 

	

- 	 3.935 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 3,935 

	

- 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 0 	 0 

	

- 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 7 	-- 	7 

- 	 12,633 	 9,225 	 - 	 7 21,866 

0% 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 0 0 

0% 	 - 	 - 	 - 	
- 	 359 359 

0% 	 - 	 - 	 - 	
- 	 0 0 

0% 	 - 	 - 	 - 	
- 	 63 63 

- 	 - 	
- 	 422 422 

- 	 12,633 	 9,225 	 0 	 (415) 21,444 

0 	12,633 	 9,225 	 0 	 0 21,858 

Total financial assets 

Financial liabilities 

Retention on construction contracts 

Benefits payable 

Due froml(Due to) other schemes 

Other payabks 

Total financial liabilities 

Net financial assets/(liabilities) 

Exposure to interest rate risk as at 30 June 
2021 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

Average rate 

2020 

Financial assets 

Cash and bank balances 
	

5% 

Deposits with financial institutions 
	

10% 

Advances to contractors 
	

0% 

Other financial assets 
	

0% 

i'otal financial assets 

Financial liabilities 

Retention on construction contracts 
	

0% 

Benefits payable 
	

0% 

t)uc from/(Due to) other schemes 
	

0% 

Other payables 
	

0% 

Total financial liabilities 

Net financial assetsl(liabilitics) 

Exposure to interest rate risk as at 30 June 

2020 

Matured 	<3 months 3-12 months 	> i year 
Non-Interest 

bearing 
Total 

Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions 	Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'mitlions 

- 	 8,227 - 	 - 8 8,235 

- 	 4,387 8,255 	 - - 12,643 

- 	 - - 	 - 0 0 

- 	 - - 	 - 34 34 

0 	 12,615 8,255 	 0 42 20,912 

- 	 - - 	 - 0 0 

- 	 - - 	 - 324 324 

- 	 - - 	 - 173 173 

- 	 - - 	 - 46 46 

0 0 0 0 542 542 

0 12,615 8,255 0 (500) 20,369 

0 	 12,615 	 8,255 	 0 	 0 	 20,870 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

Ejo Heza 

Average rate Matured <3 months 3-12 months > 1 year Non-Interest 
bearing 

Total 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

2021 
Financial assets 
Cash and bank balances 5% - 926 - - 3 929 

Treasury bonds 12% - - 181 15.476 - 15.657 

Total financial assets - 926 181 15,476 3 16,586 

Financial liabilities 
Other payables 0% - - - - 124 124 

Total financial liabilities - 0 - 0 124 124 

Net financial assets/(liabilities) - 926 181 15,476 (121) 16,462 

Exposure to interest rate risk as at 30 June - 926 181 15,476 0 16,583 
2021 

Average rate Matured <3 months 3-12 months > 1 year Non-Interest 
bearing 

Total 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'rnillions Frw'millions 

2020 
Financial assets 
Cash and bank balances 5% - 925 - - - 925 

Treasury bond 12% - - - 3,541 - 3,541 

Total financial assets - 925 - 3,541 - 4,466 

Exposure to iiiterest rate risk as at 30 June - - - 3,541 - 4 
2020 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

b) 	Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Board will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations on its financial liabilities. It includes both the risk of being unable to 
fund assets at appropriate maturities and rates and the risk of being unable to liquidate an asset at a reasonable price and in an appropriate time frame. 

Management of liquidity risk 

The Board has access to a diverse funding base. Funds are raised mainly from members' contributions and reserves. The Board continually assesses liquidity 
risk by identifying and monitoring changes in funding required in meeting business goals and targets set in terms of the overall Board strategy. In addition, 
the Board has a Management Investment Committee that meets on a regular basis to monitor liquidity risk, review and approve liquidity policies and 
procedures. 

Exposure to liquidity risk 

The table below analyses financial assets and financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at 30 June 2021 to the 
contractual maturity date. All balances are in Frws. 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

Pension scheme 

At 30 June 2021 

Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'milhions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Financial assets 
Cash and bank balances 89588 - - - - 89.588 

Deposits with commercial banks - 24,005 71,315 24,700 22.583 142,602 

Treasury bonds - 5.214 13,843 61.864 64.249 145,170 

Treasury bills - 3,091 46,895 - - 49.986 

Commercial papers - - 29,296 - - 29.296 

Mortgage loans - - - - - 0 

Loan and advances to third parties - - 5,319 - - 5,319 

Advances to contractors - 6,943 - - - 6,943 

Dividend receivable - 4,677 - - - 4,677 

Equity investments - - - 408.683 408.683 

Other assets - - (2,411) - - (2,411) 

Due froml(Due to) other schemes - - (1,00()) - - (1,000) 

Total financial assets 89,588 43,929 164,256 86,564 495,515 879,853 

Financial liabilities 
Amounts retained on construction contracts - - (903) - - (903) 

Other payables (5,005) - - - - (5,005) 

Financial liabilities (5,005) 0 (903) 0 0 (5,908) 

Liquidity surplus as at 30 June 2021 84,583 43,929 163,354 86,564 495,515 873,945 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

At 30 June 2020 Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Financial assets 
Cash and bank balances 49,014 - - - - 49,014 

Deposits with commercial banks - 26,900 65,217 16,853 30,148 139,118 

Treasury bonds - 3.125 17,002 46.651 59,818 126.597 

Treasury bills - 3,091 34,720 - - 37,811 

Commercial papers - - 14,715 - - 14,715 

Mortgage loans - - - 63 - 63 

Loan and advances to third parties - - 5,510 - - 5,510 

Advances to contractors - 8.790 - - - 8,790 

Dividend receivable - 731 - - - 731 

Equity investments - - - - 428,417 428,417 

Other assets - - 2.936 - - 2,936 

Due from/(Duc to) other schemes - - 2,145 - - 2,145 

Total financial assets 49,047 42,637 140,113 63,504 518,383 813,684 

Financial liabilities 
Amounts retained on construction contracts - - (886) - - (886) 

Other payablcs (4,231) - - - - (4.231) 

Financial liabilities (4,231) 0 (886) 0 0 (5,117) 

Liquidity surplus as at 30 June 2020 44,816 42,637 139,227 63,504 518,383 808,567 

- - 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

Medical scheme 

At 30 June 2021 Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Financial assets 
Cash and bank balances 36,571 - - - - 36,571 

Deposits with commcrcial banks - 27,207 72,041 18.892 13,338 131.479 

Treasury bonds - 1,043 3,568 31.245 - 35,856 

1'reasury bills - 233 42,118 - - 42.352 

Loan and advances to third parties - - 30,629 - - 30,629 

Advances to contractors - - - - - 0 

l)ividend receivablc - 381 - - - 381 

Equity investments - - - - 48,686 48,686 

Other assets - - 8,284 - - 8.284 

Due from/(Due to) other schemes - - - - - 0 

Total financial assets 36,571 28,864 156,640 50,137 62,025 334,237 

Financial liabilities 
Amounts retained on construction contracts - - (55) - - (55) 

Benefits payable (8,383) - - - - (8,383) 

Other payables (445) - - - - (445) 

Total financial liabilities (8,828) 0 (55) 0 0 (8,884) 

Liquidity surplus as at 30 June 2021 27,743 28,864 156,585 50,137 62,025 325,354 

- 	 - 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

At 30 June 2020 Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total 

Frw'milhions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Financial assets 
Cash and bank balances 25,792 - - - - 25,792 

Deposits with commercial banks - 27.860 74,172 24.143 13,338 139.513 

Treasury bonds - 2.083 - 21.716 - 23,799 

Treasury bills - 233 16,280 - - 16,513 

Loan and advances to third parties - - 35,812 - - 35.812 

Advances to contractors - 13 - - - 13 

Dividend receivable - 527 - - - 527 

Equity investments - - - - 50,027 50,027 

Other assets - - 1.599 - - 1,599 

Due from/(Due to) other schemes - - 1.572 - - 1,572 

Total financial assets 25,792 30,717 129,434 45,858 63,365 295,166 

Financial liabilities 
Amounts retained on construction contracts - - (60) - - (60) 

Benefits payable (5,359) - - - - (5,359) 

Other payahles (428) - - - - (428) 

Total financial liabilities (5,787) 0 (60) 0 0 (5,846) 

Liquidity surplus as at 30 June 2020 20,005 30,717 129,374 45,858 63,365 289,319 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

CBHI Scheme 

At 30 June 2021 Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'milhions Frw'millions 

Financial assets 
Cash and bank balances 2.993 - - - - 2,993 

Advances to contractors - I - - - 

Other assets - - 4,077 - - 4,077 

Total financial assets 2,993 1 4,077 0 0 7,071 

Financial liabilities 
Benefits payable (19,479) - - - - (19,479) 

Due to other schemes - - 1,000 - - 1,000 

Other payables (11,078) - - - - (11,078) 

Financial liabilities (30,557) 0 1,000 0 0 (29,557) 

Liquidity surplus/(gap) as at 30 June 2021 (27,564) 1 5,077 0 0 (22,486) 

IS 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

At 30 June 2020 Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Financial assets 
Cash and hank balances 5,360 - - - - 5.360 

Advances to contractors 4 - - - 4 

Other assets - - 1,639 - - 1,639 

Total financial assets 5,360 4 1,639 0 0 7,004 

Financial liabilities 
Amounts retained on construction contracts - - - (I) - (I) 

Benefits payable (20,495) - - - - (20,495) 

Due to other schemes - - (3.544) - - (3,544) 

Other payahles (8,233) - - - - (8,233) 

Financial liabilities (28,728) 0 (3,544) (1) 0 (32,272) 

Liquidity gap as at 30 June 2020 (23,367) 4 (1,905) (1) 0 (25,268) 

l) 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

Maternity scheme 

At 30 June 2021 Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total 

Frw'millions Frw'milhions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Financial assets 
Cash and bank balances 4,379 - - - - 4,379 

Treasury bills - 4,320 9,225 - - 13.545 

Advances to contractors - - - - - 0 

Other assets - - 7 - - 7 

Total financial assets 4,379 4,320 9,232 0 0 17,931 

Financial liabilities 
Retention on construction - - (0) - - (0) 

Benefits payable (359) - - - - (359) 

Due to other schemes - - (0) - - (0) 

Other payablcs (63) - - - - (63) 

Financial liabilities (422) 0 (0) 0 0 (422) 

Liquidity surplus as at 30 June 2021 3,957 4,320 9,232 0 0 17,509 

160 	 - 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

At 30 June 2020 Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years > S years Total 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions 

Financial assets 

Cash and hank balances 8,235 - - - - 8,235 

Treasury bills - 4,387 8,255 - - 12,643 

Advances to contractors - - - - - 0 

Other assets - - 33 - - 33 

Total financial assets 8,235 4,387 8,289 0 0 20,911 

Financial liabilities 

Retention on construction - - (0) - - (0) 

Benetits payable (324) - - - - (324) 

Due to other schemes - - (173) - - (173) 

Other payahles (46) - - - - (46) 

Financial liabilities (369) 0 (173) 0 0 (542) 

Liquidity surplus as at 30 June 2020 7,866 4,387 8,116 0 0 20,369 

I (, I 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

Ejo Heza 

At 30 June 2021 Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total 

Frw'niillions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millioiis Frw'millions 

Financial assets 
Cash and bank balances 929 - - - - 929 

Treasury bonds - - 181 15,476 - 15,657 

Total financial assets 929 - 181 15,476 - 16,586 

Financial liabilities 

Other payables (124) - - - - (124) 

Financial liabilities (124) - - 0 - (124) 

Liquidity surplus as at 30 June 2021 805 - 181 15,476 - 16,462 

At 30 June 2020 Matured <3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total 

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frwmillions 

Financial assets 
Cash and bank balances 926 - - - - 926 

Treasury bonds - - - 3,541 - 3.541 

Total financial assets 926 0 0 3,541 0 4,466 

Liquidity surplus as at 30 June 2020 926 0 0 3,541 0 4,466 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

c) 	Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Board if a customer or counterparty to a financial instruni4nt 
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Board's loans and advances, trade and 

- other receivables, deposits with commercial banks and investments in government and corporate bonds. For 
risk management reporting purposes, the Board considers all elements of credit risk exposure such as 
individual obligator default risk, country and sector risk. 

For risk management purposes, credit risk arising on trading securities is managed independently, but 
reported as a component of market risk exposure. 

Management of credit risk 

- 	 The Board of Directors has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk to its Managemnt 
Investment Committee. The Investments Department is responsible for oversight of the Board's credit risk. 
including: 

• 	Formulating credit policies, covering collateral requirements and credit assessments, risk grading aid 
reporting. Documentary, legal procedures and compliance with regulatory and statutory requiremeits 
is done in consultation with the Board's Legal and Compliance Department. 

• 	Establishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities. Authorisatin 
limits are allocated to the Management Investment Committee. Larger facilities require approval ,y 
the Board of Directors as appropriate. 	 I 

• 	Reviewing compliance of investment mix with agreed exposure limits, including those for selected 
- 	 industries, country risk and product types. The Boards Investment Committee is responsible for 

monitoring the credit quality of investments and ensuring that appropriate corrective action is taken 
and providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to business units to promote best practice 
throughout the Board in the management of credit risk. 

The Investment department is required to implement the Board's credit policies and procedures, with credit 
approval authorities delegated from the Board's Board of Directors. The Investment department is responsible 
for the quality and performance of the Board's investment portfolio and for monitoring and controlling all 
credit risks in the Board's portfolio, including those subject to Board approval. Regular audits of the 
Investment department and the Board's credit processes are undertaken by the Internal Audit department. 

63 
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD 
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

Exposure to credit risk 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum credit exposure as at the statement of financial position date 
was: 

Pension Scheme Medical Scheme CBHI Scheme Maternity Scheme Ejo Heza Total 

Notes 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Fn,'miflions Frw'mitlions 	FnimiUions Frw'miiiions Fr,,'miflions Frw'miilions Fn,'miiions Irw'n,ilhions Fn'mitlions 	Fr,,'miilion, Frw'nii,on, Fn.'mulhons 

Rank balances 42 89,588 49.014 36,571 25,792 2,993 5.360 4,379 8,235 929 926 134,461 89,327 

Treasury bonds 31 145.170 126.597 35.856 23,799 0 0 6.831 0 15,583 3,541 203,440 153,936 

Treasury bills 32 49,986 37,811 42,352 16.513 0 0 3,935 0 0 0 96,272 54.323 

Loans and advances to third parties 34 5.319 5.510 30.629 35,812 0 0 0 0 0 0 35,948 41.322 

E)epositsdue from banks 41 142,602 139,118 131,479 139,513 0 0 13,545 12,643 0 0 287,626 291,273 

Dividends and other income receivable 38 4,677 731 381 527 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,058 1,258 

Commercial papers 33 29.296 14715 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29,296 14.715 

Mortgage loans 35 16 63 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 63 

Other assets 39 2,411) 2.936 8.284 1.599 4.077 1.639 7 34 0 0 9,956 6,207 

Due from/(Due to) other assets 40 (1.000) 2,145 0 1,572 1,000 (3,544) (0) (173) 0 0 (0) 0 

Total financial assets 464,243 376,494 285,551 243,554 7,070 6,999 28,697 20,911 16,512 4,466 802,073 652,425 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS (continued) 

d) 	Capital risk management 

The primary source of capital used by the Board is member contributions and income from investments. 
For regulatory purposes, the Medical division's capital includes both Capital and retained earnings. By 

- 

	

	 the nature of its establishment, the medical division does not pay dividends. Its equity is managed to 
safeguard its ability to pay members medical benefits. Other objectives when managing its capital are: 
• 	to comply with the capital requirements as set out in the Insurance Regulations; 

- 	 • to comply with regulatory solvency requirements as set out in the Insurance Regulations; and 
• 

	

	to safeguard the medical scheme's ability to continue in operational continuity, so that it can 
continue to pay benefits to its members. 

In 2008, Law No. 52/2008 governing the organisation of insurance business in Rwanda ("the 
Insurance Law") was promulgated. The Insurance Law requires entities providing short term 
insurance to hold a minimum level of paid up capital of Frw I billion. It also sets regulatory solvency 
thresholds for insurance companies, based on prescribed admissibility criteria for assets and liabilities. 

- 	 The regulatory solvency requirements were effective in 2011. 

The pension fund considers its reserves comprising of statutory reserves and accumulated members 
funds as its 'equity'. The primary objective in managing those reserves is to ensure that adequate 
solvency is maintained for purposes of future benefit payments to members. The level of statutory 
reserves is legislated as set out under Note 48. Other than for those reserves, the fund is not required 
to meet any other external capital requirements. The fund carries out periodical actuarial assessments 

- 	 to assess its actuarial solvency. 
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